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SECURITIES AND EXCHA NGE BOARD OF INDIA ( LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

No. SEBI/LAD -NRO/GN/201516/013In exercise of the powers conferred by section 11,
subsection (2) of section 11A and section@Qhe Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (15 of 1992) read with section 31 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(42 of 1956), the Securities and Exchange Board of India hereby makes the following
Regulations, namel§:

CHAPTER |
PRELIMINARY

Short title and commencement.

1. (1) These regulations may be called the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(2) They shall come into force on the ninetieth day fromdidite of their publication in the
Official Gazette:
Provided that the provisions of sobgulation (4) of regulation 23 and regulation 31A
shall come into force on the date of notification of these regulations.

Definitions.

2. (1) In these regulations, unless the context otherwise reqlires
@ AAct 06 means the Securities and Exchange

(b) A a s s oghall aneaa any entity which is an associate undesssation (6) of
section 2 of the Companies A@013 or under the applicable accounting
standards:

Provided that this definition shall not be applicable for the units issued by mutual
fund which are listed on a recognised stock exchange(s) for which the provisions
of the Securities and Exchange Boafdhdia (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996
shall be applicable;

(c) "Board" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India ssiathlunder
section 3 of the A¢t

(dfAboard of directorso or Dadoohdirettorodr t r u st
board oftrustees, whichever applicable, of the listed entity;



(e)fichi ef executawagionfd idcdiere®ctoar oimr fmana
person so appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013,

MHhAchief financi al of ficer o ar offwhfolnea ntcier
by whatever name calleghall mean theerson heading and discharging the
finance functionof the listed entity as disclosed by it to the recognised stock
exchange(s) in its filing under these regulations;

(g9hicommi t t ee 0 s h aof bbardokedaectorsoo anyrathertcanenittee
SO0 constituted,

(hfidesignated securitieso -ooavertibke debtpeci f i
securities, nortonvertible redeemable preference shares, perpetual debt
instrument, perpetual nesumulative preferenceshares, Indian depository
receipts, securitised debt instruments, [security recéiptsif issued by mutual
funds 2[Zero Coupon Zero Principal Instrumerasid any other securities as may
be specified by the Board

Afinanci al vy e ar mearsnh asladsignedatoiteunderisaotios a me
(41) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013;

jiayif ugi ti ve economic offendero shall mean
economic offender under section 12 oé thugitive Economic Offenders Act,
2018 (17 of 2018);]

) "gl obal d e p onzant global depositorg recpiptssas defined in sub
section (44) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(k) A Hf yea meansthe period of six morths commercing on the first day of
April or Octobe of afinancial yea;

() Ahalf yealy reaul t reeans the finarcial results prepared in accordance with
these regulations respect of a hdf yea;

(m)"holding company" means a holding company as defined irssation (46) of
section 2 of th&€ompanies Act, 2013;

N6l ndi an depository receiptsbdé means | ndi
section(48) of section 2 of ti@ompanies Act, 2013;

[ (na) Al nsolvency Codeo means the Insolve

! Inserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 06.09.2018.

2 Inserted bySecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Redations, 2022 w.e.f. 25.7.2022.

3 Inserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 16.11.2018.

4 Inserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Reguitfs,

w.e.f. 31.05.2018.



(oikey manageri al personnel 0 means- key ma
section (51) of section 2 of tli@mpanies Act, 2013;

(p) "listed entity" means an entity which has listed, on a recognised stock
exchange(s), the designated securigsged by it or designated securities issued
under schemes managed by it, in accordance with the listing agreement entered
into between the entity and the recognised stock exchange(s);

(@Al i sting agreemento shall me anenan agr e
recognised stock exchange andeauity, on the application of that entity to the
recognised stock exchange, undertaking to comply with conditions for listing of
designated securities;

(MfAimain board" means ma i’[fee)bfsubregllatars(l)def i ne
of regulation®[2] of the ‘[Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018]

qra)yi mai nstream medi ado shall include print
i. Newspapersegistered with the Registrar of Newspapers for India;

ii. News channels permitted by Ministry of Information and Broadcasting
under Government of India;

iii. Content published by the publisher of news and current affairs content as
defined under thinformation Technology (Intermediary Guidelines and
Digital Media Ethics Code) Rules, 2021; and

iv. Newspapersor news channels or news and current affairs content
similarly registeredor permitted or regulatedas the case may big,
jurisdictions outsidéndia;]

(s)inet wortho means n edctionv(d7) of bectians2 ofdtleef | n e d
Companies Act, 2013;

(t) f{ 6rcooonvertible debt securitiesd means ¢
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing ofQd¢mvertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021

SSubstituted for #f(a)o by the SEBI (Listing Obligatic
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
Substituted for A106NO0 by the SEBI ( LcosdtAnengme®b| i gat i
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
"Substitutedfoil Secur i ti es and Exchange Board of India (lssue o
2 0 0l®y &he SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremeri&cond Amendmeniegulations, 2021
w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
8 Insertedby the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2022.f. 15.72023
9 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitution, clause (t) read as follows:
iénemmnvertible debt securiti e anderreghlatient2(l)(epachedde bt se
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulatiods, 2008
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WY 6rcoonvertible redeemabtenpeefiebkeacsesh
Operpetual debt i nst-aowmelna tdi vaen dp réepf eerr peer
shall have the same meaning as assigned to théma Becurities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Nd@onvertible Securities) Regulations,

2021

(v) "offer document" shall have the same meaning assigned to it under’¢[¢&iog
of subregulation (1) of regulation 2 of tHgSecurities andExchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018],
Bclause (y) of susegulation (1) of regulation 2 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Nd@onvertible Securities) regulations,
2021] clause (r) of regulation 2 of ti&ecurities and Exchange Board of India
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and clause (I) of-regjlation (1) of
regulation 2 of the$ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
SecuritisedDebt Instruments and Security Receipts) Regulations, 2H08]
may be applicable;

(w)"promoter" and "promoter group” shall have the same meaning as assigned to
them respectively in clause€$[(0o)] and 9 (pp)] of subregulation (1) of
regulation 2 of thé’[Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018].

(x) "public" means public as defined under clause (d) of rule 2 of the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957,

(y) "public shareholding" means pubkbareholding as defined under clause (e) of
rule 2 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

10 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021Before substitution, clause (u) read as follows:
Aubonemnvertible redeemabl e preference sharesé, Obpe
debt instrument' andb per pe tcuwaniu lradn ve preference sharebdé shall
assigred to them in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing-@fddeartible
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 8013;
“"Substituted for #fA(x)o by the SEBI (Listing Obligatic
Reguktions, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
2Substituted for
Regul ati ons, 2009
Regulations, 202%v.e.f. 5.5.2021.
13 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth AmendmeuitRas,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021, for the following
ficlause (j) of subregulation(1) of regulation 2 of the Securities and Exchange Bodrdl@ (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, clause (p) ofrasgblation (1) of regulation 2 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of@émvertible Redeemable Preference
Shares) Regulations, 20130
14 Substitited by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w. e. f. 06. 09 . 2 OSkcBrities Bnd iExcimangé Board ¢f indig (Public Offereaadd a s i
Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments) Regulatich€ 0 8 0 .
YSubstituted for A(za)o by the SEBI (Listing Obligat:i
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
®Substituted for A(zb)od by the SEBI (Listing Obligat:i
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
“"Substituted for
Regul ations, 2009
Regulations, 202%.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(z2iquarter o means the period of three mont
July, October or January of a financial year;

(za)"quatrterly reslis" means the financial results prepared in accordance with these
regulations in respect of a quarter;

(zb) firaeltytoedneans a r el at-sediond7)otsgctioas def i
2 of the Companies Act, 2013 or under the applicable accounting standards:

¥ Provided that:
(a) anyperson or entity forming a part of the promoter or promoter group of
the listed entity; or
(b) any person or any entity, holding equity shares:
(i) of twenty per cent or more; or
(i) of ten per cent or more, with effect from April 1, 2023;
in the listedentity either directly or on a beneficial interest basis as provided
under section 89 of the Companies Act, 2013, at any time, during the
immediate preceding financial year,

shall be deemed to be a related party:]

Provided9[further] that this definittn shall not be applicable for the units
issued by mutual funds which are listed on a recognised stock exchange(s);
(zc) Airel ated party transactionodo means a
resources, services or obligations between:
(i) alisted entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of the
listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand; or
(i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand, and any other person or entity
on the other handhe purpose and effect of which is to benefit a related party of the
listed entity or any of its subsidiariesith effect from April 1, 2023;

regardless of whether apriceischargedd a fitransactionodo with
be construed to includesingle transaction or a group of transactions in a contract:

Provided that the following shall not be a related party transaction:

18 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirem@&ith Amendment) Regulations,
2021,w.e.f. 1.4.2022Prior to the substitution, the provision was inseligdhe SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requaments) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.20iPread as under
fiProvided that any person or entity belonging to the promoter or promoter group of the listed entity and holding
20% or more of shareholding in the listed entity shallbemedtod a r el ated party. o
19 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019
20 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirem&ixsh Amendment) Regulations,
2021 we.f. 1.4.2022Prior to the substitution, clause (zc) read as under:
f(zc)r el ated party transactiond means a transfer of re
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged'tadsaction" with a related party shall be
construed to include a single transaction or a group of transactions in a contract:
Provided that this definition shall not be applicable for the units issued by mutual funds which are listed on
arecognisedsttc exchange(s); o



(@) the issue of specified securities on a preferential basis, subjeatnjaiance

of the requirements under the Seci#s and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(b) the following corporate actions by the listed entity which are uniformly
applicable/offered to all shareholders in proportion to their shareholding:

I. payment of dividend,;

ii.  subdivision or consolidation of securities;

iii.  issuance of securities by way of a rights issue or a bonus issue; and

iv.  buy-back of securities.

(c) acceptance of fixed deposits by banks/MBanking Finance Companies at the
tems uniformly applicable/offered to all shareholders/public, subject to disclosure
of the same along with the disclosure of related party transactions every six months
to the stock exchange(s), in the forraaspecified by the Board:

Provided further thathis definition shall not be applicable for the units issued by
mutual funds which are listed on aogoised stock exchange(s);]

(zd) dr el eelativevas definedademsaksection (77) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules presedhhere under:

Providedthis definition shall not be applicable for the units issued by mutual fund
which are listed on a recognised stock exchange(s);

(ze) "schedule" means a schedule annexed to these regulations;

(zf) "securitiedaws" means the Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956,
the Depositories Act, 1996, and tpeovisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules, regulations, circulars or guidelines made
thereunder.

[ ( zsgouritethed debt i nstrumentso shall have tF
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt
Instruments and Security Receipts) Regulations, 2¢€/08

[ (zga) HAsecurity r ec esigndadsodt ursldr theé Jecutitiasv e t h
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments and
Security Receipts) Regulations, 2063;]

(zh) Afservicero means ser viregelatongl3ofdef i ne
regulation 2 6the [Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Securitised Debt Instruments and Security Receipts) Regulations]2008

21 Substituted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w.e.f. 06.09. 2[0(1z8g) Pasieocurtiot itsheéds ,dealt riemsdt ralsmefin
and Exchange Boamlf | ndia (Public Offer and Listing of Securi
22 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2018, w.e.f. 06.09.2018.

23 Substituted by SEBI (Listing Obligans and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2018, w. e. f. 06. 09 . 2 Oskcarities Bnd iIExcltangé Board ¢f indig (Public Offereaadd a s
Listing of Securitised Debt I nstruments) Regul ati ons,
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(zi) "small and medium enterprises” or "SME" shall mean an entity which has issued
specified securities in accordance with the provisions of Chaffied] of the

29 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulatis, 2018]

(zj) ASME Exchanged means an Zd&E)exchang:
subregulation (1) of regulatioA’[2] of the ?][Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018]

(zk) "stock exchangé means a recognised stock exchange as defined under clause
(f) of section 2 othe Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;

(zl) O0specified securitiesd means Oéequi
defined under claus&9(eee)] of subregulation (1) of regulation 2 of the
30Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018]

(zm) Asubsidiaryodo means -asectioni8@)ofisectioa?2 y as
of the Companies Ac2013;

Yzn)y Awor ki ng dayso means working days of
securities of the entity are listgd

(z0) the expressions AFor Profit Social

ASoci al Brstoen md i Sa @icdkr aEfxtc hfaunngde or,ai si ng d
fund raising document 0, Afund raising d
Audit Firmo shall have the same meaning

Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and DisclosuegjuRements)

Regulation, 2013

(2) All other words and expressions used but not defined in these regulations, but defined in
the Act or the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the

#Substit ut leydhe SEBI(Lisfing Bligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

BZSubstituted for ifiSecurities and Exchange Board of I
Regul ati ons, 2 0 6tiagd Oblmations dne DisBl&sBré Refuiraments) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

%®Substituted for A(c)o by the SEBI (Listing Obligati
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

27 Substituted @ r A(106N)O0 by the SEBI (Listing Obligations
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

2Substituted for fASecurities and Exchange Board of |
Regul at i on &e SERI {L&thg Obbggations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

®Substituted for fA(zj)o by the SEBI (Listing Obligati
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

¥Substituted for fHASecurities and Exchange Board of |
Regul ati ons, 20090 by the SEBI (Listing Obligations
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

3! Inserted by the BBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

32 Inserted by the&Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Fifth Amendment) Redations, 2022 w.e.f25.7.2022.



Depositories Act, 1996 and/or the rukesd regulations made thereunder shall have the
same meaning as respectively assigned to them in such Acts or rules or regulations or any
statutory modification or renactment thereto, as the case may be.

Applicability of the regulations.

3. 39[(1)] Unless otherwise provided, these regulations shall appRf#b listed entity
3which] has listed any of the followinglesignated securities on recognised stock
exchange(s):

(a) specified securities listed on main board or SME Exchang®[lomovators
Growth Platform]

(b) *'[non-convertible securities;]

(c) Indian depository receipts;

(d) securitised debt instruments;

3§ (da) security receipts;]
(e) units issued by mutual funds;
(H any other securities as may be specified by the Board.

39(2) The provisions of thesegulations which become applicable to listed entities on the
basis of market capitalisation criteria shall continue to apply to such entities even if they fall
below such thresholds.]

49(3) The provisions of these regulations which become applicablstéal lentities on the
basis of the criterion of the value of outstanding listed debt securities shall continue to apply
to such entities even if they fall below such thresholds as mentionediagulhtion (1A) of
regulation 15.]

CHAPTER Il
PRINCIPLES GOV ERNING DISCLOSURES AND OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED
ENTITY

Principles governing disclosures and obligations.
4. (1) The listed entity which has listed securities shall make disclosures and abide by its
obligations under these regulations, in accordance witfotlogving principles:

33 Numbered as sukegulation (1) by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
%Substituted for fAtheo by the SEBI (Listing Obligatic
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
%Substituted for fAwhoo by the SEBI (Listing Obligatio
Regulations2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
% Substituted for ilnstitutional Trading Platformo |
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
37 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Rements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitution, clause (b) read as follows:
fi(b) nonconvertible debt securities, naonvertible redeemable preference shares, perpetual debt
instrument, perpetual necumulative preferec e s har es; 0
38 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w.e.f. 06.09.2018.
% Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.ef. 5.5.2021.
40 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.



(a) Information shall be prepared and disclosed in accordance with applicable
standards of accounting and financial disclosure.

(b) The listed entity shall implement the prescribed accounting standards in letter and
spirit in the preparatioof financial statements taking into consideration the interest
of all stakeholders and shall also ensure that the annual audit is conducted by an
independent, competent and qualified auditor.

(c) The listed entity shall refrain from misrepresentation anduen that the
information provided to recognised stock exchange(s) and investors is not
misleading.

(d) Thelistedentity shallprovide adequate and timely information to recognised stock
exchange(s) and investors.

(e) Thelisted entity shall ensure that disseaiions made under provisions of these
regulations and circulars made thereunder, are adequate, accurate, explicit, timely
and presented in a simple language.

(f) Channelsfor disseminating information shall provide for equal, timely and cost
efficient access to relevant information by investors.

(9) Thelisted entity shall abide by all the provisions of the applicable laws including
the securities laws and also such othedeglmes as may be issued from time to
time by the Board and the recognised stock exchange(s) in this regard and as may
be applicable.

(h) Thelisted entity shallnakethe specified disclosures and follow its obligations in
letter and spirit taking into congdation the interest of all stakeholders.

(i) Filings, reports, statements, documents and information which are event based or
are filedperiodicallyshallcontain relevant information.

() Periodic filings, reports, statements, documents and informationtsepball
containinformationthat shall enable investors to track the performance of a listed
entity over regular intervals of time and shall provide sufficient information to
enable investors to assess the current status of a listed entity.

(2) The listedentity which has listed its specified securities shall comply with the corporate

governance provisions as specified in chapter IV which shall be implemented in a manner
so as to achieve the objectives of the principles as mentioned below.

(a)The rights of shareholders The listed entity shall seek to protect and facilitate the
exercise of the following rights of shareholders:

(i) right to participate in, and to be sufficiently informed of, decisions concerning
fundamental corporate changes.

(il) opportunity to partipate effectively and vote in general shareholder meetings.

(iif) being informed of the rules, including voting procedures that govern general
shareholder meetings.



(iv) opportunity to ask questions to the board of directors, to place items on the
agenda of generaheetings, and to propose resolutions, subject to reasonable
limitations.

(v) Effective shareholder participation in key corporate governance decisions,
such as the nomination and election of members of board of directors.

(vi)exercise of ownership rights by alhaeholders, including institutional
investors.

(vii) adequate mechanism to address the grievances of the shareholders.

(viii) protection of minority shareholders from abusive actions by, or in the interest

of, controllingshareholders acting either directly or indthgcand effective
means of redress.

(b) Timely information : The listed entity shall provide adequate and timely information
to shareholders, including but not limited to the following:

(i) sufficientand timely information concerning the date, location and agenda of
general meetings, as well as full and timely information regarding the issues to
be discussed at the meeting.

(i) Capital structures and arrangements that enable certain shareholders to obtain
a degree of control disproportionate to their equity ownership.

(iii) rights attached to all seriemd classes of shares, which shall be disclosed to
investors before they acquire shares.

(c) Equitable treatment. The listed entity shall ensure equitable treatmentall
shareholders, including minority and foreign shareholders, in the following manner:

(i) All shareholders of the same series of a class shall be treated equally.

(if) Effective shareholder participation in key corporate governance decisions,
such as the nommation and election of members of board of directors, shall be
facilitated.

(iif) Exercise of voting rights by foreign shareholders shall be facilitated.

(iv) The listed entity shall devise a framework to avoid insider trading and abusive
self-dealing.

(v) Processes angrocedures for general shareholder meetings shall allow for
equitable treatment of all shareholders.

(vi) Procedure®f listed entity shalhot make it unduly difficult or expensive to
cast votes.

(d) Role of stakeholders in corporate governancefhe listed entit shall recognise the
rights of its stakeholders and encourageoperation between listed entity and the
stakeholders, in the following manner:

(i) The listed entity shall respect the rights of stakeholders that are establjshed
law or through mutual agreements.

(i) Stakeholders shall have the opportunity to obtain effective redress for
violation of their rights.

(iif) Stakeholders shall have access to relevant, sufficient and reliable information
on a timely and regular basis to enabidem to participate in corporate
governance process.
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(iv) The listed entity shall devise an effectf¢pvigil mechanism/whistle blower
“policy] enabling stakeholders, including individual employees and their
representative bodies, to freedgmmunicate their concerns about illegal or
unethical practices.

(e) Disclosure and transparency The listed entity shall ensure timely and accurate
disclosure on all material matters including the financial situation, performance,
ownership, and governanoéthe listed entity, in the following manner:

(i) Information shall be prepared and disclosed in accordance with the prescribed
standards of accounting, financial and +iimrancial disclosure.

(i) Channels for disseminating information shall provide for equaklti and
cost efficient access to relevant information by users.

(ii) Minutes of the meeting shall be maintained explicitly recording dissenting
opinions, if any.

() Responsibilities of the board of directors:The board of directors of the listed entity
shallhave the following responsibilities:
(i) Disclosure of information:

(1) Members of board of directors and key managerial personnel shall
disclose to the board of directors whether they, directly, indirectly, or on
behalf of third parties, have a material intenestny transaction or matter
directly affecting thedisted entity

(2) The board of directors and senior management shall conduct themselves
SO as taneet the expectations of operational transparency to stakeholders
while at the same time maintaining confidentiality of information in order
to foster a culture of good decisiomaking.

(i) Key functions of the board of directers

(1) Reviewing and guiding cogpate strategy, major plans of action, risk
policy, annual budgets and business plans, setting performance
objectives, monitoring implementation and corporate performance, and
overseeing major capital expenditures, acquisitions and divestments.

(2) Monitoringt he ef fectiveness of the | istec
and making changes as needed.

(3) Selecting, compensating, monitoring and, when necessary, replacing key
managerial personnel and overseeing succession planning.

(4) Aligning key managerial personnel camemuneration of board of
directors with the longer term interests of the listed entity and its
shareholders.

(5) Ensuring a transparent nomination process to the board of directors with
the diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective and gender
in the board of directors.

(6) Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of management,
members of the board of directors and shareholders, including misuse of
corporate assets and abuse in related party transactions.

4! Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f5.5.2021.

2Substituted for fAmechanismo by the SEBI (Listing O
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(7) Ensuring the integrity of #hlisted entty s accounting and

reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that appropriate
systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for risk
management, financial and operational control, and compliance with the
law and relevant standards.
(8) Overseeing the process of disclosure and communications.
QMonitoring and reviewing board of

(iif) Other responsibilities:

(1) The board of directors shall provide strategic guidance to the listed entity,
ensue effective monitoring of the management and shall be accountable
to the listed entity and the shareholders.

(2) The board of directors shall set a corporate culture and the values by which
executives throughout a group shall behave.

(3) Members of the board dafirectors shall act on a fully informed basis, in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interest of the listed
entity and the shareholders.

(4) The board of directors shall encourage continuing directors training to
ensure that the memberkbmard of directors are kept up to date.

(5) Where decisions of the board of directors may affect different shareholder
groups differently, the board of directors shall treat all shareholders fairly.

(6) The board of directors shall maintain high ethical stadgland shall take
into account the interests of stakeholders.

(7) The board of directors shall exercise objective independent judgement on
corporate affairs.

(8) The board of directors shall consider assigning a sufficient number-of non
executive members of the & of directors capable of exercising
independent judgement to tasks where there is a potential for conflict of
interest.

(9) The board of directors shall ensure that, while rightly encouraging positive
thinking, these do not result in oveptimism that eitbr leads to
significant risks not being recognised or exposes ligted entity to
excessive risk.

(10)The board of directors shal/l have
management by challenging the assumptions underlying: strategy,
strategic initiéives (such as acquisitions), risk appetite, exposures and the
key areas of thissted entith s f ocu s .

(11) When committees of the board of directors are established, their mandate,
composition and working procedures shall be well defined and disclosed
by the mard of directors.

(12) Members of the board of directors shall be able to commit themselves
effectively to their responsibilities.

(13)In order to fulfil their responsibilities, members of the board of directors
shall have access to accurate, relevant and timigmation.

(14)The board of directors and senior management shall facilitate the
independent directors to perform their role effectively as a member of the
board of directors and also a member of a committee of board of directors.

(3) In case of any ambiguityrancongruity between the principles and relevant regulations,
the principles specified in this Chapter shall prevail.
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CHAPTER llI
COMMON OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITIES
General obligation of compliance.

5. The listed entity shall ensure thay managerial personnel, directors, promoters or any
other person dealing with the listed entity, complies with responsibilities or obligations, if any,
assigned to them under these regulations.

Compliance Officer and his*3[/her] Obligations.
6. (1) A listed entity shall appoint a qualified company stgxeas the compliance officer.

44(1A) Any vacancy in the office of the Compliance Officer shall be filled by the listed entity
at the earliest and in any case not later than three months from the slath wacancy:

Provided that the listed entity shall not fill such vacancy by appointing a person in interim
capacity, unless such appointment is made in accordance with the laws applicable in case of a
fresh appointment to such office and the obligatiomder such laws are made applicable to
such person

(2) Thecompliance officer of the listed entity shall be responsible for

(a) ensuring conformity with the regulatory provisions applicable to the listed entity in
letter and spirit.

(b) co-ordination with and reporting to the Board, recognised stock exchange(s) and
depositories with respect to compliance with rules, regulations and other directives
of these authorities in manner as specified from time to time.

(c) ensuringthat the correct procedures have been followed that would result in the
correctness, authenticity and comprehensiveness of the information, statements and
reports filed by the listed entity under these regulations.

(d) monitoring email address of grievaneglressal division as designated by the listed
entity for the purpose of registering complaints by investors:

Provided that the requirements of this regulation shall not be applicable in the case of units
issued by mutual funds which are listed on recegmiistock exchange(s) but shall be
governed by the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds)
Regulations, 1996.

Share Transfer Agent.
7. (1) The listed entity shall appoint a share transfer agent or manage the sharefaaihtsfer
in-house:

43 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)dsgulat
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

44 Insertedby the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2028.f. 15.72023
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Provided that, in the case of-louse share transfer facility, as and when the total
number of holders of securities of the listed entity exceeds one lakh, the listed entity
shall either register with the Board as a Category |l straresfer agent or appoint
Registrar to an issue and share transfer agent registered with the Board.

(2)The listed entity shall ensure that all activities in relation to *ghare transfer facility
are maintained either in house or by Registrar to an &silishare transfer agent registered
with the Board.

(3)The listed entity shall submit a compliance certificate to the exchange, duly signed by both
the compliance officer of the listed entity and the authorised representative of the share
transfer agent, wérever applicable, withif9thirty days from thelend of *’[***] the
financial year, certifying compliance with the requirements of sedpulation (2).

(4)In case of any change or appointment of a new share transferthgdigted entity shall
enter into a tripartite agreement between the existing share transfer agent, the new share
transfer agent and the listed entity, in the manner as specified by the Board from time to
time:

Provided that in case the existing shaemsfer facility is managed-imouse, the agreement
referred above shall be entered into between the listed entity and the new share transfer agent.

(5)The listed entity shall intimate such appointment, referred to ifregidation (4), to the
stock exchage(s) within seven days of entering into the agreement.

(6)The agreement referred to in stdgulation (4) shall be placed in the subsequent meeting
of the board of directors:

Provided that the requirements of this regulation shall not be applicableunithessued by
mutual funds that are listed on recognised stock exchange(s).

Co-operation with intermediaries registered with the Board.

8. The listed entity, wherever applicable, shallamerate with and submit correct and
adequate information to the intermediaries registered with the Board such as credit
rating agencies, registrar to an issue and share transfer agents, debenture tryustees e
within timelines and procedures specified under the Act, regulations and circulars
issued there under:

Provided that requirements of this regulation shall not be applicable to the units issued by
mutual funds listed on a recognised stock exchange(syvhich the provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 shall be applicable.

Preservation of documents.

“The words fAboth physical a ndbligationsand DisclosuredRequireingnts)e d by
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 08.06.2018.

®“Substituted for fdone month ofo by the SEBI (Listing
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

4“Thewor ds feach half ofodo omitted by the SEBI (Listing
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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9. The listed entity shall have a policy for preservatiod@fuments, approved by its board
of directors, classifying them in at least two categories as follows
(&) documents whose preservation shall be permanent in nature ;
(b) documents with preservation period of not less than eight years after completion of
the relevantransactions:
Provided thatthe listed entity may keep documents specified in clauses (a) and (b) in
electronic mode.

Filing of information.

10. (1) Thelisted entityshall file the reports, statements, documents, filings and any other
information with the recognised stock exchanpeis the electronic platformas
specified by the Board or the recognised stock exchange(s)

(2)The listed entity shall put in place infrastructure as required for compliance with
subregulation (1).

Scheme of Arrangement.

11. The listed entity shall ensure that any scheme of arrangement /amalgamation /merger
/reconstruction /reduction of capital etc. to be presented to any Court or Tribunal does
not in any way violate, override or limit the provisions of securities laws or
requrements of the stock exchange(s):

Provided that this regulation shall not be applicable for the units issued by Mutual Fund which
are listed on a recognised stock exchange(s).

Payment of dividend or interest or redemption or repayment.

12. The listed entit shall use any of the electronic mode of payment facility approved by
the Reserve Bank of India, in the manner specified in Schedule |, for the payment of
the following:

(a) dividends;
(b) interest;
(c) redemption or repayment amounts:

Provided thatwhere it is not possible to use electronic mode of payndgept,a y-at-fp & re 6
warrants or cheques may be issued:

Provided further that where the amount payable as dividend exceeds one thousand and five
hundred rupe-atpar & hwea 6 guasyshad beaent by dpeed post.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism.

13. (1) *¥The listed entity shall redress investor grievances promptly but not later than
twenty-onecalendar days from the date of receipt of the grievance and in such manner
as may bepecified bythe Board.]

48 Substituted byhe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Facilitation of GrieviemressaMechanism)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2028e.f. 1808-2023. Prior to substitution, it read as follows:
fiThe listed entity shall ensure that adequate steps are taken for expeditious redressal of investor complaints
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(2)Thelisted entity shall ensure that it is registemdthe SCORES platform or such other
electronic platform or system of the Board as shall be mandated from time to time, in order
to handle investor complaints electronically in the manner specified by the Board.

(3)Thelisted entityshall file with theremgnisedstock exchange(s) on a quarterly basis, within
twenty one days from the end of each quarter, a statement giving the number of investor
complaints pending at the beginning of the quarter, those received during the quarter,
disposed of during the gquar and those remaining unresolved at the end of the quarter.

(4)The statement as specified in s@lgulation (3) shall be placed, on quartdrasis, before
the board of directors of the listed entity.

49(5) The Board may also recognize a body corpdatbandling and monitoring the process
of grievance redressal within such time and in such manner as may be specified.

Fees and other charges to be paid to the recognized stock exchange(s).
14. The listed entity shall pay all such fees or chargeappbcable, to the recognised stock
exchange(s), in the manner specified by the Boatldeorecognised stock exchange(s).

4 Inserted by theSecurities and Exchge Board of India (Facilitation of Grievan&edressal Mechanism)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2028e.f. 1808-2023.
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CHAPTER IV
OBLIGATIONS OF °9A] LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS SPECIFIED
SECURITIES >jAND NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBT SECURITIES]

Applicability.

15. (1) The provisions of this chapter shall apply to a listed entity which has listed its
specified securities on any recognised stock exchange(s) either on the main board or on
SME Exchange or off{Innovators Growth Platform]

53(1A) The provisions of this regulation and regulation 16 to regulation 27 of this
chapter shall apply to a listed entity which has listed itsaavertible debt securities
and has an outstanding value of listed-gonvertible debt securities of Rupees Five
Hunded Crore and above:
Provided that in case an entity that has listed itsaomvertible debt securities triggers
the specified threshold of Rupees Five Hundred Crore during the course of the year, it
shall ensure compliance with these provisions wisimmonths from the date of such
trigger:
Provided further that these provisions sh
entityd on a 6compiMarch8T, 2024knul bnaaimandatobybasis s un't
thereafter.
Explanation (1) The entites referred in the first proviso to soégulation (1A) of
regulation 15 are referred to as 6high va
chapter.
Explanation (2 The o6hi gh value debt | isted entiti
amandment would be determined on basis of value of principal outstanding of listed
debt securities as on March 31, 2021.
Explanation 3y 6 Compl y or explaindéd for the- purpos
regulation (1A) of regulation 15 shall mean that thatg shall endeavour to comply
with the provisions and achieve full complianceylarch 31, 2024]In case the entity
is not able to achieve full compliance with the provisions, till such time, it shall explain
the reasons for such n@ompliance/ parél compliance and the steps initiated to
achieve full compliance in the quarterly compliance report filed under clause (a), sub
regulation (2) of regulation 27 of these regulations.
%6 [Explanation (4
(a) I n case of a o6high value debt 1| i stec
(REIT), the Board of the Manager of the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT),

50 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

51 Inserted by e SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

2Substituted for Ainstitutional trading platformo by
(Second Amendment) Regulatio2§21 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

53 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

54 Substitute by th&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2023 e . f . 15.6. 2023 for the words and s
55 Substitute by th&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2028.f. 156 2023 f or t he words and symbol fi
56 Omitted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations andisclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023

w.e.f 1.04.2023.

17



shall comply with regulation 15 to regulation 27 of these regulations related to
corporategovernance;

(b) I n case of a o6high value debt || iste
Trust (InvIT), the Board of the Investment Manager of the Infrastructure
Investment Trust (InvIT), shall comply with regulation 15 to regulation 27 of these
regulations elated to corporate governance.]

®/[(1B) Notwithstanding anything contained in this regulation, in case of an Infrastructure
Investment Trust registerachderthe provisionsof the Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of

India (Infrastructurelnvestment Trusts) Regulatior&)14,the governancenormsspecified
under the Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts)
Regulations, 2014 shall be applicable

°§(1C) Notwithstanding anythingontainedin this regulation,in caseof a Real Estate
InvestmentTrust registeredinderthe provisionsof Securitiesand ExchangeBoardof India
(RealEstatelnvestmentTrust) Regulations, 2014, the governance norms specified under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real testiavestment Trust) Regulations, 2014
shall be applicablg.

(2) Thecompliance with the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulatjons
5917A,] 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 2%[24A,] 25, 26, 27 andlauses (b) to (i§{and ()] of sub
regulation (2) of regulatiod6 andparaC , D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, in respect
of -
(a) ®9a] listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rigeesore
and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crore, asedaghday of the previous
financial year:
53 Provided that where the provisions of regulations 17 ta@2lises (b) to (i) and (t)
of subregulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V become
applicable to a listed entity at a latertedait shall ensure compliance with the same
within six months from such date:]
84 Provided further that once the above regulations become applicable to a listed entity,
they shall continue to remain applicablegiich time the equity share capital or the net
worth of such entity reduces and remains below the specified threshold for a period of
three consecutive financial years.]

57 Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendmegt)l&iens, 2023
w.e.f 1.04.2023.
%8 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations andisclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023
w.e.f 1.04.2023.
% Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
80 |nserted ibid.
51 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f5.5.2021.
®2Substituted for Athedo by the SEBI (Listing Obligatic
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
63 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, the proviso read as follows:
iProvided that where the provisions of the regul a
to a listed entity at a later date, such listed entity shall complytiitlrequirements those regulations
within six months from the date on which the prov
54 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.20R.
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(b) ®9[a] listed entity which has listed its specified securities on the SME Exchange
%¢Provided that for other listed entities which are not companies, but body corporate or
are subject to regulations under other statues, the provisions of corporate governance
provisions as specified in regulati®i,6[17A,] 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 2%#[24A,] 25,

26, 27 anctlauses (b) to (i) of sukegulation (2) of regulatiod6 andparaC , D and E

of Schedule V shall apply to the extent that it does not violate their respective statutes
and guidelines or directives issued by the relevant authdyities

%[(2A) The provisions as specified in regulation 17 shall not be applicable during the
insolvency resolution process period in respectof alistedéfjity a 6 hi gh val ue
entityd vhich is undergoing corporate insolvency resolufwacess under the Insolvency
Code:

Provided that the role and responsibilities of the board of directors as specified under
regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional
in accordance with sections 17da?3 of the Insolvency Code.

(2B) The provisions as specified in regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable during
the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed éfiity a o6 hi gh val u
listed entity) Jwhich is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution process under the
Insolvency Code:

Provided that the roles and responsibilities of the committees specified in the
respective regulations shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution
professionall.”?

(3) Notwithstanding suegulation (2) above, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 shall
continue to apply, wherever applicable.

Definitions.
16. (1) For the purpose of this chapter , unless the context otherwise requires
(&) "control" shallhave the same meaning as assigned to it under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) "independent director" means a rexecutive director, other than a nominee
director of the listed entity:

Substituted for Athed by the SEBI (Listing Obligatic
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

6 The proviso shall stand omitted w.e.f. 1.9.2021. The date of omission of the proviso was notified by the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021.

57 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

%8 Inserted ibid.

% |nserted by SEBI (Listing Olglations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.

0 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

" Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Olglations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

2|nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.
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(i) who, in the opinion of the board of directors, is a person of integrity and
possesses relevant expertise and experience;

(i) who is or was not a promatef the listed entity or its holding, subsidiary
or associate company[or member of the promoter group of the listed
entity];

(i) who is not related to promoters or directors in the listed entity, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company;

(iv) who, apart fronreceiving director's remuneration, has or had no material
pecuniary relationship with the listed entity, its holding, subsidiary or
associate company, or their promoters, or directors, durinétieed
immediately preceding financial years or during tlurrent financial year;

(v) none of whose relativés

9 (A) is holdingsecuritieof or interest in the listed entity, its holding,
subsidiary or associate company during the three immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year of face
value in excess of fifty lakh rupees or two percent of the-ppidapith

of the listed entity, its holding, subsidiary or associate company
respectivelypr such higher sum as may be specified,;

(B) is indebted to the listed entity, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company or their promoters or directors, in excess di smeount as
may be specified during the three immediately preceding financial
years or during the current financial year;

(C) has given a guarantee or provided any security in connection with
the indebtedness of any third person to the listed entityoltfiny,
subsidiary or associate company or their promoters or directors, for
such amount as may be specified during the three immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year; or

(D) has any other pecuniary transaction or relatgm with the listed
entity, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to two
percent or more of its gross turnover or total income:

Provided that the pecuniary relationship or transaction with the listed
entity, its holding, subsidiary or agsate company or their promoters,

or directors in relation to points (A) to (D) above shall not exceed two
percenof its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such
higher amount as may be specified from time to time, whichever is
lower]

(vi) who, neither himself[fi / h e mar ehoseJrelative(s)

3 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligatis and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.10.2018.
74 Substituted by th&EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022 or t htwodwor d A
s Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendunw,e.f. 1.1.202%or the following:
fihasor had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the listed entity, its holding, subsidiary
or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent. or more of
its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such drigdtmount as may be
prescribed from time to time, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding
financial years or during the current financial vy

¢ Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment)l&tams,
2021 read with the corrigendunw,e.f. 1.1.2022
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(A) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or
has been an employee of the listed entity or its holding, subsidiary or
associate compan{/[or any company belonging to th@omoter
group of the listed entity,jn any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to
be appointed
¥ Provided that in case of a relatjweho is an employee other than
key managerial personnel, thestriction under this clause shall not
apply for his / her employment.]

(B)is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the
three financial years immediately preceding the financial year in
which he is proposed to be appointedd of

(1) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost
auditors of the listed entity or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company; or

(2) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with
the listed entity, its holding, subsidyaior associate company
amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover of such
firm;

(C)holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total
voting power of the listed entity; or

(D)is a chief executive or director, by whatever name catiedny non
profit organisation that receives twesritye per cent or more of its
receipts or corpus from the listed entity, any of its promoters, directors
or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per
cent or more of the total tiag power of the listed entity;

(E) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee
of the listed entity;

(vii)who is not less than 21 years of age.

9[(viii) who is not a norindependent director of another company on the board

of which any nonindependent director of the listed entity is an independent
director]

8Explanationl n case of a O0high value debt |

(a) which is a body corporate, mandated to constitute its board of directors

in a specific manner in accordancetlwithe law under which it is

established, the nerexecutive directors on its board shall be treated as
independent directors;

(b) which is a Trust, mandated to
accordance with the law under which it is establisheel nbremployee
trustees on its board shall bedted as independent directors.]

" Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendunw,e.f. 1.1.2022

8 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendunw,e.f. 1.1.2022

 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.10.2018.

8 |nserted by the SEBI {kting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
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(c) nmaterial subsidiay shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or net worth
exceed$[ten] percent of the consolidated income or net woeipectively,
of the listed entity ashits subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting
year.
Explanatonr-The | i sted entity shall formul ate
subsidiary.

82(d) fiseniorma n a g e shallmeanthe officers and personnebf the listed entity
who aremembersf its coremanagemerteam,excluding the Boardf Directors,and
shall also comprise all the memberstioé managemenbne level below the Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Whole Time Director or Manager
(including Chief ExecutiveOfficer and Managein casetheyarenot partof the Board

of Directors)and shall specificallyinclude the functional heads, by whatever name
called and the Compar8ecretaryandthe ChiefFinancial Officer]

Board of Directors.
17. (1) The composition of board of directors of the listed entity shall be as follows:
(&) board of directors shall have an optimum combination of executive and non
executive directors with at least one woman director and not less than fifty per
cent. of the baa of directors shall comprise nbn-executive directors;

8[Provided that the Board of directors of the top 500 listed entities shall have
at least one independent woman director by April 1, 2019 and the Board of
directors of the top 1000 listed entitiekall have at least one independent
woman director by April 1, 2020;

Explanation: The top 500 and 1000 entities shall be determined on the basis of
market capitalisation, as at the end of the immediate previous financial year.]

(b) where the chairperson tie board of directors is a n@xecutive director, at
least onehird of the board of directors shall comprise of independent directors
and where the listed entity does not have a regulaferenutive chairperson,
at least half of the board of direct@tsall comprise of independent directors:
Provided that where the regular rexecutive chairperson is a promoter of the
listed entity or is related to any promoter or person occupying management
positions at the level of board of director or at one |&atdbw the board of
directors, at least half of the board of directors of the listed entity shall consist
of independent directors.

Explanation- F o r the purpose of this clause,

promoter” shall have the following meaning:

8'Substituted ibid for the word Atwentyo, w.e.f. 1.4.2
82 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations anigdosure Requirementshfnendnent) Regulations, 2023
w.e.f. 17.1.2023Priorto the substitution, the clausead as follows
Afiseni or management o shal.l mean officers/ personnel
management team excluding board of directors and normai$y ghall comprise all members of
management one level below tH& fichi e f executive of ficer/ manag.i
director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) and
shall specifically include conrapny secretary and chief financi al of f
83 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.20109.
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(i) if the promoter is a listed entity, its directors other than the independent
directors, its employees or its nominees shall be deemed to be related to it;

(i) if the promoter is an unlisted entity, its directors, its employees or its nominees
shall be @emed to be related to it.

84(c) The board of directors of the top 1000 listed entities (with effect from April 1,
2019) and the top 2000 listed entities (with effect from April 1, 2020) shall comprise
of not less than six directors.

Explanation: The 10 1000 and 2000 entities shall be determined on the basis of market
capitalisation as at the end of the immediate previous financial year.]

8(d) where the listed company has outstanding SR equity shares, atleast half of the
board of directors shall compe of independent directors.]

89(1A) No listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any
person as a neexecutive director who has attained the age of seventy five years
unless a special resolution is passed to that effect, iohwdase the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for
appointing such a persgn.

87[***]

8[(1C). The listed entity shall ensure that approval of shareholders for appointment
89or re-appointmentpf a person on the Board of Directdfpor as a manageis taken

at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the date of
appointment, whichever is earlier

84 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (AmendmentatiRems, 12018,
w.e.f. 1.4.20109.
8 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2019, w.e.f. 29.7.2019.
8 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regu2din8,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
87 Omitted by the SEB(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiren®r(Second Amendment) Regulations,
2022, w.e.f. 22.3.2022. Prior to the omission,-sedpulation (1B) read as follows:
A(1B) . Wi t[Aprild, 2022 ]the togf 500disted entities shall ensure that the Chairperson
of the board of such listed entity shall
(a) be a norexecutive director;
(b) not be related to the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer as per the definition of
the terend fideflianed under the Companies Act, 2013:
Provided that this subegulation shall not be applicable to the listed entities which do not have any
identifiable promoters as per the shareholding pattern filed with stock exchanges.
Explanation- The top 500 entities shall be determined on the basis of market capitalisation, as at
theendoftheimendi at e previous financial year. o
8 |Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022.
8 Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulati@Bs, 20
w.e.f. 17.1.2023.
% Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirens@rfdmendment) Regulations, 2022
w.e.f.24.1.2022
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YProvided that a public sector company shall ensure that the apmbihe
shareholders for appointment @appointment of a person on the Board of Directors
or as a Manager is taken at the next general mekting:

92 Provided®[further] that the appointment or a-egpointment of a person, including

as a managing director a wholetime director or a manager, who was earlier rejected

by the shareholders at a general meeting, shall be done only with the prior approval of
the shareholders:

Provided further that the statement referred to undessation (1) of section 10&f

the Companies Act, 2013, annexed to the notice to the shareholders, for considering
the appointment or rappointment of such a person earlier rejected by the shareholders
shall contain a detailed explanation and justification by the Nomination and
Renuneration Committee and the Board of directors for recommending such a person
for appointment or r@appointment.]

94[(1D) With effect from April 1, 2024, the continuation of a director serving on the
board of directors of a listed entity shall be subje¢hée approval by the shareholders

in a general meeting at least once in every five years from the date of their appointment
or reappointment, as the case may be:

Provided that the continuation of the director serving on the board of directors of a
listed entity as on March 31, 2024, without the approval of the shareholders for the
last five years or more shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in the first
general meeting to be held after March 31, 2024

Provided further that the requiremt specified in this regulation shall not be
applicable to the Whol&ime Director, Managing Director, Manager, Independent
Director or a Director retiring as per the ssdrtion (6) of section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013, if the approval of the shaledrs for the reappointment or
continuation of the aforesaid directors or Manager is otherwise provided for by the
provisions of these regulations or the Companies Act, 2013 and has been complied
with:

Provided further that the requirement specifiedthins regulation shall not be
applicable to the director appointed pursuant to the order of a Court or a Tribunal or
to a nominee director of the Government on the board of a listed entity, other than a
public sector company, or to a nominee director ahankcial sector regulator on the
board of a listed entity:

Provided further that the requirement specified in this regulation shall not be
applicable to a director nominated by a financial institution registered with or regulated

% Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulati@Bs, 20
w.e.f. 17.1.923.

92 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirens@¢rfdmendment) Regulations, 2022
w.e.f.24.1.2022

% Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulati@Bs, 20
w.e.f. 17.1.2023.

% Inseted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2028.f. 15.72023
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by the Reserve Bank ohdlia under a lending arrangement in its normal course of
business or nominated by a Debenture Trustee registered with the Board under a
subscription agreement for the debentures issued by the listed entity.

(1E) Any vacancy in the office of a director #Hze filled by the listed entity at the
earliest and in any case not later than three months from the date such vacancy:

Provided that if the listed entity becomes ycampliant with the requirement under
subregulation (1) of this regulation, due topgation of the term of office of any
director, the resulting vacancy shall be filled by the listed entity not later than the date
such office is vacated:

Provided further that this stidegulation shall not apply if the listed entity fulfils the
requiremat under subregulation (1) of this regulain without filling the vacancy.]

(2) The board of directors shall meet at least four times a year, with a maximum time gap
of one hundred and twenty days between any two meetings.

%[(2A) The quorum for every meeting of the board of directors of the top 1000 listed
entities with effect from April 1, 2019 and of the top 2000 listed entities with effect from
April 1, 2020 shall be onthird of its total strength or three directors, whichever is
higher, including at least one independent director.

Explanation I For removal of doubts, it is clarified that the participation of the directors
by video conferencing or by other audisual means shall also be counted for the
purposes of such quorum

Explanation II- The top 1000 and 2000 entities shall be determined on the basis of
market capitalisation, as at the end of the immediate previous financial year.]

(3) The board of directors shall periodically review compliance reports pertaining to all
laws applicable to the listed entity, prepared by the listed entity as well as steps taken
by the listed entity to rectify instances of rRoompliances.

(4) The board of directors of the listed entity shall satisfy itself that plans are in place for
orderly suecession for appointment to the board of directors and senior management.

(5) (a) The board of directors shall lay down a code of conduct for all members of board
of directors and senior management of the listed entity.

(b) The code of conduct shall suitably incorporate the duties of independent directors
as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

(6) (a) The board of directors shall recommend all fees or compensation, if any, paid to
nonexecutive directors, including indepentidirectors and shall require approval
of shareholders in general meeting.

% Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulati@s, 20
w.e.f. the dates specified in the provision.
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(b) The requirement of obtaining approval of shareholders in general meeting shall not
applyto payment of sitting fees to neexecutive directors, if made within the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 for payment of sitting fees without
approval of the Central Government.

(c) The approval of shareholders mentioned in clause (a), skegiifgphe limits for
the maximum number of stock options that may be granted teexecutive
directors, in any financial year and in aggregate.

% (ca) The approval of shareholders by special resolution shall be obtained every
year, in whichthe annuatemuneration payable to a single rexecutive director
exceeds fifty per cent of the total annual remuneration payable to adixecative
directors, giving details of the remuneration thereof.]

(d) Independent directors shall not be entitled to any stption.

%[(e) The fees or compensation payable to executive directors who are promoters
or members of the promoter group, shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders by special resolution in general meeting, if

(i) the annual remuneration payalb such executive director exceeds rupees 5
crore or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher; or

(i) where there is more than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration
to such directors exceeds 5 per certhefnet profits of the listed entity:

Provided that the approval of the shareholders under this provision shall be valid
only till the expiry of the term of such director.

Explanation: For the purposes of this clause, net profits shall be calculgied as
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.]

(7) The minimum information to be placed before the board of directors is specified in
Part A of Schedule II.

(8) The chief executive officer and the chief financial officer shall provide the compliance
certificate b the board of directors as specified in Part B of Schedule II.

(9) (a) The listed entity shall lay down procedures to inform members of bodiréctors
about risk assessment and minimization procedures.

(b) The board of directors shall be responsible for framing, implementing and
monitoring the risk management plan for the listed entity.

%(10) The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors
which shall include

% Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

9 Inserted ibid.

% Substituted by th&EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reauitents) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019. Prior to the substitution, selgulation (10) read as follows:
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(a) performance of the directors; and
(b) fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their
independence from the management:

Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation
shall not paicipate.]

%[(11). The statement to be annexed to the notice as referred tosedidn (1) of section

102 of the Companies Act, 2013 for each item of special business to be transacted at a general
meeting shall also set forth clearly the recommendatiothe board to the shareholders on

each of the specific itenjs.

Y Maximum number of directorships.

17A. The directors of listed entities shall comply with the following conditions with respect
to the maximum number of directorships, including any réter directorships that can be
held by them at any point of time

(1) A person shall not be a director in more than eight listed entities with effect from
April 1, 2019 and in not more than seven listed entities with effect from April 1, 2020:

Provided that a person shall not serve as an independent director in more than seven
listed entities.

(2) Notwithstanding the above, any person who is serving as a whole time director /
managing director in any listed entity shall serve as an indepediteator in not
more than three listed entities.

10YExplanationd ] For the purpose of thi€qregulation] the count for the number of listed
entities on which a person is a director / independent director shall be only those whose equity
shares are listeoh a stock exchange.]

Audit Committee.

18. (1) Every listed entity shall constitute a qualified and independent audit committee in
accordance witthe terms of reference, subject to the following:
(a)The audit committee shall have minimum three directors asberesn

i(10) The performance evalwuation of i ndependent
directors:
Provided thatintheabowev al uati on the directors who are subjec
9 nserted ibid.
100 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
101 The paragraph appearing at the endegfulation 17A converted to an Explanation by the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
2Substit utreedg ufloart ifosnwbb by t he SEBI (ListingSecOddl i gati o
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(b)1°J At leas] two-thirds of the members of audit committee shalindependent
directors'®and in case of a listed entity having outstanding SR equity shares, the
audit committee shall only comprise of independent directors].

(c)All members of auditommittee shall be financially literate and at least one member
shall have accounting or related financial management expertise.

Explanation(l)For t he purpose of this regulatio
the ability to read and understand basic financial statements i.e. balance sheet, profit
and loss account, and statement of cash flows.

Explanation (2}.For the purpose of this regtitan , a member shdtle considered

to have accounting or related financial management expertise if he or she possesses
experience in finance or accounting, or requisite professional certification in
accounting, or any other comparable experience or bagkdrwhich results in the

i ndividual 6s financi al sophistication,
executive officer, chief financial officer or other senior officer with financial
oversight responsibilities.

(d)The chairperson of the audit committealstbe an independent director and he
109/she] shall be present at Annual general meeting to answer shareholder queries.

(e)The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary to the audit committee.

(f) The audit committee at its discretion shall invite the finatheector or head of the
finance function, head of internal audit and a representative of the statutory auditor
and any other suatxecutives to be present at the meetings of the committee:
Provided that occasionally the audit committee may meet without the presence of
any executives of the listed entity.

(2) The listed entity shall conduct the meetings of the audit committee in the following
manner:
(a)The audit committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than one
hundred and twenty days shall elapse between two meetings.

(b)The quorum for audit committee meeting shall either be two members or one third
of the members of the audit contt@e, whichever is greater, with at least two
independent directors.

(c)The audit committee shall have powers to investigate any activity within its terms
of reference, seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal or other
professional advice a@nsecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary.

(3) The role of theaudit committee and the information to be reviewed by the audit
committee shall be as specified in Part C of Schedule II.

103 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumm,e.f. 1.1.2022.

104 nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations abBésclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2019, w.e.f. 29.7.2019.

105 nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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Nomination and remuneration canmittee.
19. (1) The board of directors shall constitute the nomination and remuneration committee
as follows:
(a)the committee shall comprise of at least three directors ;
(b)all directorsof the committee shall be naxecutive directors; and
(c)at least9two-thirdg of the directors shall be independent direct8ffg**] .

(2) The Chairperson of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be an independent
director:
Provided that the chairperson of the listed entity, whether executive exxecutive,
maybe appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and shall
not chair such Committee.

108 (2A) The quorum for a meeting of the nomination and remuneration committee shall
be either two members or one third of the members of the coramitteichever is
greater, including at least one independent director in attenflance.

(3) The Chairperson of the nomination and remuneration committee may be present at the
annual general meeting, to answer the shareholders' queries; however, it shall be up to
the chairperson to decide who shall answer the queries.

109(3A) The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet at least once in a year.]

(4) The role of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be as specified as in Part D
of the Schedule II.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

20. (1) The listed entity shall constitute a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to
specifically look intot9various aspects of interest] of shareholders, debenture holders
and other security holders.

(2) The chairperson dhis committee shall be a n@xecutive director.

11(2A) At least three directors, with at least one being an independent director, shall be
members of the CommittééJand in case of a listed entity having outstanding SR equity

106 Substituted by th8EBI (Listing Obligationsad Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendume,. e . f . 1. 1. 20fRi2f fyorpdeérmee wtod ds 0

107The wordsand symboFf{and in case of a listed entity having outstanding SR equity shares, twoahinds
nominaton and remuneration committee shall comprise of independent dirftctore mi t t SEBI (Listing t h e
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendum,
w.e.f. 1.1.2022.

108 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

109 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

WSubstitut e dthd neechanisin ef redressatos gridvancesb ySEBI kListing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

111 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

112 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2019, w.e.f. 29.7.2019.
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shares, at least two thgdf the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall comprise of
independent directors].]

113(3) The Chairperson of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be present at the
annual general meetings to answer queries of the security hplders.

114(3A) Thestakeholders relationship committee shall meet at least once in a year.]

(4) The role of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be as specified as in Part D of
the Schedule II.

Risk Management Committee.
21. (1) Theboard of directorshall constitute a Risk Management Committee.

(2) 1°[The Risk Management Committee shall have minimum three members with majority
of them being members of the board of directors, including at least one independent
director and in case of a listed entity having outstanding SR equity shares, at least two
thirds of the Risk Management Committee shall comprise independent directors.]

(3) The Chairperson of the Risk management committee shall be a member of the board of
directors and senior executives of the listed entity may be members of the committee.

119(3A) Therisk management committee shall meet at [Edgtvice] in a yeai,

119(3B) The quorum for a meeting of the Risk Management Committee shall be either two
members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is higher, including at least
one membr of the board of directors in attendance.

(3C) The meetings of the risk management committee shall be conducted in such a manner
that on a continuous basis not more than one hundred and eighty days shall elapse between
any two consecutive meetings.]

(4) The board of directors shall define the role and responsibility of the Risk Management
Committee and may delegate monitoring and reviewing of the risk management plan to
the committee and such other functions as it may deert%guch function shall
specificdly cover cyber securify

113gypstituted by th8EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.ef. 1.4.2019Prior to the substitution, sutegulation (3) read as follows:
A(Bhe board of directors shall decide other membe
114 nserted ibid.
115 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Seconddmergh
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.Prior to the substitutionregblation (2) read as follows:
AThe majority of members of Risk Management Commi
directors and in case of a listed entity having outstagd8R equity shares, at least two thirds of the
Ri sk Management Committee shall comprise of indep
118 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
7S u b st i toun ceedbe SEBt (Lisling Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021
118|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
119 Insered by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
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29provided that the role and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee shall
mandatorily include the performance of functions specified in Part D of Schediule 1.

121(5) The provisions of this regulation shall be applicable to:
i. the top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of market capitalization as at the
end of the immediate preceding financial year; and,
ii. a oOo6high vaJlue debt | isted entityod.

127(6) TheRisk Management Committee shall have powers to seek information from any
employee, obtain outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders
with relevant expertise, if it considers necesgary.

Vigil mechanism.
22. (1) The listed atity shall formulate a vigil mechanisk/whistle blower policyjfor
directors and employees to report genuine concerns.
(2) The vigil mechanism shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of
director(s) or employee(s) or any other person atail the mechanism and also provide
for direct access to the chairperson of the audit committee in appropriate or exceptional
cases.

Related party transactions.

23. (1) Thelistedentity shall formulate a policy on materiality of related party transactions
and on dealing with related party transactiéfigncluding clear threshold limits duly
approved by the board of directors and such policy shall be reviewed by the board of
direcrs at least once every three years and updated accotdingly

129 Provided that a transaction with a related party shall be considered material, if the

transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions

during a finacial year, exceeds rupees one thousand crore or ten per cent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the
listed entity, whichever is lower.]

1201nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
121 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforalsstitution, sukregulation (5yead as follows:
fi(5) The provisions of this regulation shall be applicable to top [10i8€d entities, determined on the
basis of market capitalisation, as at the end of theediate previous financial year
122 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
123|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
124 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
125 Substitued by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure RequiremeBisih(Amendment) Regulations,
2021,w.e.f. 1.4.2022. Prior to the substitution, the provision read as under:
i Ex p | a-Adransaction.with a related party shall be considered matfethial transaction(s) to be entered
into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of
the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statementsted the lis
entity. o
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128(1A) Notwithstanding the above, [with effeétom July 01, 2019f’ a transaction
involving payments made to a related party with respect to brand usage or royalty shall be
considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with
previous transactions during andincial year, exceed?¥five} percent of the annual
consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the
listed entity.]

(2) All related party transactiort$Jand subsequent material modificatiosishll require prior
approval of the audit committé&of the listed entity]:

B Provided that only those members of the audit committee, who are independent

directors, shall approve related party transactjons

137 Provided further that:
@theaudit committee of a | isted senandy
disclose it as part of the policy on materiality of related party transactions and on
dealing with related party transactions;
(b) a related party transaction to which the subsybf a listed entity is a party but
the listed entity is not a party, shall require prior approval of the audit committee of
the listed entity if the value of such transaction whether entered into individually or
taken together with previous transacsaturing a financial year exceeds ten per
cent of the annual consolidated turnover, as per the last audited financial statements
of the listed entity;
(c) with effect from April 1, 2023, a related party transaction to which the subsidiary
of a listed entif is a party but the listed entity is not a party, shall require prior
approval of the audit committee of the listed entity if the value of such transaction
whether entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial gar, exceeds ten per cent of the annual standalone turnover, as
per the last audited financial statements of the subsidiary;
(d) prior approval of the audit committee of the listed entity shall not be required
for a related party transaction to which the listed subsidiary is a party but the listed
entity is not a party, if regulation 23 asdbregulation (2) ofegulation 15 of these
regulations are applicable to such listed subsidiary.
Explanation: For related party transactions of unlisted subsidiaries of a listed
subsidiary as referred to in (d) above, the prior approval of the audit committee of
the listed subsidiary shall suffice.]

(3) Audit committee may grant omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to
be entered into by tHested entity subject to the following conditions, namely

126 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

127 |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2019

128 Substituted for theword "two" by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third
Amendment) Regulations, 2019, w.e.f. June 27, 2019

129 Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremer@tif Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

130 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

131 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigdom, w.e.f. 1.1.2022.

132 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.
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(@) the audit committee shall lay down the criteria for granting the omnibus approval
in line with the policy on related party transactions of the listed entity and such
approval shall be applicable in respect of transactions which are repetitive in nature;

(b) the audit committee shall satisfy itself regarding the need for such omnibus
approval ad that such approval is in the interest of the listed entity;

(c) theomnibus approval shall specify:

) the name(s) of the related party, nature of transaction, period of
transaction, maximum amount of transactions that shall be entered into,

(i) the indicative base price / current contracted price and the formula for
variation in the price if any; and

(i) such other conditions as the audit committee may deem fit:

Provided that where the need for related party transaction cannot be foreseen
and aforesid details are not available, audit committee may grant omnibus
approval for such transactions subject to their value not exceeding rupees one
crore per transaction.

(d) the audit committee shall review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related
party transactions entered into by the listed entity pursuant to each of the omnibus
approvals given.

(e) Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one year and shall
require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year:

(4) All material rebted party transaction${and subsequent material modifications as
defined by the audit committee under segulation (2)Jshall require*{prior] approval
of the shareholders through resolution &titho related party shall vote to approve] such
resolutiors whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not:
139 Providedthat prior approval of the shareholders of a listed entity shall not be required
for a related party transaction to which the listed subsidiary is a party but the listed entity
is not a party, if regulation 23 and stdgulation (2) of regulation 15 ofdke regulations
are applicable to such listed subsidiary.
Explanation: For related party transactions of unlisted subsidiaries of a listed subsidiary
as referred above, the prior approval of the shareholders of the listed subsidiary shall
suffice.]
[Provided 37further] that the requirements specified under this-segulation shall not
apply in respect of a resolution plan approved under section 31 of the Insolvency Code,
subject to the event being disclosed to the recognized stock exchanges within ohe day
the resolution plan being approved]

(5) Theprovisions of sulyegulations (2), (3) and (4) shall not be applicable in the following
cases:

133 Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremer@tif Amendment) Regulations,

2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

134 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

135 Substituted for the wordst he r el ated parties shall abstainm from v
and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018.

136 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

137 Insertedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regoients) $ixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021,w.e.f. 1.4.2022.

138 |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.
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(a)transactions entered into between two government companies;

(b)transactiongntered into between a holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary
whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the
shareholders at the general meeting for approval.

139(c) transactions entered into between two whollyned subsidiaries of the listed
holding company, whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed
before the shareholders at the general meeting for approval.]
Explanation- For the purpose of clause (a), "government company(ies)" nGaareynment
company as defined in sigection (45) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(6) Theprovisions of this regulation shall be applicable to all prospective transactions.

(7) 140[** *]

(8) All existing material related party contracts or arrangementseghieto prior to the date
of notification of these regulations and which may continue beyond such date shall be
placed for approval of the shareholders in the first General Meeting subsequent to
notification of these regulations.

141(9) The listed entityshall submit to the stock exchanges disclosures of related party
transactions in the format as specified by the Board from time to time, and publish the same
on its website:
Provided that a o6high value debt gWithgst ed ent
standalone financial results for the half year:

Provided further that the listed entity shall make such disclosures every six months within
fifteen days from the date of publication of its standalone and consolidated financial results:

Provided further that the listed entity shall make such disclosures every six months on the
date of publication of its standalone and consolidated financial results with effect from
April 1, 2023.]

Corporate governance requirements with respect to subsidry of listed entity.

139 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiresh¢gixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022.
140 Omitted bythe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremergsitifi Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 1.4.2022Prior to the omission, sutegulation (7) read as under:
fi ( Koy the pupose of this regulation, all entities falling under the ééin of related parties shaibt vote to
approve the relevant transactiorespective of whether the entity isa partytogghar t i cul ar transact.
141 Substituted by the SEBListing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen&ixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021,w.e.f. 1.4.2022Prior to the substitution, stiegulation (9) read as under
i(9) The listed entity shaldl submit widaldme and 30 day s
consolidated financial results for the half year, disclosures of related party transactions on a consolidated
basis, in the format specified in the relevant accounting standards for annual results to the stock exchanges
and publish the same ats website.
Provided that a 6high value debt | isted entity6 shal
results for the half year; o
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24.147(1) At least one independent director on the board of directors of the listed entity shalll
be a director on the board of directors of an unlisted material subsidiary, whether
incorporated in India or not.
Explanation- For the purpses of this provision, notwithstanding anything to the
contrary <contained in regulation 16, t he
subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated
income or net worth respectively, ofetHisted entity and its subsidiaries in the
immediately preceding accounting year.]

(2) The audit committee of the listed entity shall also review the financial statements, in
particular, the investments made by the unlisted subsidiary.

(3) The minutes of the meetings of the board of directors of the unlisted subsidiary shall be
placed at the meeting of the board of directors of the listed entity.

(4) The management of the unlisted subsidiary shall periodically bring to the notice of the
board of directors of the listed entity, a statement of all significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the unlisted subsidiary.

Explanaton- For t he purpose of this regulati on,
arrangement 0 sividadl fransacéoa or armanggment ithedt exceeds or is

likely to exceed ten percent of the total revenues or total expenses or total assets or total
liabilities, as the case may be, of the unlist&§t**] subsidiary for the immediately
preceding accountingear.

(5) A listed entity shall not dispose of shares in its material subsidiary resulting in reduction
of its shareholding (either on its own or together with other subsidiaries) to les&‘fban
equal tg fifty percent or cease the exercise of control diiersubsidiary without passing
a special resolution in its General Meeting except in cases where such divestment is made
under a scheme of arrangement duly approved by a Court/Tribunal[, or under a resolution
plan duly approved under section 31 of thelnsncy Code and such an event is disclosed
to the recognized stock exchanges within one day of the resolution plan being
approved}®,

(6) Selling, disposing and leasing of assets amounting to more than twenty percent of the
assets of the material subsidiaryan aggregate basis during a financial year shall require
prior approval of shareholders by way of special resolution, unless the sale/disposal/lease
is made under a scheme of arrangement duly approved by a Court/Tribunal[, or under a
resolution plan dyl approved under section 31 of the Insolvency Code and such an event

142 Substituted by theEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regul&@i;,

w.e.f. 1.4.2019. Prior to the substitution, selgulation (1) read as follows:

Ai(l) At | east one independent director on the board
board of directors of an unlisted material subsidiaryd or por ated i n I ndia. 0

“WWord fdAmat er i alSEBId¢Listing ®bdigdtions und Disclsure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

144nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

145 nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.
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is disclosed to the recognized stock exchanges within one day of the resolution plan being
approved}*.

(7) Where a listed entity has a listed subsidiary, which is itself a holding comgany, t
provisions of this regulation shall apply to the listed subsidiary in so far as its subsidiaries
are concerned.

14T Secretarial Audit **%and Secretarial Compliance Repo.

24A. %9 (1) Every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidianesrporated in India

shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex a secretarial audit report given by a company
secretary in practice, in such form as specified, with the annual report of the listed] entity.
1501(2) Every listed entity shall submit aecretarial compliance report in such form as
specified, to stock exchanges, within sixty days from end of each financial year.}

Obligations with respect to independent directors.
25. (1) No person shall be appointent continue as an alternate director for an
independent director of a listed entity with effect from October 1, 2018.

(2) The maximum tenure of independent directors shall be in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, in thisngggeom time to time.

157(2A). The appointment, rappointment or removal of an independent director of a listed
entity, shall be subject to the approval of shareholders by way of a special resolution.]

153 Provided that where a special resolution for éippointment of an independent
directorfails to get the requisite majority of votes but the votes cast in favour of the
resolution exceethe votes cast against the resolution and the votes cast by the public
shareholders in favowof the resolution exceetthe votes cast against the resolution,
then the appointment of sueim independent director shall be deemed to have been
made under sulegulation (2A):

148 Insated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.

17 nserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. the date specified in tipeovision.

148|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

149 Numbered as sukegulation (1) and substitutedy the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Secordimendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, it read as
follows:

AEvery |listed entity and its material unl i sted ¢
secretarial audit and shall annex with its annual reporsearetarial audit report, given by a company
secretary in practice, in such form as may be spec

150 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
151 Substituted by theEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. the date specified in the provision. Prior to the substitutionregydation (1) read as follows:
(1) A p eotsergeras anlmdepeindemt director in more than seven listed entities:
Provided that any person who is serving as a whole time director in any listed entity shall serve as an
independent director in not more than three I|iste
152 |nserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumm,e.f. 1.1.2022.
153 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendnent) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
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Provided further that an independent director appointed under the first proviso shall
be removed onlyif the votes cast in favour of the resolution proposing the removal
exceed thevotes cast against the resolution and the votes cast by the public
shareholders in favour of

the resolution exceed the votes cast against the resojution.

(3) The independent dickors of the listed entity shall hold at least one meeting in a
BS4financial] year, without the presence of Aimdependent directors and members of the
management and all the independent directors shall strive to be present at such meeting.

(4) The independdrdirectors in the meeting referred in sudgulation (3) shalinter alia-

(a)review the performance of nandependent directors and the board of directors as a
whole;

(b) review the performance of the chairperson of the listed entity, taking into account the
views of executive directors and rerecutive directors;

(c) assessthe quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
management of the listed entity and the board of directors that is necessary for the
board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

(5) An independent director ah be held liable, only in respect of such acts of omission or
commission by the listed entity which had occurred with her] knowledge,
attributable through processes of board of directors, and with*%iser] consent or
connivance or where h&/[/she] had not acted diligently with respect to the provisions
contained in these regulations.

(6) An independent director who resigns or is removed from the board of directors of the listed
entity shall be replaced by a new independent director by listeg antite earliest but
not later thart®¥{*** ] three months from the date of such vacaligy** :
Provided that where the listed entity fulfils the requirement of independent directors in its
board of directors without filling the vacancy created by suclgmasion or removal, the
requirement of replacement by a new independent director shall not apply.

(7) The listed entity shall familiarise the independent directors through various programmes
about the listed entity, including the following:
(a) nature of the indstry in which the listed entity operates;
(b) business model of the listed entity;
(c) roles, rights, responsibilities of independent directors; and

154 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

155|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Aergh&egulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

156 |Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

157 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Améngegrlations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

The words fithe i mmedi ate next me e tSEBI@.istingObligdtiens boar d o
and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendum, w.e.f.
1.1.2022

¥The symbol and wor dsmittéd, by tdSEBE (ListimgeOQbligatiens dnc Dislosare o
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendeifn,1.1.2022.
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(d) any other relevant information.

189(8) Every independent director shall, at the first meeting of the boamdhioh he
participates as a director and thereafter at the first meeting of the board in every financial year
or whenever there is any change in the circumstances which may affect his status as an
independent director, submét declaration that he meets tbeteria of independence as
provided in clause (b) of sulegulation (1) of regulation 16 and that he is not aware of any
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or
impact his ability to discharge his kg with an objective independent judgment and without
any external influence.

(9) The board of directors of the listed entity shall take on record the declaration and
confirmation submitted by the independent director underesgblation (8) after und&king
due assessment of the veracity of the same.

(10) With effectfrom 1Y January 1, 2022 the top!%4100Q listed entities by market
capitalization calculated as on March 31 of the preceding financial year, shall undertake
Directors and Officersinsunac e ( 6D and O insurancedo) for al
such quantum and for such risks as may be determined by its board of directors.]

163(11). No independent directowho resigns from a listed entjtghall be appointed as an
executive / whole time director on the board of the listed entity, its holding, subsidiary or
associate company or on the board of a company belonging to its promoter group, unless a
period of one year has elapsed from the datesfnation as an independent director.]

¥4 (12) A 6high value debt | isted entity6 sha
and O insurance) for all its independent directors for such sum assured and for such risks as
may be determined by it©hard of directors.]

1yObligations with respect to employees including senior management®9key
managerial personnel] directors and promoters.]
26. (1) A director shall not be a member in more than ten committees or act as chairperson
of more than five committees across all listed entities in whicfi’fishe] is a director
which shall be determined as follows:

160 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and DisclosBegjuirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018
w.e.f. 1.4.2019 or the date specified in the provisions.

161 Substitutedfor t he wor d, nu mbGCetoberl, 268 & y $EBId{lesting Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendu,.1.2022

162 Substitutedfor t h e n BN® @ r bSEBI t(Listtng Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third
Amendment) Regutaons, 2021 read with the corrigendumeg.f. 1.1.2022

163 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022.

184 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations abisclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

165 Substituted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2016, w.e.f. 04.01.2017. Prior to substitution, the title read as follows

fiObligations with respect to directors and senior manage€ment

¥Substituted for the wobydwe SEBk @igtingnObligaiane and dikclospre r sons o
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations220w.e.f. 17.1.2023

167 |Inserted by the SEBI (ListmObligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(a) the limit of the committees on which arelttor mayserve in all public limited
companies, whether listed or not, shall be included and all other companies
including private limited companies, foreign compat®s, 6 hi gh val ue de
e nt i and eosPapies under Section 8 of the Companies 2043 shall be
excluded;

(b) for the purpose of determination of limit, chairpersonship and membership of the
audit committee and the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee alone shall be
considered.

(2) Every director shall inform the listed entity about twnmittee positions he or she
occupies in other listed entities and notify changes as and when they take place.

(3) All members of the board of directors and senior management personnel shall affirm
compliance with the code of conduct of board of directodssamior management on an
annual basis.

( 4) 169[***]

(5) Senior management shall make disclosures to the board of directors relating to all material,
financial and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a
potential conflict withthe interest of the listed entity at large.

Explanation For the purpose of this subgulation, conflict of interest relates to dealing
in the shares of listed entity, commercial dealings with bodies, which have shareholding
of management and their relees etc.

179(6) No employee including key managerial personnel or director or promoter of a listed
entity shall enter into any agreement for himsélf/herself] or on behalf of any other
person, with any shareholder or any other third party with regarihpensation or profit
sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of such listed entity, unless prior
approval for the same has been obtained from the Board of Directors as well as public
shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution:

Providedthat such agreement, if any, whether subsisting or expired, entered during the
preceding three years from the date of coming into force of thisegulbation, shall be
disclosed to the stock exchanges for public dissemination:

Provided further that ssisting agreement, if any, as on the date of coming into force of
this subregulation shall be placed for approval before the Board of Directors in the
forthcoming Board meeting:

168 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

169 Omittedby the SEBI (Listing Oligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the omissienbregulation (4) read as follows:
fiNon-executive directors shall disclose their shareholding, held either by them or on a beneficial basis
for any other persons in the listed entity in which they are proposed to be appointed as directors, in the
notice to the general meeting called for appointment of such diréctor.

170 |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Ahiehdment) Regulations, 2016,

w.e.f. 04.01.2017.

1" Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

39



Provided further that if the Board of Directors approve such agreemessrtteeshall be
placed before the public shareholders for approval by way of an ordinary resolution in the
forthcoming general meeting:

Provided further that all interested persons involved in the transaction covered under the
agreement shall abstain frorating in the general meeting.

Explanation- For the purposes of thissube gul at i on, O0interested
person holding voting rights in the listed entity and who is in any manner, whether directly
or indirectly, interested in aagreement or proposed agreement, entered into or to be
entered into by such a person or by any employee or key managerial personnel or director
or promoter of such listed entity with any shareholder or any other third party with respect
to compensation qrofit sharing in connection with the securities of such listed entity.]

"Ivacancies in respect of certain Key Managerial Personnel

26A. (1) Any vacancy in the office of Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, Whole
Time Director or Manager shall lided by the listed entity at the earliest and in any case
not later than three months from the date of such vacancy:

Provided that the listed entity shall not fill such vacancy by appointing a person in interim
capacity, unless such appointment is madeccordance with the laws applicable in case

of a fresh appointment to such office and the obligations under such laws are made
applicable to such person.

(2) Any vacancy in the office of the Chief Financial Officer shall be filled by the listed
entity at the earliest and in any case not later than three months from the date of such
vacancy:

Provided that the listed entity shall not fill such vacancy by appointing a person in interim
capacity, unless such appointment is made in accordance with thapalicable in case

of a fresh appointment to such office and the obligations under such laws are made
applicable to such persg¢n.

Other corporate governance requirements.
27. (1) The listed entity may, at its discretion, comply with requirements as specifie
Part E of Schedule I1.

(2) (a) Thelisted entity shall submit a quarterly compliance report on corporate governance
in the format as specified by the Board from time to time to the recognised stock
exchange(s) within’Jtwenty one] days from’q the end of eaduarter.

(b) Details of all material transactions with related parties shall be disclosed along with
the report mentioned in clause (a) of sagulation (2).

172 Insertedby the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligatiod<Dasclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2022.f. 15.72023

W Substituted f o SEBIi(Listifigt Gbkgations &ng Didclbsare Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

"Substitutedhdeédr bSkBlt(Lising Obtightions and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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1Y (ba) Details of cyber security incidents or breaches or loss of da@caments
shall be disclosed along with the report mentioned in clause (a) -@égulation (2),
as may be specifigd.

(c) The report mentioned in clause (a) of safulation (2) shall be signed either by the
compliance officer or the chief executive offiad the listed entity.

In-principle approval of recognized stock exchange(s).
28. (1) The |l isted entity, bef oprrei nicsispuliendg aspepcl
from recognised stock exchange(s) in the following manner:
(a) where the securities aristed only on recognised stock exchange(s) having
nationwide trading terminals, from all such stock exchange(s);

(b) where the securities are not listed on any recognised stock exchange having
nationwide trading terminals, from all the stock exchange(shinh the securities
of the issuer are proposed to be listed;

(c) where the securities are listed on recognised stock exchange(s) having nationwide
trading terminals as well as on the recognised stock exchange(s) not having
nationwide trading terminals, from all recognised stock exchange(s) having
nationwide trading teninals:

(2) Therequirement of obtaining tprinciple approval from recognised stock exchange(s),
shall not be applicable for securities issued pursuant to the scheme of arrangement for
which the listed entity has already obtained Qlojection Letter from reognised stock
exchange(s) in accordance with regulation 37.

Prior Intimations.
29. (1) The listed entity shall give prior intimation to stock exchange about the meeting of
the board of directors in which any of the following proposals is due to be casider

(a)financial reaults viz. quarterly, half yearly, or annyat the case may be;
(b)proposal for buyback of securities;
(c)proposal for voluntary delisting by the listed entity from the stock exchange(s);

(d)fund raising by way of further public offer, righissue, American Depository
Receipts/Global Depository Receipts/Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds,
qualified institutions placement, debt issue, preferential issue or any other method
and for determination of issue price:

Provided that intimation shallso be given in case of any annual genenateting

or extraordinary general meeting or postal ballot that is proposed to be held for

obtaining shareholder approval for further fund raising indicating type of issuance.

175 Insertedby the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulatgr2023w.e.f. 15.72023
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(e)declaratio recommendation of dividend, issue of convertible securities including
convertible debentures or of debentures carrying a right to subscribe to equity
shares or the passing over of dividend.

(f) the proposal for declaration of bonus securtis*]:

177[***]

(2) The intimation required under subgulation (1), shall be given at least two working
days in advance, excluding the date of the intimatimhdate of the meding:
Provided that intimation regarding item specified in clause (a) ofegidation(1),
to be discussed at the meeting of board of directors shall be given at least five days in
advance(excluding the date of the intimation and date of the meeting), and such
intimation shallincludethe dae of suchmeeting of board of directors.

(3)Thelisted entity shall givéntimation to the stock exchange(s) at least eleven working
days before any of the following proposal is placed before the board of directors
(a)any alteration in the form or nature of any of its securities that are listed dodke s

exchange or in the rights or privileges of the holders thereof.

(b)any alteration in the date on which, the interest on debenturesnals, orthe
redemption amount of redeemable shares or of debenturbends, shall be
payable.

Disclosure ofevents or information.
30. (1) Every listed entity shall make disclosures of any events or information which,
in the opinion of the board of directors of the listed company, is material.

(2) Events specified in Para A of Part A of Schedule Ill are deembd toaterial
events and listed entity shall make disclosure of such events.

(3) The listed entity shall make disclosure of events specified in Para B of Part A of
Schedule I, based on application of the guidelines for materiality, as specified in
subregulation (4).

(4) (i) The listed entity shall consider the following criteria for determination of
materiality of events/ information:
(a)the omission of an event or information, which is likely to result in
discontinuity oralteration of event or information already available publicly;
or

176 The wordsiiwhere such proposal is communicated to the board of directors of the listed entity as part of the

agenda papers miitedby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, @21 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

177 Omitted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 1.10.2018. Prior to the omission, the proviso read as follows:

AiProvided that i n cas e listethentitydsenot brethre agenda of theeting dfloard s by t h
of directors, prior intimation is not required to be
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(b)the omission of an event or information is likely to result in significant

market reaction if the said omission came to light at a later #&tex]

19 (c) the omission of an event or information, whose value or the expected
impact in terms of value, exceeds the lower offtil®wing:

(1) two percent of turnover, as per the last audited consolidated financial
statements of the listed entity;

(2) two percemnof net worth, as per the last audited consolidated financial
statements of the listed entity, except in case the arithmetic value of
the net worth is negative;

(3) five percent of the average of absolute value of profit or loss after tax,
as per the laghree audited consolidated financial statements of the
listed entity]

189(d) In case where the criteria specified in stihuses (a), (b) and (c) is not
applicable, an event or information may be treated as being material if in the
opinion of the board adlirectors of the listed entity, the event or information
is considered material:

Provided that any continuing event or information which becomes material
pursuant to notification of these amendment regulations shall be disclosed by
the listed entitywithin thirty days from the date of comingto effect ofthe
Securities ad Exchange Boardf India (Listing Obligations red Disclosure
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, .2023

(if) The listed entity shall frame a policy for determination of materiality, based
on criteria specified in this sutegulation, duly approved by its board of
directors, which shall be disclosed on its website.

181 Provided that such a policy for deterration of materiality shall not dilute
any requirement specified under the provisions of these regulations:

Provided further that such a policy for determination of materiality shall assist
the relevant employees of the listed entity in identifying anymal material
event or information and reporting the same to the authorized Key Managerial
Personnel, in terms of striegulation (5), for determining the materiality of the
said event or information and for making the necessary disds to the stock
exchange(s).]

(5) The board of directors of the listed entity shall authorize one or more Key
Managerial Personnel for the purpose of determining materiality of an event or

178 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Semnd Amendrent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023

17 Substituted byhe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023 Prior to the substitution, the selaue read as
follows:

fic)In case where the criteria specified in stlbuses (a) and (b) are not applicable, an event/information may
be treated as being material if in the opinion of the board of directors of listed entity, the event / information is
consiered material 0

180 |nserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023

18l1nserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing ObligaimhBisclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2028.f. 157.2023
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information and for the purpose of making disclosures to stock exchange(s) under
this regulation and the contact details of such personnel shall be also disclosed to
the stock exchange(s) and as well as on the listed entity's website.

187(6) The listed entity shaflrst disclose tahestock exchange(s) all events or information

which are material in terms dfie provisions of thisegulation as soon as reasonably
possibleand in any case not later than the following
(i) thirty minutesfrom the closure of the meeting of the board of directors in which
the decision pertaining to the event or information has been taken;
(i) twelve hours from the occurrence of the event or information, in case the event
or information is emanating from thiin the listed entity;
(i) twenty four hours from the occurrence of the event or information, in case the
event or information is not emanating from within the listed entity:

Provided that disclosure with respect to events for which timelines have been
specified in Part A of Schedule Il shall be made within such timelines:

Provided further that in case the disclosure is made after the timelines specified
under this regulation, the listed entity shall, along with such disclosure provide the
explanatiorfor the delay]

(7) The listed entity shall, with respect to disclosures referred to in this regulation,
make disclosures updating material developments on a regular basis, till such time
the event is resolved/closed, with relevant explanations.

(8) The listed entity shall disclose on its website all such events or information
which has been disclosed to stock exchange(s) under this regulation , and such
disclosures shall be hosted on the website of the listed entity for a minimum period
of five yearsand thereafter as per the archival policy of the listed entity, as disclosed
on its website.

(9) The listed entity shall disclose all events or information with respect to
subsidiaries which are material for the listed entity.

182 Sybstituted byhe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023 Priorto the substitution, the suiegulation read as

follows:

fi(6) The listed entity shall first disclose to stock exchange(s) of all events, as specified in Part A of
Schedule Ill, or information as soon as reasonably possible and not later than twenty four hours from
the occurrence of event or information:

Providedthat in case the disclosure is made after twenty four hours of occurrence of the event or
information, the listed entity shall, along with such disclosures provide explanation for delay:

Provided further that disclosure with respect to events specifiadlpara 4 of Para A of Part A of
Schedule Ill shall be made withint he ti mel i nes specified therein.
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(10) The listed entitylsall provide specific and adequate reply to all queries raised
by stock exchange(s) with respect to any events or information:

Provided that the stock exchange(s) shall disseminate information and clarification
as soon as reasonably practicable.

(11) Thelisted entity may on its own initiative also, confirm or deny any reported
event or information to stock exchange{®):]

184 Provided that the top 100 listed entitf€3[***] and thereafter the top 250 listed
entities 89, with effect from the date as maye specified by the Boaijdshall
confirm, deny or clarify any reported event or information in the mainstream media
which is not general in nature and which indicates that rumours of an impending
specific material event or information in terms of the psmns of this regulation

are circulating amongst the investing public, as soon as reasonably possible and not
later than twenty four hours from the reporting of the event or information:

Provided further that if the listed entity confirms the reportechewe information,
it shall also provide the current stage of such event or information.

Explanationi The top 100 and 250 listed entities shall be determined on the basis
of market capitalization, as at the end of the immediately preceding financigl year.

(12) In case where an event occurs or an information is available with the listed
entity, which has not been indicated in Para A or B of Part A of Schedule IIl, but
which may have material effect on it, theted entity is required to make adequate
disclosures in regard thereof.

187(13) In case an event or information is required to be disclosed by the listed entity
in terms of the provisions of this regulation, pursuant to the receipt of a
communication fom any regulatory, statutory, enforcement or judicial authority,
the listed entity shall disclose such communication, along with the event or
information, unless disclosure of such communication is prohibited by such
authority.]

183 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Relgtions, 2023 w.é. . 15.7.2023 for the symbol A. 0.
184 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023

185The symbol s, w o (withseffeet fram Octabere ,r a 2 ®it#J Iy theSecuritiesand
ExchangeBoard of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2023w.e.f 01.10.2023.

Substituted for the s(wimbbl ef f wot d§& rbstmedSAcpritiasdad a4l s 202 4
ExchangeBoardof India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2023 w.e.f 01.10.2023.

187 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023
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¥ Disclosure requirements for certain types of agreemets binding listed
entities:

30A. (1) All the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities, related parties,
directors, key managerial personnel and employees of a listed entity or of its holding,
subsidiary and associatempany, who are parties to the agreements specified in
clause 5A of para A of part A of schedule Il to these regulations, shall inform the
listed entity about the agreement to which such a listed entity is not a party, within two
working days of enterinqito such agreements or signing an agreement to enter into
such agreements:

Provided that for the agreements that subsist as on the date of notification of clause 5A
to para A of part A of schedule lll, the parties to the agreements shall informeke list
entity, about the agreement to which such a listed entity is not a party and the listed
entity shall in turn disclose all such subsisting agreements to the Stock Exchanges and
on its website within the timelines as specified by the Board.

(2) The listel entity shall disclose the number of agreements that subsist as on the date
of notification of clause 5A to para A of part A of schedule lll, their salient features,
including the link to the webpage where the complete details of such agreements are
available, in the Annual Report for the financial year 2@32orfor the financial year
202324.]

Holding of specified securities and shareholding pattern.

31. (1) The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange(s) a statement showing holding
of securitiesand shareholding pattern separatily eachclassof securities, in the
format specified by the Board from time to time within the following timelines

(a) one day prior to listing of its securities on the stock exchange(s);
(b) on a quarterly basis, within amty one days from the end of each quarter; and,
(c) within ten days of any capital restructuring of the listed entity resulting in a change
exceeding two per cent of the total paid share capital:
Provided that in case of listed entities which have litedt specified securities on SME
Exchange, the above statements shall be submitted on a half yearly basis within twenty
one days from the end of each half year.

(2) The listed entity shall ensure that hundred percent of shareholding of promoter(s) and
promoter group is in dematerialized form and the same is maintained on a continuous basis
in the manner as specified by the Board.

(3) The listed entity shaltomply with circulars or directions issued by the Board from time
to time with respect to maintenanof shareholding in dematerialized form.

188 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
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189(4) All entities falling under promoter and promoter group shall be disclosed separately in
the shareholding pattern appearing on the website of all stock exchanges having
nationwide trading terminals where tepecified securities of the entity are listed, in
accordance with the formats specified by the Board.]

19 Conditions for re-classification of any person as promoter / public

189nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligati@and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 16.11.2018

190 sybstituted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,

2018, w.e.f. 16.11.201&rior to this, the regulations read as:

fiDisclosure of Class of shareholders and Conditions for Reclassification.

31A. (1) All entities falling under promoter and promoter group shall be disclosed separately in the shareholding
pattern appearing on the website of all stock exchanges havingwidgotrading terminals where the
specified securities of the entity are listed, in accordance with the formats specified by SEBI.

(2) The stock exchange, specified in selgulation (1), shall allow modification or reclassification of the
status of theshareholders, only upon receipt of a request from the concerned listed entity or the concerned
shareholders along with all relevant evidence and on being satisfied with the compliance of conditions
mentioned in this regulation.

(3) In case of entities kied on more than one stock exchange, the concerned stock exchanges shall jointly
decide on the application of the entity/ shareholders, as specified-reguiation(2).

(4) In case of transmission/succession/inheritance, the inheritor sliddidséied as promoter.

(5) When a new promoter replaces the previous promoter subsequent to an open offer or in any other manner,
re-classification may be permitted subject to approval of shareholders in the general meeting and compliance
of the following conditions:

(a) Such promoter along with the promoter group and the Persons Acting in Concert shall not hold more
than ten per cent of the paigh equity capital of the entity.

(b) Such promoter shall not continue to have any special rights throughlfor informal arrangements.

All shareholding agreements granting special rights to such entities shall be terminated.

(c) Such promoters and their relatives shall not act as key managerial person for a period of more than three
years from the date ofatr e hol der sé approval

Provided that the resolution of the said shareholders' meeting must specifically grant approval for such
promoter to act as key managerial person.

(6) Where an entity becomes professionally managed and does not have any ideptifiatdter the
existing promoters may be-dassified as public shareholders subject to approval of the shareholders in a
general meeting.

Explanation. For the purposes of this subgulation an entity may be considered as professionally managed,

if -

® No person or group along with persons acting in concert taken together shall hold more than one
per cent paieup equity capital of the entity including any holding of convertibles/outstanding
warrants/ Depository Receipts:

Provided that any mutual fund, Harinsurance company, financial institution, foreign portfolio
investor may individually hold up to ten per cent paflequity capital of the entity including any
holding of convertibles/outstanding warrants/Depository Receipts.

(i) The promoters seeking fassification and their relatives may act as key managerial personnel in
the entity only subject to sharehol dersé approv
the date of sharehol dersdéd approval

(iii) The promoter seeking reclassification along \kithpromoter group entities and the persons acting
in concert shall not have any special right through formal or informal arrangements. All
shareholding agreements granting special rights to such outgoing entities shall be terminated.

(7) Without prejudiceo subregulations (5) and (6), +@assification of promoter as public shareholders

shall be subject to the following conditions:

(a) Such promoter shall not, directly or indirectly, exercise control, over the affairs of the entity.
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31A. (1) For the purpose of this regulation:

(a) Apromot elasgifsg atsie@rkd ngh alel mean al l S |
belonging to the promoter group seekinglassification of status as public.

(b) Apersons relatedctasshéi pabmoneér 6&An
persons with respect to that promotegsgking reclassification who fall
under sukclauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) of clause (pp) of sukgulation (1) of
regulation 2 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

(2) Reclassification of the status of any person as a promoter or public shall be
permitted by the stock exchanges only upon receipt of an application from the
listed entity along with all relevant documents subject to compliance with
conditions specified in these regulaton
Provided thatin case of entities listed on more than one stock exchange, the
concerned stock exchanges shall jointly decide on the application.

1911(3) Reclassification of status of a promoter to public shall be pernfittetie
stock exchanges only upon satisfaction of the following conditions:

(b) Increase in the level gfublic shareholding pursuant to-ckassification of promoter shall not be
counted towards achieving compliance with minimum public shareholding requirement under rule
19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, and the provisions oktigséions.

(C) The event of reclassification shall be disclosed to the stock exchanges as a material event in
accordance with the provisions of these regulations.

(d) Board may relax any condition for-adassification in specific cases, if it is satisfigbout non
exercise of control by the outgoing promoter or its persons acting in concert.

(8) If any public shareholder seeks tectassify itself as promoter, it shall be required to make an open offer
in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Substh@euisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011.
(9) The provisions of subegulations (5), (6) and clause (b) of sub regulation (7) of this regulation shall not
apply, if reclassification of existing promoter or promoter group of the listedyeistas per the resolution
plan approved under section 31 of the Insolvency Code, subject to the following conditions:
(i) the existing promoter and promoter group seekinglassification shall not remain in control of
the listed entity; and
(i) such reclassfication along with the underlying rationale shall be disclosed to the stock
exchanges within one day of the resolution plan being approved.
191 Supstituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, sgulation (3) and clause (a) read as follows:
fi ( 3 )clasRification of status of a promoter/ person belonging to promoter group to public shall be
permitted by the stock exchanges only upon satisfactior dbflowing conditions:
@) an application for reclassification to the stock exchanges has been made by the listed entity
consequent to the following procedures and not later than thirty days from the date of approval by
shareholders in general meeting:
(i)  the promoter(s) seeking-aassification shall make a request forekassification to the listed
entity which shall include rationale for seeking suchclassification and how the conditions
specified in clause (b) below are satisfied;
(i)  the boad of directors of the listed entity shall analyze the request and place the same before
the shareholders in a general meeting for approval along with the views of the board of directors on
the request:
Provided that there shall be a time gap of at lehste months but not exceeding six months between
the date of board meeting and the sharehol der ds
seeking reclassification.
(iii)  the request of the promoter(s) seekinegclassification shall be approdein the general
meeting by an ordinary resolution in which the promoter(s) seekiraassification and persons
related to the promoter(s) seekingatassification shall not vote to approve suckctassification
reqguest. o
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(a) an application for reclassification has been made by the listed entity to the
stock exchanges within thirty days from the date of approval by
shareholders in general meeting aftensuring that the following
procedural requirements have been fulfilled:

(i) the promoter(s) seeking reclassification has made a request for
reclassification to the listed entity along with a rationale for the same
and a description as to how the coiwis specified in clause (b) of sub
regulation (3) of this regulation are satisfied;

(i) the board of directors of the listed entity has analyzed such request in
the immediately next board meeting or within three months from the
date of receipt of the gaiest from its promoter(s), whichever is earlier
and has placed the same before the shareholders in a general meeting
for approval along with the views of the board of directors on the
request:

Provided that there shall be a time gap of at least one nbomthot
exceeding three months between the dates of the board meeting and the
sharehol der s o meeting considering
seeking reclassification.

(i) the request of the promoter(s) seeking reclassification has been
approved in thgeneral meeting by an ordinary resolution in which the
promoter(s) seeking reclassification and the persons related to
him/her/it have not voted to approve such reclassification request:
Provided that the provisions of this scdlause shall not apply in ses:

a where the promoter(s) seeking reclassification and persons related
to the promoter(s) seeking reclassification, together, do not hold
more than one percent of the total voting rights in the listed entity;

b  where reclassification is pursuant to aaice.]

(b) the promoter(s) seeking -otassification and persons related to the
promoter(s) seeking +elassification shall not:
() together, hold more than ten percent of the total voting rights in the
listed entity;

(i) exercise control over the affairs of thieted entity directly or
indirectly;

(i) have any special rights with respect to the listed entity through
formal or informal arrangements including through any shareholder
agreements;

(iv) be represented on the board of directors (including not having a
nominee dector) of the listed entity;

(v) act as @°Jkey managerial persagl]in the listed entity;

(vii be a o6wil ful defaulterd as per the

(vii)  be a fugitive economic offender.

(c) the listed entity shall:
() be compliant with the requirement farinimum public shareholding
as required under regulation 38 of these regulations;
(i) not have trading in its shares suspended by the stock exchanges;

¥2Substituted kfeoyr ntahnea gw o bydite SHBle(Lising rObliggations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulation220w.e.f. 17.1.2023.

49



(i)  not have any outstanding dues to the Board, the stock exchanges or
the depositories.

(4) The promoter(s) skmg reclassification, subsequent teckassification as public,
shall comply with the following conditions:

(a) he!®/she] shall continue to comply with conditions mentioned at sub
clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of clause (b) of subgulation 3 aspecified above
at all times from the date of suchckassification failing which, he shall
automatically be reclassified as promoter/ persons belonging to promoter
group, as applicable;

(b) he'®/she] shall comply with conditions mentioned at-sldusesiv) and
(v) of clause (b) of subegulation 3 for a period of not less than three years
from the date of such+@assification failing which, he shall automatically
be reclassified as promoter/ persons belonging to promoter group, as
applicable.

(5) If any public shareholder seeks tectassify itself as promoter, it shall be required
to make an open offer in accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011.

(6) In case of transmission, succession, inheritance and gift of shares held by a
promoter/ person belonging to the promoter group:

(a) immediately on such event, the recipient of such shares shall be classified as
a promoter/ person belonging to the promgteup, as applicable.

(b) subsequently, in case the recipient classified as a promoter/person belonging
to the promoter group proposes to see&lassification of status as public, it
may do so subject to compliance with conditions specified irragblation
(3) above.

(c) in case of death of a promoter/person belonging to the promoter group, such
person shall automatically cease to be included as a promoter/person
belonging to the promoter group.

(7) A listed entity shall be considered@$ i st ed ent i t yfduwwtoteh no
classification or otherwise, the entity does not have any promoter;

(8) The following events shall deemed to be material events and shall be disclosed by
the listed entity to the stock exchanges as sooeas®nably possible and not later
than twenty four hours from the occurrence of the event:

(a) receipt of request for relassification by the listed entity from the promoter(s)
seeking reclassification;

(b) minutes of the board meeting considering such requeish would include
the views of the board on the request;

(c) submission of application for+&assification of status as promoter/public by
the listed entity to the stock exchanges;

193 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.2021.

1%4|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(d) decision of the stock exchanges on such application as communicated to th
listed entity;

(9) 9 The provisions of subegulations(3), (4) and clauses (a) and (b) of sub
regulation(8) of this regulation shall not apply if reclassification of promoter(s) is
as per the resolution plan approved under section 31 of the Insolvency Code or
pursuant to an order of a Regulator under any law subject to the condition that such
promoter(s) seekmreclassification shall not remain in control of the listed entity.]

[1°%(10) In case of reclassification pursuant to an open offer or a scheme of arrangement,
the provisions of clause (a) of subgulation (3) and clauses (a) and (b) of-sub
regulation (8)of this regulation shall not apply if the intent of the erstwhile
promoter(s) to reclassify has been disclosed in the letter of offer or scheme of
arrangement:

Provided that the provisions of clause (c)(i) of sefulation (3) of this regulation
shall nd apply in case of reclassification pursuant to an open offer.]

197 Special rights to shareholders:
31B.(1) Any special right granted to the shareholders of a listed entity shall be subject
to the approval by the shareholders in a general meeting by way of a special resolution
once in every five years starting from the date of grant of such special right:

Provided that the special rights available to the shareholders of a listed entity as on the
date of coming into force of this regulation shall be subject to the approval by
shareholders by way of a special resolution within a period of five years fromtéhe da

of coming into force of this regulation:

Provided further thahe requirement specified in this regulation shall not be applicable

to the special rights made available by a listed entity to a financial institution registered
with or regulated by th&eserve Bank of India under a lending arrangement in the
normal course of business or to a debenture trustee registered with the Board under a
subscription agreement for the debentures issued by the listed entity, if such financial
institution or the debedure trustee becomes a shareholder of the listed entity as a
consequence of such lending arrangement or subsarigreement for the
debentures.]

195 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, stdgulation (9) read as follows:
iThe pr oviregulaions 3, 4 dnd dausks (a) and (b) of-seulation 8 of this regulation
shall not apply, if reclassification of promoter(s)/ promoter group of thedistentity is as per the
resolution plan approved under section 31 of the Insolvency Code, subject to the condition that such
promoter(s) seekingre | assi fi cati on shall not remain in contr

19 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

197 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Reglations, 2023 w.e.f. 15.2023.

51



Statement of deviation(s) or variation(s).
32. (1) The listed entity shall submiih the stock exchange thalowing statement(s) on a

quarterly basis for public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc. ,

(a) indicating deviations, if any, in the use of proceeds from the objects stated in the
offer document or explanatory statement to the notice for the deneeding, as
applicable;

(b)indicating category wise variation (capital expenditure, sales and marketing,
working capital etc.) between projected utilisation of funds made by it in its offer
document or explanatory statement to the notice for the geneetinmeas
applicable and the actual utilisation of funds.

(2) The statement(s) specified in stdgulation (1), shall be continued to be givendilth
time the issue proceeds have been fully utilised or the purpose for which these proceeds
were raised has been achieved.

(3) The statement(s) specified in srdgulation (1), shall be placed before the audit
committee for review and after such reviewals be submitted to the stock exchange(s).

(4) The listed entity shall furnish an explanation for the variation specified Hneguation
(1), in the directorsdé report in the annual

(5) The listed entity shall prepare an annual statement of fuidedtior purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice, certified by the statutory auditors of
the listed entity, and place it before the audit committee till such time the full money raised
through the issue has been fully izgld.

(6) Where the listed entity has appointed a monitoring agency to monitor utilisation of
proceeds of a*Jpublic issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions
placemerit, the listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange(stamments or report
received from the monitoring agené$qwithin forty-five days from the end of each
quartet.

(7) Where the listed entity has appointed a monitoring agency to monitor the utilisation of
proceeds of &I public issue or rights issue or prefatial issue or qualified institutions
placemerit the monitoring report of such agency shall be placed before the audit
committee orf®Ja quarterlybasig, promptly upon its receipt.
Explanationd 2°qFor the purpose of sutegulatios( 6) and (7), f@dAmonito
shall mean the monitoring agenay specifiedn the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations] 2018.

¥Substituted for the wor dscurifiep and Exchange Board df Igdiat (l§sting s s u e 0
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulationsw202214.11.2022.

19|nserted by the BBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

WsSubstituted for the wor dscurifiep anl Exchange Board df Igdiat (lSsting s s u e 0
Obligations and Disclosure Requiremer{&ixth Amendment) Regulations, 20@2e.f. 14.11.2022.
Mlsubstituted for the wWEBI@LStngiGbligatians and Ridclosbra Reguirdmerttsy t h e
(Amendment) Regulations, 2022e.f. 24.1.2022

202 Sybstituted by the SEBListing Obligatons and Disclosure Requiremen{S¢cond Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.202Prior to the substitution, the Explanation read as follows:
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203(7A) Where an entity has raised funds through preferemtilmtment or qualified
institutions placement, the listed entity shall disclose every year, the utilization of such funds
during that year in its Annual Report until such funds are fully utilized.]

BFor the purpose of thisartgul atquwart aeamy
entity which have listed their specified securities on SME Exchange shall respectively be
read as dAhalf yearly/ half yearo.

Financial results.
33. (1) While preparing financial results, the listed entity shall comply thighfollowing:

(a) The financial results shall be prepared on the basis of accrual accounting policy
and shall be in accordance with uniform accounting practices adopted for all the
periods.

(b) The quarterly and year to date results shall be prepared in accerdéh the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard 25 or
Indian Accounting Standard 31 (AS 25/ Ind ASi3aterim Financial Reporting),
as applicable, specified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevantrules framed thereunder or as specified by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, whichever is applicable.

(c) The standalone financial results and consolidated financial results shall be
prepared as per Generally Accepted Accounting Principleglia:
Provided that in addition to the above, the listed entity may sigonit the
financial results, as per the International Financial Reporting Standards notified by
the International Accounting Standards Board.

(d) Thelisted entityshall ensure that the limited review or audit reports submitted to

the stock exchange(s) on a quarterly or annual basis are to be given only by an

auditor who has subjected himsé¥[/herself] to the peer review process of
Institute of Chartered Accountanof India and holds a valid certificate issued by
the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(e) The listed entity shall make the disclosures specified in Part A of Schedule IV.

(2)The approval and authentication of the finahresults shall be done by listed entity in the
following manner:

() The quarterly financial results submitted shall be approved by the board of
directors:

AFor the purpegalati ohj simabi toring agencyo
specified in egulation 16 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Di sclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009. 0
203 |nserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
204Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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Provided that while placing the financial results before the board of directors, the
chief executie officer and chief financial officer of the listed entity shall certify
that the financial results do not contain any false or misleading statement or figures
and do not omit any material fact which may make the statements or figures
contained therein misading.

(b) The financial results submitted to the stock exchange shall be signed by the
chairperson or managing director, or a whole time director or in the absence of all
of them; it shall be signed by any other director oflikted entitywho is duly
authorized by the board of directors to sign the financial results.

(c) The limited review report shall be placed before loard of directors, at its
meeting which approves the financial results, before being submitted to the stock
exchange(s)

(d) The annual audited financial results shall be approved by the board of directors of
thelisted entityand shall be signed in the manner specified in clause (b) ef sub
regulation (2).

(3)The listed entity shall submit the financial results in the followiranner:
(@) The listed entity shall submit quarterly and yeadate standalone financial
results to the stock exchange within fefitye days of end of each quarter, other
than the last quarter.

(b) In case the listed entity has subsidigriesaddition to the requirement at clause (a)
of subregulation (3)the listed entity’*Jshall] also submit quarterly/yedo-date

consolidated financial resuff$y.]
207[***]

(c) The quarterly and yedo-date financial results may be either auditedraaudited
subject to the following:

(i) In case the listed entity opts to submit unaudited financial results, they shall
be subject to limited review by the statutory auditors of the listed entity and
shall be accompanied by the limited review report.

Provided that in case of public sector undertakings this limited review may
be undertaken by any practicing Chartered Accountant.

WSubstituted f or SEBI@isting®Oblidatighsread/Discldsyre Reduieements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018, w.e.1.4.2019.
Substituted ibid for the words fAsubject to foll owing
207 Sub-clauses (i) and (i) omitted by tI#EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.2019. Prior to the omission, the saiclauds read as follows:

Ai(i) the | isted entity shall intimate to the stocl

submit quarterly/yeato-date consolidated financial results in the first quarter of the financial year and

this option shalhot be changed during the financial year.

Provided that this option shall also be applicable to listed entity that is required to prepare consolidated

financial results for the first time at the end of a financial year in respect of the quarter during the

financial year in which the listed entity first acquires the subsidiary.

(ii) in case the listed entity changes its option in any subsequent year, it shall furnish comparable figures

for the previous year in accordance with the option exercised fortheceant f i nanci al year.
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(i) In case the listed entity opts to submit audited financial results, they shall be
accompanied by the audit report.

(d) The listedentity shall submit [annu&f audited standalone financial results for the
financial year, within sixty days from the end of the financial year along with the audit
report and [Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (applicable ¥Afgr audit
reportwith modified opinion):

Provided that if the listed entity has subsidiarieshall, whilesubmitting annual
audited standalone financial results also submit annual audited consolidated
financial results along with the audit report and [Statement omadtngf Audit
Qualifications (applicable onl$°for audit report with modified opinion)g}*

[Provided further that, in case of audit reports with unmodified opinion(s), the listed
entity shall furnish a declaration to that effect to the Stock Exchang{®
publishing the annual audited financial resuitd.]

(e) The listed entity shall also submit the auditédlor limited reviewed)] financial
results in respect of the last quarter alavith the results for the entire financial
year, with a note stating théhe figures of last quarter are the balancing figures
between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year
to-date figures upto the third quarter of the current financial year.

(N Thelisted entity shalalsosubmitas pat of its standalone or consolidated financial
resultsfor the half year, by wagf anote, a statemewf assets and liabilities as at
the end of the halyear.

214 (g) The listed entity shall also submit as part of its standalone and consolidated
financial results for the half year, by way of a note, statement of cash flows for the
half-year.

(h) The listed entity shall ensure that, for the purposes of quarterly consolidated
financial results, at least eighty percent of each of the consolidattles assets and
profits, respectively, shall have been subject to audit or in case of unaudited results,
subjected to limited review.

208|nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016.

2Substituted for o6either Form A (for audit report wi
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016
2Substituted for o6éeither Form A (for audit report wi
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulatiob8, @Ce.f. 01.04.2016

MSubstituted for the symbol 6.0 by SEBI (Listing Obl
Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016.

22|nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016.

213 |Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

24 |nserted ibid.
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(i) The listed entity shall disclose, in the results for the last quarter in the financial
year, by way of a note, tlaggregate effect of material adjustments made in the results
of that quarter which pertain to earlier periods.]

219(j) The listed entity shall, subsequent to the listing, submit its financial results for the
guarter or the financial year immediately suctieg the period for which the financial
statements have been disclosed in the offer document for the initial public offer, in
accordance with the timeline specified in clause (a) or clause (d) of thisguiation,
as the case may be, or within 21 daysf the date of its listing, whichever is lajer

(4) The applicable formats of the financial results and [Statement on Impact of Audit
Qualifications (for audit report with modified opiniof)j shall be in the manner as
specified by the Board [**3’.

B)For the purpose of this regulation, any re
entity which has listed their specified securities on SME Exchange shall be respectively
read as fAhalf yearly/ half yea-todatandd ftihnea nrcea
results shall not be applicable for a listed entity which has listed their specified securities
on SME Exchange.

(6) 218[***]

(7) [***] 219
220(8) The statutory auditor of a listed entity shall undertake a limited review of the audit of
all the enities/ companies whose accounts are to be consolidated with the listed entity as per
AS 21 in accordance with guidelines issued by the Board on this matter.]

Annual Report.
34. 22%(1) The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange and publish on iiteveb

215 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.The clause shable applicable to the issuers whose
public issues open on or aftire Secuities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 202% into effect.
26Sybstituted for 6Form A (for audit report with unmod
opinion)d by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discl osur e
01.04.2016
2"The words o6f rd mo riitntee dt ob yt i SEeB | (Listing Obligation
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016.
218 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior togtomission, supegulation (6) read as follows:
A(6) The Statement on | mpact of Audit Qualificati
accompanying annual audit report submitted in terms of clause (d) efegulation (3)shall be
reviewedboy t he stock exchange(s). o
219 Omitted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016. Prior to omission, sub regulation (7) read as follows:
6(7) The listed ent it yheBohrd, karry ootthe hebessard stepsefor rectificationoé s u e d
modified opinion and/or submission of revised{fwoma financial results, in the manner specified in Schedule
Vill .6
220 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirementgnéndment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.20109.
221 Substituted ibid, and applicable fannual report filed for the year ended March 31, 2019 and thereafter.
Prior to the substitution, sutegulation (1) read as follows:
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(&) acopy of the annual report sent to the shareholders along with the notice of the annual
general meeting not later than the day of commencement of dispatch to its shareholders;

(b) inthe event of any changes to the annual report, the revised copy along with the details
of and explanation for the changes shall be sent not later than 48 hours after the annual
general meeting.]

(2) The annual report shall contain the following:

(a) audited fhancial statements i.e. balance sheets, profit and loss accounts etc [,and
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications as stipulated in regulation 33(3)(d),
if applicable;}?
(b) consolidated financial statements audited by its statutory auditors;
(c) cash flow satement presented only under the indirect method as prescribed in
Accounting Standar8 or Indian Accounting Standard 7, as applicable, specified
in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed
thereunder or as specified by thestitute of Chartered Accountants of India,
whichever is applicable;
(d) directors report;
(e) management discussion and analysis repaither as a part of directors report or
addition thereto;
223(f) for the top one thousand listed entities based on market capitalization, a Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report on the environmental, social and
governance disclosures, in the format as may be specified by the Board from time to

time:

Provided that the assurance of the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report
Core shall be obtained, with effect from and in the manner as may be specified by
the Board from time to time:

A(1l) The | i st e teaamadliedonyto thehstotk lexcramngé within twenty one working days of it
being approved and adopted in the annual gener al
225ubstituted fby BEBI (listing ®Wligationsl andDjsd@are Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016.

223 Substitute by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 15.6.2B88r to its substitudn, clause (f) read as under:

me et

Aa(f) for the top one thousand |isted entities based

describing the initiatives taken by the listed entity from an environmental, social and governance perspective,
in the format as specified by the Board from time to time:

Provided that the requirement of submitting a business responsibility report shall be discontinued after the
financial year 202122 and thereafter, with effect from the financial year 2@&? the tp one thousand

listed entities based on market capitalization shall submit a business responsibility and sustainability report
in the format as specified by the Board from time to time:

Provided further that even during the financial year 2022, the topone thousand listed entities may
voluntarily submit a business responsibility and sustainability report in place of the mandatory business
responsibility report:

Provided further that the remaining listed entities including the entities which have l&dspecified
securities on the SME Exchange, may voluntarily submit such reports.

Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, market capitalization shall be calculated as on the 31st day of
March of every financial year. o
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Provided further that the listed entities shall also make disclosures and obtain
assurancas pethe Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report Core for their
value chain, with effect from and in the manner as may be specified by the Board
from time to time:

Provided further that the remaining listed entities, including the entities which have
listed their specified securities on the SME Exchange, may voluntarily disclose the
Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report or may voluntarilgirolthe
assurance of the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report Core, for
themselves or for their value chain, as the case may be.

Explanationl: For the purpose of this clause:
(i) market capitalization shall be calculated as on the 31st dayaafhivbf every
financial year;
(i) Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report Core shall comprise of such
key performance indicators as may be specified by the Board from time to time;
(i Aival ue chaino for the | istebdomdima i ti es
to time]

(3) The annual report shall contain any other disclosures specified in Companies Act, 2013
along with other requirements as specified in Schedule V of these regulations.

Annual Information Memorandum.
35. The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange(s) an Annual Information
Memorandum in the manner specified by the Board from time to time.

Documents & Information to shareholders.
36. (1) The listed entity shall send the annual report in the follgwiranner to the
shareholders:

(a) Soft copies of full annual report to all those shareholder(s) who have registered
their email address(esf{***] 2?Jeither with the listed entity or with any
depository]j

(b) Hard copy of statement containing the salient featafeal the documents, as
prescribed in Section 136 of Companies Act, 2013 or rules made thereunder to
those shareholder(s) who have not so registered,;

(c) Hard copies of full annual reports to those shareholders, who request for the same.

(2)The listed entity shll send annual report referred to in selgulation (1), to the holders of
securities, not less than twerdpe days before the annual general meeting.

(3)In case of the appointment of a new director omappointment of a director the
shareholders must Ipgovided with the following information:
(a) a brief resume of the director;

24Words dAfor t he p urSkEBIs(ldsting Oblidatiohseahd Dbsglosute hRequirements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
225 |nserted ibid, applicable feknnual report filed for the year ended March 31, 2019 and thereafter.

58



(b) nature of?9***] expertise in specific functional areas;

(c) disclosure of relationships between directors #ster

(d) names of listed entities in which the person also holds the directorship and the
membership of Committees of the bodfdalong with listed entities from which
the person has resigned in the past three yeard

(e) shareholding of noexecutive directors??in the listed entity, including
shareholding as a beneficial owher

229(f). In case of independent directors, the skills and capabilities required for the role

and the manner in which the proposed person meets such requirements.

230(4) The disclosuresnade by the listed entity with immediate effect from date of
notification of these amendments

(a) to the stock exchanges shall be in XBRL format in accordance with the guidelines specified
by the stock exchanges from time to time; and

(b) to the stock extanges and on its website, shall be in a format that allows users to find
relevant information easily through a searching tool:

Provided that the requirement to make disclosures in searchable formats shall not apply in
case there is a statutory requiremenmake such disclosures in formats which may not be
searchable, such as copies of scanned documents.

(5) The notice being sent to shareholders for an annual general meeting, where the statutory
auditor(s) is/are proposed to be appointedfrpointed Ball include the following disclosures
as a part of the explanatory statement to the notice:

(@) Proposed fees payable to the statutory auditor(s) along with terms of
appointment and in case of a new auditor, any material change in the fee
payable tosuch auditor from that paid to the outgoing auditor along with the
rationale for such change;

(b) Basis of recommendation for appointment including the details in relation to
and credentials of the statutory auditor(s) proposed to be appointed.]

Draft Scheme of Arrangement & Scheme of Arrangement.

37. (1)Without prejudice to provisions akgulation 11, the listed entity desirous of
undertaking a scheme of arrangement or involved snheme of arrangement, shall
file the draft scheme of arrangement, proposed to be filed before any Court or Tribunal
under sections 39394 and 101 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 230
234 and Section 66 of Companies Act, 2013, whichever ampic>{along with a

26The word #fhiso omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obl i
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

227 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read wh the corrigendumy.e.f. 1.1.2022.

228 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

229 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendneguipfons,

2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022.

230 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

231 Inserted by the SEBI (Payment of Fees and Mode of Payment) (Amendnegntlatons, 2017, w.e.f.
6.3.2017.
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nonrefundable fee as specified in Schedule Xl,] with the stock exchange(s) for
obtaining?*qthe] No-objection letter, before filing such scheme withy Court or
Tribunal,in terms of requirements specified by the Board or stock egetignfrom

time to time.

(2)The listed entity shall not file any scheme of arrangement under sectio398%hd
101 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under SectionsZ&Dand Section 66 of
Companies Act, 2013 ,whichever applicable, with any Court or Trlhumass it has
obtained®? [the] No-objection letter from the stock exchange(s).

(3)The listed entity shall place ti#&[***] No-objection letter of the stock exchange(s)
before the Court or Tribunal at the time of seeking approval of the scheme of
arrangement:

Provided that the validity of thgq***] No-objection letter of stock exchanges shall
be six months from the date of issuance, within which the draft scheme of arrangement
shall be submitted to the Court or Tribunal.

(4)The listed entity shall rsure compliance with the other requirements as may be
prescribed by the Board from time to time.

(5)Upon sanction of the Scheme by the Court or Tribunal, the listed entity shall submit
the documents, to the stock exchange(s), as prescribed by the Boand stock
exchange(s) from time to time.

239(6) Nothing contained in this regulation shall apply to draft schemes which solely provide
for merger of a wholly owned subsidiary with its holding company:
Provided that such draft schemes shall be filed whth stock exchanges for the
purpose of disclosures.]

[(7) The requirements as specified under this regulation and under regulation 94 of
these regulations shall not apply to a restructuring proposal approved as part of a
resolution plan by the Tribunal under section 31 of the Insolvency Code, subject to the
detals being disclosed to the recognized stock exchanges within one day of the
resolution plan being approvett]

23g37A. Sale, lease or disposal of an undertaking outside Scheme of Arrangement

232 Substituted foi Obser vati on Letter oro by the SEBI (Listing
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

BSubstituted for TfObser vat iQ@blgatine antd Bisclosore Bequirgmentsh e S E B |
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

2% The wordsi Ob s er v at iomitted loyethetSERI (ListingcObligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

25Thewor ds and symbol i @mited eythe S8EBI (bisting Dieligatioasr add Disclogure
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

236 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (AmendniRegulations, 2017,

w.e.f. 15.02.2017.

27 |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 31.05.2018.

238 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dis@®eswieements)

(Second Amendemt) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 122623.The aforesaidamendment shall not be applicable to

such sale, lease or disposal of undertakings of a listed entity where the notice has already been dispatched to the
shareholders of thested entity

60



(1) A listed entity carrying out sale, lease or otherwise disposagh@fwhole or
substantially the whole of the undertaking of such entity or where it owns more than
one undertaking, of the whole or substantially the whole of any of such undertakings,
shall-

(a) take prior approval of shareholders by way of special ré@ealu

(b) disclose the object of and commercial rationale for carrying out such sale, lease
or otherwise disposal of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking
of the entity, and the use of proceeds arising therefrom, in the statement annexed
to the notice to be sent to the shareholders:

Provided that such a special resolution shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by
the public shareholders in favour of the resolution exceed the votes cast by such
public shareholders against the resolnti

Provided further that no public shareholder shall vote on the resolution if he is a party,
directly or indirectly, to such sale, lease or otherwise disposal of the whole or
substantially the whole of the undertaking of the listed entity

Explanatim. d For t he purposes of this regul ati
Asubstantially the whole of the undertaki
to them under clause (a) of sabction (1) of section 180 of the Companies Act,

2013.

(2) The requiremetnas specified in subegulation (1) shall not be applicable for sale,
lease or otherwise disposal of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking
by a listed entity to its wholly owned subsidiary whose accounts are consolidated
with such listecentity:

Provided that prior to such wholly owned subsidiary selling, leasing or otherwise
disposing of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking received from a
listed entity, whether in whole or in part, to any other entity, such lestétl shall
comply with the requirements specified in selgulation (1):

Provided further that the listed entity shall comply with the requirements specified in
subregulation (1) before diluting its shareholding below hundred percent in its
wholly owned subsidiary to which the whole or substantially the whole of the
undertaking of such listed entity was transferred.

Explanation: The provisions of this regulation shall not be applicable where sale,
lease or otherwise disposal of the whole or suiltistidy the whole of the undertaking

of a listed entity is by virtue of a covenant covered under an agreement with a
financial institution regulated by or registered with the Reserve Bank of India or with
a Debenture Tistee registered with the Board.]

Minimum Public Shareholding.

38. The listed entity shall comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements
specified in Rule 19(2) and Rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules,
1957 in the manner as specified by the Board from time & tim
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Provided that provisions of this regulation shall not apply to entities listed on
239 Innovators Growth Platformjithout making a public issue.

Issuance of Certificates or Receipts/Letters/Advices for securities and dealing with

unclaimed securities.

39. (1) Thelisted entity shall comply with Rule 19(3) of Securities Contract (Regulations)
Rules, 1957 in respect of Letter/Advices of Allotment, Acceptance or Rights, transfers,
subdivision, consolidation, renewal, exchanges, issuance of duplicates tircaagf
other purpose.

(2)The listed entity shalP*Jeffect issuance of]certificates or receipts or advices, as
applicable, of subdivision, split, consolidation, renewal, exchanges, endorsements,
issuance of duplicates thereorf issuance of newertificates or receipts or advices, as
applicable, in cases of loss or old decrepit or worn out certificates or receipts or advices, as
applicable’*Y], in dematerialised forjrwithin a period of thirtydays from the date of such
lodgement.

(3)The listedentity shall submit information regarding loss of share certificates and issue of
the duplicate certificates, to the stock exchange within two days of its getting information.

(4)The listed entity shall comply with the procedural requirements specifiechid8le VI
while dealing with securities issupdrsuantto the public issueor any otherisaue, physical
or otherwise, which remaimclaimed and/or are lying in the escrow account, as applicable.

Transfer or transmissionor transposition of securities.

40. (1) Save as otherwise specified in provisions of securities laws or Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, the listed entity shall also comply with the requirements as
specified in this regulation for effecting transfer of securiti€é[:]

249 Provided that requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed
unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with a depository:

Provided further that transmission or transposition of securities held in physical or
demateriaked form shall be effeetl only in dematerialised form.]

(2)The board of directors of a listed entity may delegate the power of transfer of securities to
a committee oto comgdiance officer or to theregistrarto an issue and/or share transfer
agent(s)

239 Substituted fori |l nsti t uti onal Trading Platformo by the SE
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
W Substituted for t hSEBI (listing Obiigat®rs uaadDiscldsyre Reduieements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 202®.e.f.24.1.2022.
241 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremengshéndment) Regulations, 2022
w.e.f.24.1.2022.
%2Symbol 6. 06substituted b ydDisdiosureRegBilemefits)(Feurth AmgndEnt) i gat i «
Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 08.06.2018.
243 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremém&ndment) Regulations, 2022
w.e.f.24.1.2022 Prior to its substitutiorthe provisaread agollows, -

fiProvided that, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting

transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with

a depository 0
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Provided that the board of directors and/or the delegated authority shall attend to the
formalities pertaining to transfer of securities at least once in a fortnight:

Provided further that the delegated authority shall report on transfer of securiiies to
board of directors in each meeting.

(3)On receipt of proper documentation, the listed entity shall register transfers of its securities
in the name of the transferee(s) and isser#ificates or receipts or advices, as applicable,
of transfers; or issue awglid objection or intimation to the transferee or transferor, as the
case may be, within a period of fifteen days from the date of such receipt of request for
transfer:
Providel that the listed entity shall ensure that transmission requests are prét§seed
within seven day$****] , after receipt of the specified documents:
Provided further that proper verifiable dated records of all correspondence with the investor
shall ke maintained by the listed entity.

(4)The listed entity shall not register transtghen any statutory prohibition or any
attachment or prohibitory order of a competent autority restrains it from trarsferring
the securitiesfrom the name of the trarsferor(s).

(5)The listed entity shall not register the transfer of its securities in the name of the
transferee(syvhenthe trarsferor(s) objects to the trarsfer:
Provided that the transferor serves on the listed entity, within sixty working days of raising
the objection, a prohibitory order of a Court of competent jurisdiction.

(6)The listed entity shall not decline to, register or acknowledge any transfer of, simaties
ground of the transferor(s) being either alone or jointly with any other perguersmons
indebted to the listed entity on any account whatsoever.

(7)The listed entity shall comply with all procedural requirements as specified in Schedule
VII with respect to transféfqand transmissidrof securities.

(8)In case the listed entity hast eff ected trarsfer of securitieswithin fifteen days or where
the listed entityhasfailed to communicateto the transferee(s)any valid objection to the
trarsfer, within thestipulatedtime peiod of fifteen days, thelisted entityshall compersate
theaggrieved party for the oppatunity lossescausedduring the period of thedelay:
Provided that duing the intervening period on account of delay in transfer abovehelisted
entity shall provide all benefits, which have a@tuto the holder of securitigsterms of
provisions of Section 126 of Companies Act, 2013, and Section 27 of the Securities

Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
247[****]

24T he wborsdcarities held in dematerialized mode and physical modeo mi t t SEBI (bistingt h e
Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen&ingndment) Regulations, 202®2.e.f.24.1.2022.

25T he warddwentyfone days respectively o mi t t SEBI (histing Obiigations and Disclosure
Requirements)Amendment) Regulations, 202®&.e.f.24.1.2022.

248 Inserted by théSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 20@2.f. 25.4.2022.

27The w o Provigled further that in case of any claim, difference or dispute under thisegulation the

same shall be referred to and decided by arbitration as provided in thiawgeand/or regulations of the stock
exchange(®) o miby the &ecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Alternative Dispute Resolution
Mechanism) (Amenehent) Regulations, 2023, w.e04-07-2023.

63



(9) The listed entity shall ensure that the share transfer agent and/chthesimshare transfer
facility, as the case may be, produces a certificate from a practicing company secretary
within 2*qthirty days from]the end of?*q***] the financial year, certifing that all
certificates have been issued within thirty days of the date of lodgement for transfer, sub
division, consolidation, renewal, exchange or endorsement of calls/allotment monies.

(10) The listed entity shall ensure that certificate mentioned latresggulation (9), shall be
filed with the stock exchange(s) simultaneously.

(11)In addition to transfer of securities, the provisions of this regulation shall also apply to
the following :

(a)deletion of name of the deceased holder(s) of securities, whereditissare
held in the name of two or more holders of securities ;

(b)transmission of securities to the legal heir(s), where deceased holder of securities
was the sole holder of securities;

(c)transposition of securities, when there is a change in the drdemns in which
physical securities are held jointly in the names of two or more holders of securities

Other provisions relating to securities.

41. (1) The listed entity shall not exercise a lien on its fully paid shares and that in respect
of partly paidshares it shall not exercise any lien except in respect of moneys called or
payable at a fixed time in respect of such shares.

(2)The listed entity shall, in case of any amount to be paid in advance of calls on any shares
stipulate that such amount may gainterest but shall not in respect thereof confer a right
to dividend or to participate in profits.

250(3) The listed entity shall not issue shares in any manner that may confer on any person; superior
or inferior rights as to dividend v&vis the righs on equity shares that are already listed
or inferior voting rights visxvis the rights on equity shares that are already listed:
Provided that, a listed entity having SR equity shares issued to its promoters/ founders, may
issue SR equity shares te BR shareholders only through a bonus, split or rights issue in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and the Companies Act, 2013.]

(4)The listed entity shallissue or offer in the first instance all shaexluding forfeited
shares), securities, rights, privileges and benefits to subgeobata basis , to the equity
shareholders of the listed entity, unless the shareholders igetitexal meeting decide
otherwise.

248 Substituted fori o n e mo by tthe SEBIf (isting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 202ie.f. 5.5.2021.

The words fieach half ofd omitted by the SEBI (Listi
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

250 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth dfmet)

Regulations, 2019, w.e.f. 29.7.2019. Prior to its substitutionyegblation (3) read as follows,

A(3) The |l isted entity shall not issue shares in any
voting or dividend visxvisther ght s on equity shares that are already
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(5)Unless the terms of issue otherwise provide, the listed entity shall not select any of its listed
securities for redemption otherwise than on@a basis or by lot.

Y Other provisions relating to outstanding SR equiy shares.
41A (1) The SR equity shares shall be treated at par with the ordinary equity shares in every
respect, including dividends, except in the case of voting on resolutions.

(2) The total voting rights of SR shareholders (including ordinary shiaréis¢ issuer upon
listing, pursuant to an initial public offer, shall not at any point of time exceed seventy four
per cent.
(3) The SR equity shares shall be treated as ordinary equity shares in terms of voting rights
(i.e. one SR share shall only havesosote) in the following circumstances

I. appointment or removal of independent directors and/or auditor;

il. where a promoter is willingly transferring control to another entity;

iii. related party transactions in terms of these regulations involm@gR

shareholder;

iv. voluntary winding up of the listed entity;

V. changes to the Articles of Association or Memorandum of Association of the
listed entity,except any change affecting the SR equity share;

Vi. initiation of a voluntary resolution press under the Insolvency Code;

Vii. utilization of funds for purposes other than business;

Viil. substantial value transaction based on materiality threshold as specified under
these regulations;

iX. passing of special resolution in respect of delistinguy-back of shares; and

X. other circumstances or subject matter as may be specified by the Board, from
time to time.

(4) The SR equity shares shall be conveitgd equity shares having voting rights same as

that of ordinary shares on the fifth anniversary of listing of ordinary shares of the listed entity:
Provided that the SR equity shares may be valid for upto an additional five years, after a
resolution tathat effect has been passed, where the SR shareholders have not been permitted
to vote:

Provided further that the SR shareholders may convert their SR equity shares into ordinary
equity shares at any time prior to the period as specified in thissgubtion.

(5) The SR equity shares shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares having voting
rights same as that of ordinary shares on the occurrence of any of the following events
I. demise of the promoter(s) or founder holding such shares;
il. an SR shareholder resigns from the executive position in the listed entity;
iii. merger or acquisition of the listed entity having SR shareholder/s, where the
control would no longer remain with the SR shareholder/s;
iv. the SR equity shares are sold lySR shareholder who continues to hold such
shares after the loek period but prior to the lapse of validity of such SR
equity shares.]

251 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2019, w.e.f. 29.7.2019.
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Record Date or Date of closure of transfer books.

42. (1) The listed entity shall intimate the record d&ffor the folowing events to all the
stock exchange(s) where it is listed or where stock derivatives are available on the stock
of the I|isted entity or where |isted ent
derivatives are available:]
(a)declaration of tvidend;
(b)issue of right or bonus shares;
(c)issue of shares for conversion of debentures or any other convertible security;
(d)shares arising out of rights attached to debentures or any other convertible security
(e)*®Jcorporate actions like mergers -gergers, splits, efc;
(f) such other purposes as may be specified by the stock exchange(s).

(2)The listed entity shallive notice in advancef ateast sevenworkingdays (excluding the
date of intimation and the record date)stock excharge(s) of record date specifying
thepurpose of the record date:
4 Provided that in the case of rights issues, the listed entity shall give notice in advance
of atleast three working days (excluding the date of intimation and the record date).]

(3)The listed entity shalecommend or declare all dividend and/or cash bonuses at least five
working days(excluding the date of intimation and the record datgpre the record
date fixed for the purpose.

(4)The listed entity shall ensure the time gap of at least thirty daygéetiwo record dates.

(5)For securities held in physical form, the listed entity may, announce dates of closure of its
transfer books in place of record date for complying with requirements as specified in sub
regulations (1) to (4):

Provided that the listeentity shall ensure that there is a time gap of atleast thirty days
between two dates of closure of its transfer books.

Dividends.
43. (1) The listed entity shall declare and disclose the dividend on per share basis only.

(2) The listed entity shall not forfeit unclaimed dividends before the claim becomes barred by
law and such forfeiture, if effected, shall be annulled in appropriate cases.

259Dividend Distribution Policy.

252 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenézjorf® Amendment)

Regulations, 2020, w.e.f. 05.08.2020. Prior to its substitutionresgilation (1) read as follows,

iThe | isted entity shal/l inti mate the record date to
purposes: 0

253 Substitded by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2020, w.e.f. 05.08.2020. Prior to its substitution, clause (e) read as follows,

ficorporate act i-nergers, $plitskard bomasr sigases, shoekdderivatives are available on

the stock of I|isted entity or where |listed entity's s
254 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2019, w.e.f. 26.12.20109.

255 Inserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,

2016, w.e.f. 08.07.2016.
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43A (1) The top?®91000] listed entities based onanket capitalization (calculated as on
March 31 of every financial year) shall formulate a dividend distribution policy which shall
be disclosed®on the website of the listed entity and a viiek shall also be provided in
their annual reports]

(2) The dvidend distribution policy shall include the following parameters:

(a) the circumstances under which the shareholders of the listed entities may or may not
expect dividend;

(b) the financial parameters that shall be considered while declaring dividend;

(c) internaland external factors that shall be considered for declaration of dividend,;

(d) policy as to how the retained earnings shall be utilized; and

(e) parameters that shall be adopted with regard to various classes of shares:

Provided that if the listed entity proposesdeclare dividend on the basis of parameters in
addition to clauses (@) to (e) or proposes to change such additional parameters or the dividend
distribution policy contained in any of the parameters, it shall disclose such changes along
with the ration for the same in its annual report and on its website.

259(3) The listed entities other than those specified atrsghlation (1) of this regulation may
disclose their dividend distribution policies on a voluntary basis on their websites and provide
a weblink in their annual reports.]

25IMeetings of shareholders and voting].
44. (1) The listed entity shall provide thiacility of remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions

(2)The evoting facility to beprovided to shareholders in terms of sagulation (1)shall be
provided in compliance with the conditiogisecified under the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014r amendments made thereto

(3) The listed entity shall submit to the skoexchange, withig®Jtwo working days]of
conclusion of its General Meeting, details regarding the voting results in the format
specified by the Board.

(4)The listed entity shall send proxy forms to holders of securities in all cases mentioning that
a holde may vote either for or against each resolution.

%Substituted for Afive hundredo by the SEBI (Listin
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
X’Substi tiunt etdn efiorr ainnual reports and on their websites:¢
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
258 Substituted by the SEBI (lUisg Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitutionregiation (3) read as follows:
iThe | isted entities other than top fiooveay hundred
disclose their dividend distribution policies on a voluntary basis in their annual reports and on their
websites. o
Substituted for Vot S8EBQLising OlWigatonseahdoDisclosuresRequitements) h e
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018.e.f. 1.4.2019.
2%Substituted for Aforty eight hourso by the SEBI (Li:
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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2611(5) The top 100 listed entities by market capitalization, determined as on March 31st of
every financial year, shall hold their annual general meetings within a period of five months
from the date of cking of the financial year.

(6) The top 100 listed entities shall provide avey live webcast of the proceedings of the
annual general meetings.

Explanation: The top 100 entities shall be determined on the basis of market capitalisation, as
at the end bthe immediate previous financial year.]

Change in name of the listed entity.
45. (1) The listed entity shall be allowed to change its name subject to compliance with
the following conditions:
(a)a time period of at least ogear has elapsed from the lagime change;
(b)at least fifty percent. of the total revenue in the preceding one year period has been
accountedor by the new activity suggested by the new name; or
(c)the amount invested in the new activity/project is atleast fifty percent. of the assets
of the listed entity:

Provided that if any listed entity has changed its activities which are not reflected in its name,
it shall change its name in line with its activities within a period of six months from the change
of activities in compliance of provisins as applicable to change of name prescribed under
Companies Act, 2013.

Explanation. For the purpose of this regulation,
(i) 'assets' of the listed entity means the sum of fixed assets, advances, works in
Progress / Inventories, investmerntagdereceivablescash & cash equivalents;

(ii) advancesd shall include only tho:t
suppliers towards execution of project, specific to new activity as reflected in the
new name

(2)On satisfaction of conditions at stdmulation (1), the listed entity shall file an application for
name availability with Registrar of Companies.

(3)%°4 Upon compliance with the conditions for change of name laid down in Companies Act,
2013 and rules madkereunder, the listed entity, in the explanatory statement to the notice
seeking sharehol derso6é6 approval for change
practicing chartered accountant stating compliance with conditions provided 4n sub
regulation (].]

Website.
46. (1) The listed entity shall maintain a functional website containing the basic
information about the listed entity.

261 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

262 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)

Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Priothe substitution, sutegulation (3) read as follows:
ion receipt of confirmation regarding name avail al
request for change of name with the Registrar of Companies in terms of provisions laid down in
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the listed entity shall seek approval from Stock
Exchange by submitting a certificate from chartered accountant stating compliance with conditions at
subr egul ation (1).0
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(2) Thelisted entity shall disseminate the following informatféfiunder a separate section
on its website]:
(a)details of itsbusiness;
(b)terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors;
(c) composition of various committees of board of directors;
(d)code of conduct of board of directors and senior management personnel;
(e)details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ Whistleviato policy;
(f) criteria of making payments to naaxecutive directors , if the same has not been
disclosed in annual report;
(9)policy on dealing with related party transactions;
(hpolicy for determining Omaterial d subsid
(i) details of familiarizatiorprogrammes imparted to independent directors including
the following details:
(i) number of programmes attended by independent directors (during the year and
on a cumulative basis till date),
(i) number of hours spent by independent directors in such progrardoresy(
the year and on cumulative basis till date), and
(iii) other relevant details
(j) the email address for grievance redressal and other relevant details;
(k)contact information of the designated officials of the listed entity who are
responsible for assistingnd handling investor grievances;
() financial information including:
() notice of meeting of the bard of directors where financial results shall be
discussed;
(i) financial results, on conclusion of the meeting of the board of directors where
the financial resultsvere approved;
(i) complete copy of the annual report including balance sheet, profit and loss
account, directors report, corporate governance report etc;
(m)  shareholdingattern;
(n)details of agreements entered into with the media companies and/or their associates
etc;
(0)?%4Schedule of analysts or institutional investors &kt least two working days
in advance (excluding the date of the irdgiton and the date of the mee#)jd
presentations made by the listed entity to analysts or institutional investors.
Expl anati on: For the purpose of this cl
group conference calls conducted physically or through digital njeans
269 (0a) Audio or video recordings and transcriptgost earnings/quarterly calls, by
whatever namecalled conducted physically or through digital means,
simultaneously with submission to the recognized stock exchange(#)e
following manner:

Substituted for st he oB8HEByising®bligationg asd Diseldsure Requirements)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
264 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Priorhe substitution, clause (o) read as follows:
fischedul e of analyst or institutional investor mee¢
or institutional investors simultaneously with su
265 Inserted by the Secumits and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
266 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.32021.
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()

(ii)

the presentation and the audio/video recordings shall be promptly made
available on the website and in amgse, before the next trading day or
within twenty-four hours from the conclusion sfichcalls, whichever is
earlier;
the transcripts of such calls shall be made available on the website within
five working days of the conclusion stichcalls:
Provided tlatd
a. The information under sutlause (i) shall be hosted on the website
of the listed entityor a minimum period of five years and thereafter
as per the archival policy of the listed entity, as disclosed on its
website
b. The information under sutlause (ii) shall be hosted on the website
of the listed entity and preserved in accordance with clause (a) of
regulation 9.
The requirement for disclosure(s) of audio/video recordings and transcript
shall be voluntary with effedrom April 01, 2021 and mandatory with
effect from April 01, 2022;]

(p)new name and the old name of the listed entity for a continuous period of one year,
from the date of the last name change;

(g)items in subregulation (1) of regulation 47 .

267(r) With effectfrom October 1, 2018, all credit ratings obtained by the entity for all
its outstanding instruments, updated immediately as and when there is any revision
in any of the ratings.

(s) separate audited financial statements of each subsidiary of the listgdiren
respect of a relevant financial year, uploaded at least 21 days prior to the date of the
annual general meeting which has been called to inter alia consider accounts of that
financial year]:

289 Provided that a listed entjtwhich has a subsidiarpéorporated outside Indda

(@  where such subsidiary is statutorily required to prepare consolidated
financial statement under any law of the country of its incorporation, the
requirement of this proviso shall be met if consolidated financial statement of
such subsidiary is placed on the website of the listed entity;

(b)  where such subsidiary is not required to get its financial statement
audited under any law of the country of its incorporation and which does not
get such financial statement audited, thielimg Indian listed entity may place
such unaudited financial statement on its website and where such financial
statement is in a language other than English, a translated copy of the financial
statement in English shall also be placed on the website;

(t) secretarial compliance report as per-sefpulation (2) of regulation 24A of these
regulations;

(u) disclosure of the policy for determination of materiality of events or information
required under clause (ii), subgulation (4) of regulation 30 of theesegulations;

(v) disclosure of contact details of key managerial personnel who are authorized for
the purpose of determining materiality of an event or information and for the
purpose of making disclosures to stock exchange(s) as required under sub
regultion (5) of regulation 30 of these regulations;

267 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. the date specified.

268 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f5.5.2021.
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(w) disclosures under strieggulation (8) of regulation 30 of these regulations;

(x) statements of deviation(s) or variation(s) as specified in regulation 32 of these
regulations;

(y) dividenddistribution policy by listed entities based on market capitalization as
specified in sulregulation (1) of regulation 43A;

(z) annual return as provided under section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder.]

(3) (a) The listed entitytsall ensure that the contents of the website are correct.
(b) The listed entity shall update any change in the content of its website within two
working days from the date of such change in content.

Advertisements in Newspapers.
47. (1) The listed entity shall publish the following information in the newspaper:
(a)269[***]
(b)financial resultsas specified in regulation 3alongwith the modified opinion(s)
or reservation(s), if any, expressed by the auditor:
Provided that ifthe listed entity has submitted both standalone amdolidated
financial results, the listed entity shall publ=nsolidated financial results along
with (1) Turnover, (2) Profit before tax and (3) Profit after tax, on a saonke
basis, as a foot ne; and a reference to the places, such as the website of listed entity
and stock exchange(s), where the standalone results of the listed entity are available.
(C)27q:~k~k*]

(d) notices given to shareholders by advertisement.

(2)The listed entity shall give a referee in the newspaper publication, in gelgulation (1),
to link of the website of listed entity and stock exchange(s), where further details are
available.

(3)The listed entity shall publish the information specified in-sdulation (1) in the
newspapesimultaneously with the submission of the same to the stock exchange(s).
Provided that financial results at clause (b) of-sedulation (1), shall be published within
48 hours ofconclusion of the meeting of board of directors at which the finaresailts
were approved.

(4)The information at subegulation (1) shall be publishédl at least one English language
national daily newspaper circulating in the whole or substantially the whole of India and in
one daily newspaper published in the languagbefegion, where the registered office of
the listed entity is situated:

Provided that the requirements of this regulation shall not be applicable in case of listed
entities which have listed their specified securities on SME Exchange.

269 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to omission, clause (a) read as follows:
finotice of meeting of the boakrdbefddscessedsowher
279 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to omission, clause (c) read as follows:
fistatements of d e v asaspeciftedh i6 supeguiation (1) aof regalationo32 ors )
quarterly basis, after review by audit committee and its explanation in directors report in annual
report; o
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Accounting Standards.
48.The listed entity shall comply with all the applicable and notified Accounting Standards
from time to time.
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CHAPTER V
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS NON -
CONVERTIBLE 2"***] SECURITIES 27q***]

Applicability.

49. 27q(1)The provision®f this chapter shall apply only to a listed entity which has listed
its nonconvertible securities on a recognised stock exchange in accordance with
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of-Qdéamvertible
Securities) Regulations, 202

274(2)[*** ]

2’y Explanation (1) For the purpose of this chapter, if the listed entity has listed its non
convertible redeemable preference shares, perpetuatumulative preference shares or
instruments of nature similar to perpetual foumulativepreference shares, the reference to
Ainteresto in this chapter shalll be read as

2'YExplanation 2> For t he purpose of this -paymenpafer , o
interest/dividend or principal amount in full on the-jagreed date arghall be recognized at
the first instance of delay in servicing of any interest/dividend or principal arhount.

271 Omittedt he wo r d byftiRESEBI o(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulatits, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
2720mittedt h e  WNON-GGNVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES OR B®Y khe SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
273 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforalsstitution, sukregulation (1yead as follows:
a O Theprovisions of this chapter shall apply only to a listed ewtityi ¢ h  h as dcongettided i t s & N
Debt Securiti-@esmveand/bdre &KRNdadmreemabl e Preference Sh
exchange in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 20@8 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 respéctively.
274 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f7.9.2021Before omission, subegulation (2) read as follows:
fiThe provisions of this chégr shallalsobea pp |l i cabl e to Aperpetual debt i
noncumul ative preference shareodo |isted by banks. 0
275 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforalsstitution, Explanation (Iead as follows:
AExpl anaFbonthé) purpose of this iocludeginh éhe SecoidBa n k " m
Schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.0
276 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforalsstitution, Explanation (Xead as follows
i Ex pl an a FEor thenpurpoBe) of this chapter, if the listed entity has listed itscoomertible
redeemable preference shares:
(i) The reference to fiinteresto may also read as
(ii) The provisions concerning debenture trustees and seauggtion (or asset cover or charge on
assets) shall notobheecappbl eabkdektmabiieopreferenc
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Intimation to stock exchange(s).

50. 277(1) The listed entity shall give prior intimation to the stock exchange of at least two
working days inadvance, excluding the date of the intimation and the date of the
meeting of the board of directors, about the Board meeting in which any of the
following proposals is to be considered:

(a) an alteration in the form or nature of raomvertible securitiethat are listed
on the stock exchange or in the rights or privileges of the holders thereof;
(b) an alteration in the date of the interest/ dividend/ redemption payment of
non-convertible securities;

(c) financial results viz. quarterly or annual, as¢hse may be;

(d) fund raising by way of issuance of roonvertible securities; or

(e) any matter affecting the rights or interests of holders ofcoomertible
securities.]

279(2) The listed entity shall also intimate the stock exchange not later than the date of
commencement of dispatch of notices, in case of:
(a) any annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting that is proposed
to be held for obtaining shareholdgproval for the proposals at clauses (c) and
(d) under subregulation (1) of this regulation;
(b) any meeting of the holders of roanvertible securities in relation to the
proposal at clause (e) of subgulation (1) of this regulation.]

279[(3)***]

Disclosure of information having bearing on performance/operation of listed entity

and/or price sensitive information.

51. (1) The listed entity shall promptly inform the stock exchange(s) of all information
having bearing on the performance/operation of ltkeed entity, price sensitive

277 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Bare substitution, sukregulation (1yead as follows:
fi ( THe listed entity shaljive prior intimation to the stock exchange#s)leasteleven working days
beforethe date on and from which the interest on debentures and bonds, and redemption gimount
redeemable shares or of debentures and bondsishalhyablae
278 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforalsstitution, sukregulation (2yead as follows:
fi(2) The listed entity shall intimate the stock exchangégsjntention to raise funds through new non
convertible debt securities or naonvertible redeemable preference shares it proposes to list either
through a public issue or on private placembasis, prior to issuance sfich securities:
Provided that the above intimation may be given prior to the meeting of board of directors wherein the
proposal to raise funds through new non convertible debt securities ocamwertible redeemable
preferene shares shall be considered. 0
279 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Beforerission, sukregulation (3yead as follows:
fi(3) The listed entity shall intimate to theoek exchange(skt least twoworking days in advance,
excluding the date of the intimati@md date of the meding, regardingthe meeting of its board of directors,
at which the recommendation or declaration of issue of non convedtliiesecurities or any other matter
affecting the rights or interests of holders of non convertible debt securities or non convertible redeemable
preference shares is proposiedbe considered 6
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information orany action that shall affect payment of interest or dividéor
redemption of noitonvertible securities]
2YExplanation The expression Opromptly informbé, sha
be informed as soon as reasonably possible but not later than-faenhpours from the date
of occurrence of the event or receipt of information. In case the siselas made after
twenty-four hours of the date of occurrence of the event or receipt of information, the listed
entity shall, along with such disclosures provide an explanation for the delay]

287(2) Without pejudice to the generality of subgulation(), the listed entity who has
28y listed nonconvertible securitigsshall make disclosures as specified in Part B of Schedule
1.1

284(3) The listed entity shall disclose on its website, all such events or information which have
been disclosed to the stoekchange(s) under this regulation and such disclosures shall be
hosted on the website of the listed entity for a minimum period of five years and thereafter as
per the archival policy of the listed entity, as disclosed on its website.]

Financial Results.

52. 289(1) The listed entity shall prepare and submiaurdited or audited quarterly and year
to date standalone financial results on a quarterly basis in the format as specified by the
Board within forty five days from the end of the quarter, other than last gudd the
recognised stock exchange(s):
289 Provided that for the last quarter of the financial year, the listed entity shall submit
unaudited or audited quarterly and year to date standalone financial results within sixty
days from the end of the quarterthe recognised stock exchangé(s):

205 ubst it ofnedonvértible préference sharesredemption ofnon convertible debt securities
redeemabl e pr ef the BEBL @isting hObligatian® and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
281 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.202Before substitution, the Explanatiosad as follows
AEX pl a-méhtei cex.pr essi on O6prompt | y ekchangemusbbe infermed! | i mpl
as soon as practically possible and without any delay and that the information shall be given first to the
stock exchange(s) before providing the same to any
282 Sybstituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discie Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.202Before substitution, sutegulation (2yead as follows:
i Wi t hrejudice tqthe generality of strbgulation(1), the listed entity who has issued or is issuing
nonconvertible debtsecurities and/or nowonvertible redeemable preference shares shall make
di sclosures as specified in Part B of Schedule 111
23Subst it istueddor if issuing Mmeronvertible debt securities and/or rRoonvertible redeemable
pref er enc ethesSkERIr(leasing Olligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
284 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
285 Substituted byrtte SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.202Before substitution, sukegulation (1) and the provisead as follows:
fi(1)The listed entity shall prepare and submitaudited or audited fiancial results on a half yearly
basis in the format as specified by the Board within forty five days from the end of the half year to the
recognised stock exchange(s).
[Provided that in case of entities which have listed their equity shares and delitisecarcopy of
the financial results submitted to stock exchanges shall be provided to Debenture Trustees on the same
day the information is submitted to stock exchanges.]
286 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing ObligatiorBiscidsure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
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Provided?®[further] that in case of entities which have listed their debt securities,
a copy of the financial results submitted to stock exchanges shall also be provided
to Debenture Trustees on the same dgy*] |
(2) The listed entity shall comply with following requirements with respect to preparation,
approval authentication and publication of annual &*ftjuarterly]financial results:

(a)?®JUn-audited financial results on quarterly basis shall be accompanied by limited
review report prepared by the statutory auditors of the listed entity, in the format as
specified by the Board:

Provided that in case of issuers whose accounts are auditeé Bomptroller
and Auditor General of India, the report shall be provided by any practising
Chartered Accountarjt.

(0)?°yThe quarterly]results shall be taken on record by the board of directors and
signed by the managing director / executive director.

(c)The audited results for the year shall be submitted to the recognised stock
exchange(s) in the same format as is applicabl&faarterly]financial results.

(d)*®JThe annual audited standalone and consolidated financial results for the
financial year shalbe submitted to the stock exchange(s) within sixty days from
the end of the financial year along with the audit report:

29 Provided that issuers, which are required to be audited by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under applicable law, shabmsit:

287 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
#The words Athe information is submitted to stock
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f.
14.11.2022.
BSubstitut-gae arfbypyhe JFEBIA(listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
20 gubstituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitut, clause (a) and the provisead as follows:
fi(a) Un-audited financial results shall be accompanied by limited review report prepared by the statutory
auditors of the listed entity or in case of public sector undertakings, by any practising Chartered
Accountant, in the format as specified by the Board:
Provided that if the listed entity intimates in advance to the stock exchange(s) that it shall submit to
the stock exchange(s) its annual audited results within sixty days from the end of the fiearcial
unraudited financial results for the last half year accompanied by limited review report by the

auditors need not be submitted to stock exchange

PLSubstitut ek afby yhé sEBla(Lifting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)th(Fif
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
22 Substitutga arfbyyhe SEBIa(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
293 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and DisclesRequirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.202Before substitution, clause (thad as follows:
fi ( e listed entity opts to submit-audited financial results for the last half year accompanied by
limited review report by thauditors, it shall also submit audited financial results for the entire financial
year, as soon as they are approved by the board of diregtors.

294 Substituted bySecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2@21r to substitution proviso to clause (d) read as under:
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() unaudited financial results along with the limited review report issued by
theComptroller and Auditor General of India or an auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India or a Practising Chartered
Accountant, tdhe stock exchange(s), within sixty days from the end of the
financial year; and

(i) the financial results, audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, to the stock exchange(s), within nine months from the end of the
financial yeai

(e)Modified opinion(s) irP°Jaudit reports/limited review reports] thiaive a bearing
on the interest payment/ dividend payment pertaining to-coomertible
2Ysecurities] redemption or principal repayment capacity of the listed entity shall
be appropriately and adequately addressed by the board of directors while publishing
the accounts fathe said period.

297[(]() 298[***] ]

299(2A) The listed entity shall submit a staterhehassets and liabilities and statement of cash
flows as at the end of every half year, by way of a note, along with the financial fesults.

(3) (a) Theannuakudited financial results shall be submitted along thighannual audit report
and [Statemenon Impact of Audit Qualifications (applicable orf§] for audit report
with modified opinion[)§°Y;]3%2

[Provided that, in case of audit reports with unmodified opinion, the listed entity shall furnish
a declaration to that effect to the Staekchange(s) while publishing the annual audited
financial results¥*®

fiProvided that issuers, who are being audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, shall adopt the
following two step process for disclosure of the annual audited financial results:
(i) The first level aud shall be carried out by the auditappointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, who shall audit the financials of the listed entity and such financial results shall be submitted to the
Stock Exchange(s) within sixty days from the end of the financial year.
(ii) After the competion of audit by the Comptrolleand Auditor General of India, the financial results shall
be submitted to the Stock exchange(s) within nine months from the end of the financial year.
»Substituted for daudit r epor tdDisclodure ReghiremerSsE @ifth ( Li st i
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
%Substitueadde rhaob | dibydie SER (ListingeQbligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
297 Inserted by the BBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
298 Omitted bySecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth
Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 142022 Prior to omission clause (f) read as under:
fAThe listed entity shall also submit as part of its standalone or consolidated financial results for the half year,
by way of a note, a statement of assets and liabilities and statement of cash flbthie @d of the half year.
29 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
WSubstituted for obéeither ForaonpiAnifoonr, aoudiFRorrne pRad tbywi |
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendijneegulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016.
30lnserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016.
%Substituted for the symbol 6.6 by SEBI (Listing Obl
Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016.
303|nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016.
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(b)304[***]
(C) [***] 305

(d)The applicable [formaif® of [Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit

report with modified opinion§P’ shall be [in the manner &8} specified by the Board
[***] 309_

(4) 219 The listed entity, while submitting quarterly and annual financial results, shall disclose

304 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to omission, clause (b) read as follows:

AiThe Statement on | mpact of Aunhadified Qinar and thecat i ons
accompanying annual audit report submitted in terms of clause (a) shall be reviewed by the stock
exchange(s).; o

305 Omitted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016Prior to omission, sub regulation (3) read as follows:

6The |l isted entity shal/l on the direction issued by
modified opinion and/or submission of revised-fwoma financial results, in the maemspecified in Schedule

VII1ao

% Substituted for o6formatso6 by SEBI (Listing Obligat
Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016
MSubstituted for O6Form A and Form B6 by &BBI (List

(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

308 |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016.

8 The words 6f r oomitetd byr@EBI t(Listing Obtimatidns and DisclosuRequirements)

(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

310 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022. Prior to substitution,eupu | at i on 4 r ead ¢
listed entity, while submitting [quarterly] / annual financial results, shall disclose the following line items along

with the financial results:

(a) [***]

(b) [
(c) debtequity ratio;
(d [
e [

® debt serice coverage ratio;

(g) interest service coverage ratio;

(h)  outstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity and value);

® capital redemption reserve/debenture redemption reserve;

()] net worth;

(k)  net profit after tax;

)] earnings per share:

[(m) current ratio;

(n) long term debt to working capital;

(o) bad debts to Account receivable ratio;

(p) current liability ratio;

(q) total debts to total assets;

(r) debtors turnover;

(s) inventory turnover;

(t) operating margin (%);

(u) netprofit margin (%);

(v) sector specific equivalent ratios, as applicable.]

Provided that the requirement of disclosures of debt service coverage ratio [***] and interest service coverage
ratio shall not be applicable for banks [monbanking financial cmpanies/housing finance companies]
registered with the Reserve Bank of I ndia.d
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the following line items along with the financial results:

(a) debtequity ratio;

(b) debt service coverage ratio;

(c) interest service coverage ratio;

(d) outstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity and value);

(e) capital redemption reserve/debenture redemption reserve;

(f) net worth;

(9) net profit after tax;

(h) earnings per share:

() current ratio;

(j) long tem debt to working capital;

(k) bad debts to Account receivable ratio;

() current liability ratio;

(m) total debts to total assets;

(n) debtorsé6é turnover;

(o) inventory turnover;

(p) operating margin percent;

() net profit margin percent:
Provided thatfithe information mentioned in stregulation (4) above is not applicable to
the listed entity, it shall disclose such other ratio/equivalent financial information, as may be
requiredto be maintained under applicable laws, if any.

311[***]
312(5)[*** ]}

(6) The listed entity which has listed its non convertible redeemable preference shares shall
makethefollowing additional disclosures as notes to financials:

(3)313[***]

(b)free reserve as on the end of half year;

(c) securitiepremium account balance (if redemption of redeemable preference share
is to be done at a premium, such premium rhayappropriated from securities
premium account):

Provided that disclosure on securities premium account balance may be provided
only in the year in whiclmon convertible redeemable preference shares are due for
redemption;

(d) track record of dividend payment on non convertible redeemable preference shares:

311 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (&iftandment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissithe second provisead as follows:
AiProvided further t h-adgulatidnshalirnetetappticabie & case obunsedured s s u b
debt instruments issued by regulated financial sector entities eligible for meeting capital requirements as
specified by respective regulators. o
312 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissiaupbregulation (5yead as follows:
fi(5) The listed entity shall, within seven working days from the date of sutmgfsthe information
required under subregulation (4),submit to stock exchange(s), a certificate signed by debenture trustee
that it has taken note of the contents. 0
313 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth AnentiifRegulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissiatause (ayead as follows:
fi@profit for the half year and cumulative profit f
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Provided that in case the dividend has been deferred at any time, then the tetual da
of payment shall be disclosed,;

(e) breach of any covenants under the terms of the non convertible redeemable
preference shares:
Provided that in case a listed entity is planning a fresh issuance of shares whose end
use is servicing of the non conubhkt redeemable preference shares (whether
dividend or principle redemption), then the same shall be disclosed whenever the
listed entity decided on such issuances.

(7) **[The listed entity shall submit to the stock exae(s), along with the quartediypancial
results, a statement indicating the utilisation of tb®ué proceeds of naonvertible
securities, in such format as may be specified by the Board, till such processisediave
been fully utilised or the purpose for which the proceeds veesed has beeachieved.

(7A) 39 The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange(s), along with the quarterly
financial results, a statement disclosing material deviation(s) (if any) in the use of issue
proceeds of noxonvertible securities frorte objects of the issue, in such format as may
be specified by the Board, till such proceeds have been fully utilised or the purpose for
which the proceeds were raised has been achigved.

(8) The listed entity shall, within tw&§working] days of the conclusion of the meeting of the
board of directors, publish the financial results &Hfthe line itemsieferred to in sub
regulation (4), in at least one English national daily newspaper circulating in the whole or
substantially the whole ohdlia'q:]

319 Provided that if the listed entity has submitted both standalone and consolidated financial
results, to the stock exchange(s), it shall publish consolidated financial results along with
the line items referred to in subgulation (4), in the mespapei

Annual Report.

314 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022. Prior to substituticregulation 7 read as under:
fiThe listed entity shall within fortfive days from the end of every quarter submit to the stock exchange, a
statement indicating the utilization of issue proceeds ofaumvertible securities, which shall be continued
to be given till such time the issue proceeds have been fully utilista gurpose for which these proceeds
were raised has been achievedl
315 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022. Prior to substitatibregulation 7A read as under:
filn case of any material deviation in the use of proceeds as compared to the objects of the issue, the same
shall be indicated in the format as specified by the Board
38 Subst it wtad de nbfl dhe GEBI (Listing ®@ligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
S"Substituted for fAstatementd by the Securities and EX
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022fw14.11.2022.
38Substituted for @d.0 by the Securities and Exchange
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
319 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Li€bigyations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022.
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53. 320(1)]The annual report of the listed entity shall contain disclosures as specified in
Companies Act, 2013 along with the following:

(a) audited financial statements i.e. balance sheets, profit and loss accolingmetc
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications as stipulated in regulation 52(3)(a), if
applicable;§?!

(b) cash flow statement presented only under the indirect method as prescribed in
Accounting Standar@/ Indian Accounting Standard 7, mandated undeti®@ec
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed thereunder or by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, whichever is applicable;

(c) auditors report;

(d) directors report;

(e) name of the debenture trustees with full contact details ;

(f) related party disclosures as specified in Pad Schedule V.

327(2) The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange and the debenture trustee and
publish on its website
(a) a copy of the annual report sent to the shareholders along with theafidtiee
annual general meeting, not later than the date of commencement of dispatch to its
shareholders; and
(b) in the event of any changes to the annual report, the revised copy along with the
details and explanation for the changes, not later than 46 tadter the annual
general meeting.

323 Security Cover.

54.324(1) In respect of it§?Ysecurelllisted nonconvertible debt securities, the listed entity
shall maintain hundred per ceft9{security cover or higher security coyas per the
terms of offer document/Information Memorandum and/or Debenture Trust Deed,
sufficient to discharge the principal amodfffand the interest therepat all times for
the nonconvertible debt securities issued.]

(2) The listed entity shall diktse to the stock exchange in quarterly, lyairly, year
to-date and annual financial statements, as applicable, the extent and nature of security
created and maintained with respect to its secured listedororertible debt securities.

320 Numbered as sulegulation (1)by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

#l1Substituted for the symbol 06; 06 Reguirgiems) (Arhebdmertt)i ng Obl
Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

322 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f7.9.2021.

Substitut edAsbebCovat hleySedorities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, @22 11.4.2022.

324 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations anddlisure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,

2020, w.e.f. October 08, 202Prior to the substitution, sutegulation (1) read as follows:

fi ( 1 despécof its listednon-convertibledebtsecuritiesthelisted entity shall maintairhundredpercent. asset
coversufficientto dischargehe principalamountat all times forthence onver t i bl e debt securi
325 Inserted by théSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Third Amendment) Regulmins, 2022v.e.f. 11.4.2022.

26Substitut edas$ebcovertohhighemassetdder b ySedurhties and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 11.4.2022.

27 Inserted by thé&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 11.4.2022.
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328[***]
329(3) The listed entity shall disclose tR&security coveravailable in case of nen

convertible debt securities along with its financial results in the format as specified by
the Board,

Credit Rating.

55. Each rating obtained by the listed entity with respechado-convertible 33 **]
securities shall be reviewed at least once a year by a credit rating agency registered by
the Board.

Documents and Intimation to Debenture Trustees.
56. (1) The listed entity shall forward the following to the debenture trustee promptly:
(a) a copy of the annual report at the same time as it is issued along waihy of
certificate from the listed entity's auditors in respect of utilisatfofunds during
the implementation period of the project for which the funds have been raised:

Provided that in the case of debentures or preference shares issued fanginanc

working capital or general corporate purposes or for capital raising purposes the

copy of the auditor's certificate may be submitted at the end ofieacdkial year

till the funds have been fully utilised or the purpose for which these funds were

intended has been achieved.

(b) a copy of all notices, resolutions and circulars relating to

(i) new issue of non convertible debt securities at the same time as they are sent
to shareholders/ holders of non convertible debt securities;

(i) the meetings of holders abn-convertible debt securities at the same time as
they are sent to the holders of non convertible debt securities or advertised in
the media includinghose relating to proceedings of the meetings;

(c) intimations regarding :

(i) any revision in the rating;

(i) any default in timely payment of interest or redemption or both in respect of
the non convertible debt securities;

(iii) failure to create charge on the assets;

337(iv) all covenants of the issue (including side letters, accelerated payment clause,
etc.)]

328 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) tRegyla
2020, w.e.f. October 08, 202Brior to the omission, sufegulation (3) read as follows:

A(3) The r equi r esgdatdn (1 shallmat heiagplitable im caseufecured debt securities
issued by regulated financial sector engitédigible for meeting capital requirements as specified by respective
regul ators. o

329 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

Substituted for t hheSeswitiesland BxchangeeBbardmofondia (ListingtOpligations
and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 11.4.2022.

81T h e wdoerbdt ofi hy thé SEBI€Lesting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Reguations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

332 |Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2020, w.e.f. October 08, 2020.
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333(d) ahalf-yearlycertificate regardingnaintenancef hundred percerff4security cover or
higher security covéras per the terms of offer document/ InformatMemorandum and/or
DebenturelTrustDeed, including compliance with all the covenants, in respdtefl non
convertible debsecuritiespy the statutoy auditor,alongwith the**financial results, in the
manner and format as specified by the Bhard
Providedthatthe submissiorof 339this] certificateis not applicable where bonds are
secured by &overnment guarantee.]

337(1A) The listed entity shall also disclose to the Debenture Trustee at the same time as it
has intimated to the stock exchange, all material events and/or information as disclosed under
regulation 51of these regulations in sodaliit relates to the interest, principal, issue and terms

of nonconvertible debt securities, rating, creation of charge on the assets, notices, resolutions
and meetings of holders of naonvertible debt securitigs.

(2) The listed entity shall forwar the debenture trustee any such information sought and
provide access to relevant books of accounts as required by the debenture trustee.

(3) The listed entity may, subject to the consent of the debenture trustetheseridrmation
stipulated in sulvegulation (1), in electronic form/fax.

33 Intimation to stock exchanges
57.The listed entity shall submit a certificate to the stock exchange regarding status of payment
of interest or dividend or repayment or redemptibprincipal of norconvertible securities,

333 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third AmetdRegulations,
2020, w.e.f. October 08, 202Prior to the substitution, clause (d) read as follows:
fia haltyearly certificate regarding maintenance of hundred percent. asset cover in respect of listed
non convertible debt securities, by either a preioty company secretary or a practicing chartered
accountant, along with the half yearly financial results:
Provided that submission of such half yearly certificates is not applicable in cases where a listed entity
is a bank or non bankinfinancial companies registered with Reserve Bank of India or where bonds
are secured by a Government guarantee. 0
¥ Substitut edassebcovertohheghemassetaddver b ySedurities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclase Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 11.4.2022.
%Substitutedhdfgeat hg fvon HystleiSEBI (ListirgsQbligatiend and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
3%6Substit t e d f or hatfyhe a dldalye @EBI (liisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
337 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
338 Substituted by th8ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2028.f. 15.06. 2023. Prior to its substitution, Regulation 57 read as under:

il nti mations/ other submissions to stock exchange(s]
57. (1) The listed entity shall submit a certificate to the stock exchange within one working day of the interest
or dividend or principal becoming due regarding status of payment in case -@bneegtible securities.

(2) [omitted]

(3) The listed entity shall forward to the stock exchange any other information in the manner and format as
specified by the Board from time to time.

(4) The listed entity shall within five working days prior to the beginning of the quarter provide details for
all the nonconvertible securities for which interest/dividend/principal obligations shall be payable during
the quarter.

(5) The listed entitghall within seven working days from the end of the quarter provide:

(a) a certificate confirming the payment of interest/dividend/principal obligations forcoowertible
securities which were due in that quarter; and
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within one working day of it becoming due, in the manner and format as spdujfido:
Board from time to time.]

Documents and information to holders of non convertible 239***] securities34q***]
58. (1) Thelisted entity shall send the following documents:

(a)**Soft copiesof the full annual reportsto al the holders of non-convertible
securitiesvho have registered theiremail addessgs) either with the listed entity
or with any depository

(b) Hard copy of statement containing the salient features of all the documents, as
specified in Section 136 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder to those
holders ofnon convertiblé*3securitieswho have not so registered;

(c) Hard copies of full annual reports to those holdersiai convertible®*J***]
securities****] , who request for the same.

(d ) 345[***]

(2)The listed entity shakend the noticef all meetings of holders of non convertildebt
securities and holders of n@onvertible redeemable preference shares specifically stating
that the provisions for appointment of proxy as mentioned in Section 105 of the Companies
Act, 2013, shall be applicable for such meeting

(3)The listed entityshall send pxy forms to holders of non convertible debt securities and
non-convertible redeemable preference shaia@sh shall be worded in such a manner that
holders of these securities may vote either for or against each resolution.

Structure of non convertible debt securities and non convertible redeemable preference

shares.

59. (1) The listed entity shall not make material modification without prior approval of the
stock exchange(s) where the non convertible debt securities econeertible
redeemale preference shares, as applicable, are listed, to :

(b) the details of all unpaid ietest/dividend/principal obligations in relation to naonvertible
securities at the end of the quarter.o

3% The word fidbybthedSERI iflisting ©ldigations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
30The wor ds cioannvde rnidrbl e preference shareso omitted by t
Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
lSubstituted for fASoft copi es nonfcowvertbleprefeeenca shadho r epor t s
have registered their emai | address(es) for the pur |
Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
2Substituted for i pr elfiseng Obligatons srid Disabosure Rgquirerheats) GF&IBH  (
Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
8 The word dAdebto omitted by the SEBI (Listing ObIi
Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
34Thewor ds fi-aadveohni ble preference sharesdo omitted by t
Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
345 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth AnestdRegulations,
2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021. Prior to the omission, clause (d) read as follows:

AiHal f yearl y ¢ ommu n i-regalationo4) and &) okregelationf52, ® tholdermof s u b

non convertible debt securities and rmomvertible prefereme s har es; 0
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(a)the structure of thé*qnon-convertible debt securitieslebenture in terms of
coupon 2 ***] redemption, or otherwise.

(b)the structure of the nowonvertible redeemable preference shares in terms of
dividend3*¥***] , redemption, or otherwise.

(2) The approval of the stock exchange referred to iaregblation (1) shall be made only
after:
(a)approval of the board of directors and the debenture tréfSfee] and

(b)**Jobtaining consent in writing of the holders of not less than tfoeshs, by
value of holders of that class of securities:
Provided that the listed entity shall provide the facof remote evoting to

facilitate such consent.]

Y Draft Schemeof Arrangement and Scheme of Arrangement.

59A. (1) Without prejudice to the provisions of regulation 11, the listed entity that has listed non
convertible debt securities or nopnvertibe redeemable preference shares, intends to
undertake a scheme of arrangement or is involved in a scheme of arrangement under
sections 23234 and section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall file the draft scheme of
arrangement with the stock exchangeéng with a nofrefundable fee as specified in
Schedule Xl, for obtaining the Nabjection letter, before filing of such scheme with the
National Company Law Tribunal, in terms of the requirements specified by the Board or
stock exchange(s) from time tone.

(2) The listed entity shall not file any scheme of arrangement under sectio23422Md
section66 of the Companies Act, 2013, with the National Company Law Tribunal unless
it has obtaine@ No-objection letter from the stock exchange(s).

(3) Thelisted entity shall place the Nabjection letter of the stock exchange(s) before the
National Company Law Tribunal at the time of seeking approval for the scheme of
arrangemenin the manner as may be specified by the Board from time to time:

Provided tlat the validity of the Nabjection letter of the stock exchange(s) shall be six
monthsfrom the date of issuance, within which the draft scheme of arrangement shall be
filed by thelisted entity with the National Company Law Tribunal.

6 Substituted byothe SERI dlListthg Ohligatoos and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
%The word and symbol fAconversion, 0 omittedmdntg) t he SEE
(Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
8The words andcesypymboli hbé poeference shares payabl e,
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 \8.2027.
9 The words fdicnonvegsdi bf endebt securitieso omitted by
Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
350 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitutialguse (byead as follows:
fi(b) after complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 including approval of the consent of
requisite majority of holders of that class of sec
351 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Bo&idddia (Listing Obligations ad Disclosure Requiremets
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022
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(4) Upon sanctiorf the Scheme by the National Company Law Tribunal, the listed entity
shallsubmit such documents, to the stock exchange(s), as may be specified by the Board
and/ or stoclexchange(s) from time to time.

(5) The listed entity shall ensure compliance witbhsother requirements as may be specified
by the Board from time to time.

(6) The requirements as specified under this regulation and under regulation 94A of these
regulations shall not apply to a restructuring proposal approved as part of a resddution p
by the National Company Law Tribunal under section 31 of the Insolvency Code, subject
to thedetails being disclosed to the recognized stock exchanges withidagnef the
resolutionplanbeing approved.

Record Date

60. (1) The listed entity shall fia record date for purposes of payment of interest, dividend
and payment of redemption or repayment amount or for such other puapsgesified
by the stock exchange

(2) The listed entity shall give notice in advance deast seven working days (excluding
the date of intimation and the record datie}he recognised stock excharig)eof the
record date oof as many days as the stock exchange(s) may agree to or require specifying
the purpose of the record date.

Terms of non convertible debt securities and non convertible redeemable preference

shares.

61. (1) The listed entity shall ensure timely payment of interest or divideriefobn
convertible debt securities and/aron-convertible redeemable preference shares or
redemption payment:

Provided that thésted entity shall not declare or distribute any dividend wherein it has
defaulted in payment of interest on debt securities or redemption thereof or in creation
of security as per the terms of the issue of debt securities:

353[***]
354(2) [***]

(3) Unless the terms of issue provide otherwise, the listed entity shall not select any of its listed
securities for redemption otherwise than pro rata basis or by lot.

352 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021.
353 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure RequirehéRtairth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f. 13.8.2021. Prior to the omission, the second proviso read as follows:
AProvided f urt hershatl hoalie applicable in cassEjunsecuredrdebt securities
issued by regulated financial sectartities eligible for meeting capital requirements as specified by
respective regulators. o
354 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissianpregulation (2read as follows:
fi(2) The listed entity shall not forfeit unclaimed interest/dividend and such unclaimed interest/dividend
shall be transferred to the o6l nvestor Education
Companies Act, 2013. 0
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(4) The listed entity shall comply with requirements as specified in risgukO for transfer
359 and transmissidrof securities including procedural requirements specified in Schedule
VII.

359Dealing with unclaimed nonconvertible securities and benefits accrued thereon
61A. (1) Thelisted entity shall not forfeit unclaimed interest/dividend/redemption amount.

(2) Where the interest/dividend/redemption amount has not been claimed within thirty
days from the due date of interest/ dividend / redemption payment, a listed entity shall
within seven days from the date of expiry of the said period of thirty days, transfer the
amount to an escrow account to be opened by the listed entity in any scheduled bank:
Provided that the interest/ dividend/ redemption amount that is unclaimed atachoung

for a period of less than seven years as on the date of notification of thisgsildition

shall be transferred to the escrow account within thirty days, where it shall remain for the
intervening period up to seven years.

(3) Any amount transfeed to the escrow account that remains unclaimed for seven years
shall be transferred to the O6lnvestor Educ
of section 125 of the Companies Act, 26%%]]

3 Provided that for listed entities whichdonotfali t hi n t he definition
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, any amount in the escrow
account that remains unclaimed for seven years shall be transferred to the Investor
3F’E’([)tection and Education Fund created by the Boatdrms of section 11 of the Act

111

360 Provided further that the amount transferred to the Investor Protection and Education

fund shall not bear any intergst

38Y(4) The unclaimed amount of a person that has been transferred to the Investor
Protection and Education Fund in terms of this regulation, may be claimed in such manner

as may be specified by the Bogrd.

Website.

62. (1) The listed entity shall maintain a functional website containing the following
information about the listed entity:
(a)details of its business;

355 Insered by theSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 20@2.f. 25.4.2022.

356 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

%"Substituted for #A.0 by t hfdndisS(kistingrObligatiens ad DisctbsurE x c han g e
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022

358 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Bodiddia (Listing Obligations ad Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022

% Subst it ubyetie Sdcwities dhd Bxchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulatid2??3

360 Insertedoy the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2023

361 |nsertedoy the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2023
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367 (aa) composition of the Board;]
(b)  *®¥financial information including:
(i) notice of meeting of the board of directarisere financial results shall
be discussed
(i) financial results, on the conclusion of the meeting of the board of
directors where the financial results were approved,
(iif) complete copy of the annual report includintpbae sheet, profit and
loss account, directors report, corporate governance repgrt etc;
(c)contact information of thedesignated officials of the listed entity who are
responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances;
(d)  email address for grievancedressal and other relevant details;
(e)name of the debenture trustees with full contact details;
(f) the information, report, notices, call letters, circulars, proceedings, etc concerning
nonconvertible redeemable preference shares or non convelgiblesecurities;
(g) all information and reports including compliance reports filed by the listed
entity;
(h) information with respect to the followin§{***] :
(i) default by issuer to paytierest®I***] or redemption amount;
(ii) failure to create a charge on the asset
(III) 366[***]
367[(i) all credit ratings obtained by the entity for all its listed +womvertible
securities, updated immediately upon any revision in the ratings;
() statement®f deviation(s) or variation(s) as specified in sagulation (7) and
subregulation (7A) of regulation 52 of these regulations;
(k) annual return as provided under section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder.]

389 (1A) The listal entities to whom regulations 15 to regulation 27 are applicable shall also
make the following additional disclosures on their website:

(a) composition of the various committees of the board of directors;

(b) terms and conditions of appointment of ipeledent directors;

(c) code of conduct of the board of directors and senior management personnel;
(d) details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy;

362 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
363 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amejdregutations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitutiafguse (byead as follows:
fi(b) financial information including complete copy of the annual report including balance sheet, profit
and | oss account, directors report etc; o0
% The wevedntis 0 byotmi SEBIe(ldsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
35T h e wo romittedby theé SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w 7.9.2021.
366 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissiaupb-clause (iii)read as follows:
fi(iii) revision of rating assigned to the non convertittle bt securi ti es: 0

367 |Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

368 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 we.f. 7.9.2021.
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(e) criteria of making payments to nerecutive directors, if the same has notrbee
disclosed in the annual report;
(f) secretarial compliance report as per-sepulation (2) of regulation 24A of these

regulations;
(g9) policy on dealing with related party transactions;
(h) policy for determining Omaterial 6 subs

(i) detailsof familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors including
the following details:
(i) number of programmes attended by the independent directors (during the year
and on a cumulative basis till date),
(i) number of hours spent by the independent directors in such programmes
(during the year and on cumulative basis till date), and
(i) other relevant details.]

(2) The listed entity may also issue a press release with respect to the events specified in
389 subregulatiors (1) and (1A)]

(3) The listed entity shall ensure that the contents of the website are correct and updated at
any given point of time.

379(4) The listed entity shall update any change in the content of its website within two
working daysrom the date of such change in content.]

3MListing of subsequentissuances of norconvertible debt securities

62A. (1) A listed entity, whose neconvertible debt securities are listed shall list all-non
convertible debt securities, proposed to be issued on or after January 1, 2024, on
the stock exchange(s).

(2) A listed entity, whose subsequent issues of unlisteecoomertible debt securities
made on obefore December 31, 2028e outstanding on the said date, risly
such securities, on the stock exchange(s).

(3) A listed entity that proposes list thenon-convertible debt securities on the stock
exchange(s) on or after January 1, 2024, dmstliall outstanding unlisted nen
convertible debt securities previously issued on or after January 1, 2024, on the
stock exchange(s) within three months from th&e d# the listing of the non
convertible debt securities proposed to be listed.

(4) Notwithstanding anything contained in this regulation, no listed entity shall be
required to list the followingecurities:

()  Bonds issued under section 54EC of thedome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

%Substituted for sudre gwd radbythenSERI {Listind @bligatidins and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

370 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

71 Inserted by th&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulans, 2023w.e.f. 20.09.2023.
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(5)

(6)

(i)  Non-convertibledebtsecurities issued pursuant to an agreement entered into
between théisted entityof such securities and multilateral institutipns

(iii) Non-convertible debt securities issued pursuant to an order of any court or
Tribunal or regulatory requiremerds stipulated by a financial sector
regulator namelythe Board, Reserve Bank of India, Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority of India othe Pension Fundind Regulatory
Development Authority

The securities issued by the listed entity under clauses (i) and (iii) o&gulation
(4) shall be locked in and held tithaturity by the investors andhall be
unencumbered.

A listed entity proposing to issue securitiggler sukregulation (4)shall disclose

to the stock exchanges on which its fommvertibledebtsecurities are listedll

the key terms of suckecurities,including embedded optionsecurity offered,
interestrates, charges, commissions, premium (by any name called), period of
maturity and such other details as mayréguired to be disclosdaly the Board

from time to timel.
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CHAPTER VI
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS SPECIFIED
SECURITIES AND EITHER NON -CONVERTIBLE DEBT SECURITIES OR NON -
CONVERTBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES OR BOTH

Applicability of Chapters IV and V.

63. (1) *JAn entity] which has listedi t s Ospeci f i &adcanertibler i ti es
Y o+ x x 1 s EYerulron dny receghised stock exchange, shall be bound by the
provisions in Chapter IV of these regulations.

(2) The listed entity described in suokgulation (1) shall additionally comply with the
following regulations in Chapter V:

(a) regulations50379***] ;

(b) regulation51;

(c) regulation52(3), (4),2'9(6) and (7)]

(d) ¥ Tregulations 53 to §2

(e) 378[***]

(f) 379[***]

(@) 7]

(h) 381[***]

(I) 382[***]

(J) 383[***]

(k) 384[***]

(|) 385[***] :

2Substituted for fAENntityo by the SEBI (Listing Oblige
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

%3The word fidebto omitted by t he SE B Ints)(Aifth Antendmaent) Ob | i gat
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

S%The words andonsgmbetl si lfiloe , r &d e e mab Ibeo t hroe foemi e ntceed shhya |
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 20277\9.20621.

875 The symbolsand number$§( 2 ) ,oritsedl by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

3 Substit6Bed amnmrthg BEBIO(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

"Substituonegdl & thy theiSEBI3ldsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.9.2021.

S The word amdcgnluabdnited mp thé SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

5% The wor d a mejulatiou Bob amitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Dissure

Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

% The word a majulatiou Bcb amitted fby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

%8l The word and numbefiregulation 0 omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

% The word a mejulatiou Bcb amitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Aendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

% The word a mejulatiou Bch anitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

% The wor d a majulatiou6dth amitted fby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

% The wor d a majulatiou6ith amitted fby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regidats, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
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Provided that the listed entity which has submitted any information to the stock exchange in
compliance with thelisclosure requirements under Chapter IV of these regulations, need not
re-submit any such information under the provisions of this regulations without prejudice to
any power conferred on the Board or the stock exchange or any other authority under any law
to seek any such information from the listed entity:

Provided further that the listed entity, which has satisfied certain obligations in compliance
with other chapters, shall not separately satisfy the same conditions under this chapter.

Delisting.

64. (1) In the event specified securities of the listed entity are delisted from the stock
exchange, the listed entity shall comply with all the provisions in Chapter V of these
regulations.

(2) In the event thanon-convertible debt securities and noonwertible redeemable

pr ef er e nottee listed entityeds Bot remain listed on the stock exchange, the listed
entity shall comply with all the provisions in Chapter IV of these regulations.
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3JCHAPTER VIA
FRAMEWORK FOR VOLUNTARY DELISTING OF NON -CONVERTIBLE
DEBT SECURITIES OR NON-CONVERTBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE LISTED ENTITY
ON SUCH DELISTING

64A. Applicability

(1) The provisions of this Chapter shall be applicable to volurdehgting of all
listed nonconvertible debt securities or n@onvertible redeemable preference
shares from all or any of the stock exchanges where suchamwertible debt
securities or nowwonvertible redeemable preference shares are listed except
where:

(a)a listed entitythat has outstanding listed roanvertible debt securities or
nonconvertible redeemable preference shares issued by way of a public
issue;or

(b) a listed entity has more than thoindred securities holders excluding
qgualified institutional buyers in any International Securities
Identification Number relating to listed n@onvertible debt securities or
nortconvertible redeemable preference shares;

(c) non-convertible debt securities or naonvertible redeemable preference
shares have been delisted by the stock exchanges as a consequence of
any penalty or action initiated against the listed entity or on any grounds
as specified under rule 21 of tBecurities Contracts (Regulation) Rules,
1957,

(d) nonconvertibledebt securities or neconvertible redeemable preference
shares have been delisted by the stock exchanges pursuant to redemption
of such securities or shares;

(e) non-convertible debt securities or naonvertible redeemable preference
shares have beemrlisted pursuant to a resolution plan as per Section 31
of the Insolvency Code.

(2) In case of delisting pursuant to a resolution plan as per the provisions of the
Insolvency Code, the details of delisting of raonvertible debt securities or
nonconvertibe redeemable preference shares shall be disclosed to the stock
exchanges where such securities or shares are listed within one working day of
the approval of the resolution plan under the Insolvency Code.

(3) The provisions of regulation 59 of thasgulations shall not be applicable to the
voluntary delisting of nomonvertible debt securities or naonvertible
redeemable preference shares under this Chapter.

64B. In-principle approval of the stock exchanges

(1) The listed entity shall make an applicat to the relevant stock exchange(s) for
seeking inprinciple approval for the proposed delisting of fummvertible debt
securities or noitonvertible redeemable preference shares in the form specified
by such stock exchange, not later than fifteen waykilays from the date of
passing of the board resolution to that effect or of receipt of any other statutory or
regulatory approval, whichever is later.

386 Inserted by th&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2028e.f. 23.08.2023.
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(2) The application seeking -principle approval for the delisting of the nron
convertible debt securities or ngonvertible redeemable preference shares shall
be disposed of by the relevant stock exchange(s) within a period not exceeding
fifteen working daygrom the date of receipt of such application that is complete
in all respects.

(3) The stock exchange shdlke into account all relevant matters including the
following while granting the irprinciple approval:

(a) necessary approvals of the board of doestin respect of the delisting
proposal;

(b) due resolution of all investor grievances by the listed entity;

(c) due payment of all listing fees or fines or penalties to the stock exchange;

(d) compliance with all provisions of these regulations;

(e) pendency of aniitigation or action against the listed entity pertaining to
its activities in the securities market;

(H nonpayment of any penalty imposed by the Board or the existence of any
restrictions or limitations imposed by the Board upon the listed entity.

64C. Obligations of the listed entity

(1) The listed entity shall ensure that the process of obtaining necessary approval from
all holders of norconvertible debt securities or neonvertible redeemable
preference shares commences within three working days of tiné gfran
principle approval by the stock exchange(s).

(2) All the events in respect of the proposal of delisting for-comvertible debt
securities or noftonvertible redeemable preference shares beginning with the
placing of the agenda for delisting beftine board of directors till the delisting is
completed, shall be disclosed as material information to the stock exchanges as per
regulation 51 of these regulations.

(3) In addition to the information disclosed to the stock exchanges as per regulation
51 of these regulations, the following information shall be disclosed by the listed
entity on its website as well as to the stock exchanges, within two working days
from the date of receipt of 4principle approval from the stock exchanges for
delisting of noncorvertible debt securities or namnvertible redeemable
preference shares:

(a) the name(s) of the stock exchange(s) from which thecoorertible debt
securities or nowonvertible redeemable preference shares are sought to be
delisted together with the détaof all such securities or shares that are sought
to be delisted;

(b) the cutoff date specified for determining the list of holders of -non
convertible debt securities or ngonvertible redeemable preference shares
to whom notice for approving the deligg proposal is mandated to be sent;

(c) the objects andeasons for delisting of nezonvertible debt securities or
nonconvertible redeemable preference shares;

(d) the proposed time table from the -ait date as specified in clause (b) till the
date of making final application to the stock exchanges for delisting ef non
convertible debt securities or noponvertible redeemable preference shares;

(e)a disclaimer specifying the following:
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AfOnce the said securities are delistei
(i) the delisted nowonvertible debt securities/ n@onvertible redeemable
preference shares shall cease to be under the purview of the Act and the
rules and regulations predweed thereunder; and
(i) the holders of such neconvertible debt securities/ naonvertible
redeemable preference shares shall not have any recourse to the investor
grievance mechanism for any reason including change/ removal of the
debenture trustee or in @ of default, such as dispute resolution
mechanism, grievance redress mechanism (SCORES), etc. under the Act
and the rules and regul ations made t

(f) a statement by the board of directors of the listed entity confirming that all
material informabn which is required to be disclosed under the provisions
of these regulations has been disclosed to the stock exchange;

(g) a statement from the debenture trustee on the adequacy of security cover in
case of secured naronvertible debt securities;

(h) an undertaking that the issuer has not paid or shall not pay any incentive to
any investor, directly or indirectly, in connection with delisting under this
Chapter;

(i) disclosure of noitonvertible debt securities or naonvertible redeemable
preference shiasheld by the related parties or by any person on behalf of the
issuer or its related parties and an undertaking that such persons shall not vote
on the proposal,

() an undertaking that the issuer has not entered or shall not enter into any
arrangement witliny investor or with persons referred to in clause (i) above,
by way of side letters or otherwise which leads to the discrimination amongst
the investors;

(k) a statement by the board of directors of the listed entity certifying-that:

(i) the entity is in comliance with the applicable provisions of securities
laws; and

(i) the delisting, in their opinion (with detailed explanation), is in the interest
of the holders of the neconvertible debt securities or naonvertible
redeemable preference shares;

() name ad contact details of the compliance officer of the listed entity.

64D. Notice of delisting

(1) The listed entity shall send the notice of delisting to the holders of non
convertible debt securities non-convertible redeemable preference shamnes
later than three working days from the date of receipt gfrinciple approval
from the stock exchanges.

(2) A copy of the notice referred to in subgulation (1) shall also be made available
on the website of the listed entity.

(3) The notice of delisting shatlontain all the disclosures specified in regulation
64C of these regulations along with thepirinciple approval received from the
stock exchange(s) and such other disclosures as may be necessary for the holders
of nonconvertible debt securities or ngonvertible redeemable preference
shares to take an informed decision.
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(4) The notice of delisting shall also contain the provisionwbtng for the holders
of the nonconvertible debt securities or naonvertible redeemable preference
shares.

64E. Approval from the holders and NeObjection Letter from the Debenture

Trustee.

(1) The listed entity shall obtain approval from all the holders ofcanvertible
debt securities or neconvertible redeemable preference shares within fifteen
working days from thelate of the notice of delisting.

(2) The listed entity shall also obtain the Jtjection Letter from the debenture
trustee in case of delisting of naonvertible debt securities.

64F. Failure of delisting proposal.
(1) The delisting proposal shall be deemedave failed under any of the following
circumstances:
(a) nonreceipt of inprinciple approval from any of the stock exchanges; or
(b) nonreceipt of requisite approval from the holders of «convertible debt
securities or noronvertible redeemabf@eference shares; or
(c) nonreceipt of NeObjection Letter from the debenture trustee in case of
proposal for delisting of nenonvertible debt securities.

(2) In case of failure of the delisting proposal, the listed entity shall intimate the same
to the stock exchanges within one working day from the date of event of failure as
specified in sukregulation (1).

64G. Final application to the stock exchange

(1) Within five working days from the date of obtaining the requisite approval from
the holders of nowonvertible debt securities or noonvertible redeemable
preference shares in terms of regulation 64E of these regulations, the listed entity
shall make the fial application for delisting to the stock exchange in the form
specified by such stock exchange.

(2) The final application for delisting shall be disposed of by the stock exchange within
fifteen working days from the date of receipt of such applicationishaamplete
in all respects.

(3) Upon disposal of the final application for delisting by the stock exchange, the non
convertible debt securities or nonnvertible redeemable preference shares of the
listed entity, as the case may be, shall be delisted the stock exchange.

64H. Delisting from some of the stock exchanges.

(1) Where the nostonvertible debt securities or neopnvertible redeemable
preference shares are listed on more than one stock exchanges, the listed entity
may choose to delist sucbaurities or shares from all stock exchanges except one
such stock exchange having nationwide trading terminals.
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(2) If the listed entity proposes to delist its roonvertible debt securities or non
convertible redeemable preference shares as peegultaion (1),the provisions
of regulations 64B to 64G of these regulations shall not be applicable and the listed
entity shall:

(a) obtain the prior approval of its board of directors for such delisting;

(b) make an application to the stock exchange for delistsnganconvertible
debt securities or neconvertible redeemable preference shares;

(c) disclose the fact of delisting from the stock exchanges on its website;

(d) obtain NeObjection Letter from the Debenture Trustee in case of proposed
delisting of norconvertble debt securities;

(e) disclose the fact of delisting, the reasons for such delisting and the fact of
continuation of listing of noronvertible debt securities or naonvertible
redeemable preference shares, as the case may be, on the stock exchange
having nationwide trading terminals, on its website.

(3) The application for delisting filed as per stdgulation (1) shall be disposedinf
the stock exchange within a period not exceeding thirty working days from the
date of receipt of such application that is complete in all respects.

641. Monitoring of compliance by the stock exchanges
The relevant stock exchanges shall monitor compéaby the listed entity with
the provisions of this Chapter and shall report to the Board all instances-of non
compliance as soon as reasonably possible.
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CHAPTER VII
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS INDIAN
DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS

Applicability.

65. The provisions of this chapter shall apply to listed entity whose securities market
regulators are signatories to the Multilateral Memorandum of Understanding of
Il nternati onal Organi zati on of Securities
Receiptsd as def i neCompanes Registidtiom ef Fdreggn o f t
Companies) Rules, 2014.

Definitions.

66. For the purpose of this chapter , unless the context otherwise requires
@il DR Hol der (s) o6 shal/l mean thol der (s) of
(biDepository Agreemento shall mean an agr

domestic depository

()i Home Countircyd nt shall neeén the coungry an garent country
where the listed entity is incorporated and listed.

dAsSechoidegr 06 shall mean hol der of the se
entity in the home country.

General Obligations of listed entity.
67. (1) All correspondences filed with the stock exchange(s) and those sent to the IDR
Holders shall be in English.

(2) The listed entity shall comply, at all times, with the rules/regulations/laws of the country
of origin.

(3) The listed entity shall undertake that the competent Courts, Tribunals and regulatory
authorities in India shall have jurisdiction in the event of any dispute, either with the stock
exchange or any investor, concerning the India Depository Receiptsdofieseibscribed
or bought in India.

(4) The listed entity shall forward, on a continuous basis, any information requested by the
stock exchange, in the interest of investors from time to time.

(5)°87All claims, differences or disputes between the listed eatityits investor arising out
of or in relation to the activities of the listed entity in the securities market shall be
submitted to a dispute resolution mechanism that incloteiation and/or conciliation
and/or arbitrationin accordance with the pratgre specified by the Boaid.

Disclosure of material event®or information .

387 Substitutedby the Securities and Exchange Board of India ¢Ali&ive Dispute Resolution Mechanism)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023, w.e04-07-2023.Beforethe substitution subregulation(5) read as follows:
(5) In case of any claim, difference or dispute under the provisions of this chapter and other provisions
of these regulations applicable to the listed entity, the same shall be referred to and decided by arbitration
as provided in the bylaws and regulaons of the stock exchange(s).

98



68. (1) The listed entity shall promptly inform to the stock exchange(s) of all events which
are material, all information which is price sensitive and/or have bearing on
performancfperation of the listed entity.

(2) Without prejudice to the generality of stdgulation (1), the listed entity shall make the
disclosures as specified in Part C of Schedule lll.

Indian Depository Receipt holding pattern & Shareholding details.

69. (1) Thelisted entity shall file with the stock exchange the Indian Depository Receipt
holding pattern on a quarterly basis within fifteen days of end of the quarter in the
format specified by the Board.

(2) The listed entity shall file the followingethils wit the stock exchange as is required to
be filed in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the listing authority or stock
exchange in its home country or any other jurisdiction where the securities of the listed
entity are listed:
(a)Shareholding Patte;
(b)Pre and post arrangement share holding pattern and Capital Structure in case of any
corporate restructuring like mergers / amalgamations

Periodical Financial Results.

70. (1) Thelisted entity shall file periodical financial results with the stock exchange in
such manner and within such time and to the extent that it is required to file as per the
listing requirements of the home country.

(2) The listed entity shall comply witthé requirements with respect poeparation and
disclosures in financial resulés specified in Part B of Schedule V.

Annual Report.

71. (1) The listed entity shall submit to stock exchangeaanual reporat the same time
as it is disclosedo the security holder in its home country or in other jurisdictions
where such securities are listed.

(2) Theannual report shall contain the following:
(a)Report of board of directors;
(b)Balance Sheet;
(c)Profit and Loss Account;
(d)Auditors Report;
(e)All periodical and special reports( if applicable);
() Any such other report which is required to be sent to security holders annually.

(3) The listed entity shall comply with the requirements with respegréparation and
disclosures in financial results amnual reporas specified in Part B of Schedule V.

Corporate Governance.

72. (1) The listed entity shall comply with the corporate governance provisions as
applicable in its home country and other jurisdictions in which its equity shares are
listed.
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(2)The listed entity shall submit to stock exchange a comparative analysis of the corporate
governance provisions that are applicable in its home country and in the other jurisdictions
in which its equity shares are listed along with the compliance of the g&&vis the
corporate governance requirements applicable under regulation 17 to regulation 27, to other
listed entities.

Documents and Information to IDR Holder.
73. The listed entity shall disclos#nd the following documents to IDR Holdeas, the
same time and to the extent that it discloses to security holders in its home country or
in other jurisdictions where its securities are listed
(a)Soft copies othe annual report to all the IDR holders who have registered their
email address(es) for the posge
(b)Hard copy of the annual report to those IDR holders who request for the same either
throughdomestic depository or Compliance Officer
(c)the pre and post arrangement capital structure and share holding pattern in case of
any corporate restructuring likeergers / amalgamations and other schemes

Equitable Treatment to IDR Holders.

74.  (1)If the listed entity's equity shares or other securities representing equity shares are
also listedon the stock exchange(s) in countries other than its home country, it shall
ensure that IDR Holders are treated in a manner equitable with security holders in home
country.

(2) The listedentity shall ensure that for all corporate actions, except tiadseh are not
permitted by Indian laws, it shall treat IDR holders in a manner equitable with security
holders in the home country.

(3) In case of takever or delisting or buypack of its equity shares, the listed entity shall,
while following the laws pplicable in its home country, give equitable treatment to IDR
holders visavis security holder in home country

(4) The listed entity shall ensupgotectionof interests of IDR holders particularly with
respect to all corporate benefits permissibleanriddian laws and the laws of its home
country and shall address all investor grievances adequately.

Advertisements in Newspapers.

75. (1)The listed entity shall publish the following information in the newspaper :
(a)periodical financial results required to be disclosed;
(b)Notices given to its IDR Holders by advertisement;

(2)Theinformationspecified in sulyegulation (1) shall be issuéd at one English national
daily newspaper circulating in the whole or substantitdly whole of India and ione
Hindi national daily newspaper in India.

Terms of Indian Depository Receipts.
76. (1) The listed entity shall pay the dividend as per the timeframe applicable in its home
country or other jurisdictions where its securities lgsted, whichever is earlier, so as
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to reach the IDR Holders on or before the date fixed for payment of dividend to holders
of its equity share or other securities.

(2)The listed entity shall not forfeit unclaimed dividends before the claim becomes barred
law in the home country of the listed entity, as may be applicable, and that such forfeiture,
when effected, shalle annulled in appropriate cases.

(3) The Indian Depository Receipts shall have-tmay fungibility in the manner specified
by the Boardrom time to time.

Structure of Indian Depository Receipts.

77. (1) Thelisted entity shall ensuriéhat the underlying shares of IDRs shall rauaki-
passuwwith the existing shares of the same class and the fact of having different classes
of shares based on different criteria, if any, shall be disclosed bgtdeentityin the
annual report.

(2) The listed entity shall not exercise a lien on the fogliyl underlying shares, against which
the IDRs are issued, and that in respect of partly paid underlying shares, against which the
IDRs are issued and shall also not exercise any lien except in respect of moneys called or
payable at a fixed time in respedtsuch underlying shares.

(3) The listed entity, subject to the requirements under the laws and regulations of its home
country, if any amount be paid up in advance of calls on any underlying shares against
which the IDRs are issued, shall stipulditat such amount may carry interest but shall not
in respect thereof confer a right to dividend or to participate in profits.

Record Date.

78. (1) The listed entity, where it is required so to do in its home country or other
jurisdictions where its secus may be listed, shall fix the record date for the purpose
of payment of dividends or distribution of any other corporate benefits to IDR Holders.

(2) The listed entity shalive notice in advanceof at least four working days to the
recognised stockxchange(spf record date specifying the purpose of the record date.

Voting.

79. (1) The listed entity shall, eithéirectly or through an agent, send out proxy forms to
IDR Holders in all cases mentioning that a security holder may vote either for or against
each resolution.

(2) Voting rights of the IDR Holders shall be exercisediccordance with the depository

agreement.

Delisting of Indian Depository Receipt.
80. (1) The listed entity shall, if it decides to delist Indian Depository Receipts, give fair
and reasonable treatment to IDR holders.
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(2)The listed entity shalcomply with such norms and conditions for delisting Indian
Depository Receipts as specified by the Board or stock exchange in this regard.

(3) Thelistedentity shall, in case underlying equity shares are delisted, shall delist and
cancel the Indian Depository Receipts.
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CHAPTER VIII
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS SECURITISED
DEBT INSTRUMENTS

Applicability.

81. (1) The provisions of this chapter shall applyfecial Purpose Distinct Entitgsuing
securitised debt instruments and trusteespafcial Purpose Distinct Entispall ensure
compliance with each of the provisions of these regulations.

(2) The expressions "asset pool”, "clean up call option”, "credit enhancement”, "debt or
receivables”, "investor”, "liquidity provider", "obligor", "originator”, "regulated activity",
"scheme", "securitization", "securitized debt instrument”, "servicer", "spaaipbse distinct

entity”, "sponsor" and "trustee" shall have the same meaning as assigned to them under
[Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments

and Security Receipts) Regulations, 2588

Intimation and filings with stock exchange(s).

82. (1) The listed entity shall intimatthe Stock exchange, of its intention to issue new
securitized debt instruments either through a public issue or on private placement basis
(if it proposes to list such privately placdebt securities on the Stock exchange) prior
to issuing such securities.

(2)The listed entity shall intimate to the stock exchange(s)east twoworking days in
advancegexcluding the date of the intimatioand date of the meding, regardingthe
meeting of its board of trusteest, which the recommendation or declaration of issue of
securitized debt instruments or any other matter affecting the rights or interests of holders
of securitized debt instruments is proposed to be considered.

(3)Thelisted entity shall submit such statements, reports or information including financial
information pertaining to Schemes to stock exchamigein seven days from the end of
the month/ actual payment date, either by itself or through the servicer, ontdynbaisis
in the format as specified by the Board from time to time:

Provided that where periodicity of the receivables is not monthly, reporting shall be made
for the relevant periods

(4)The listed entity shall provide the stock exchange, eithétisblf or through the servicer,
loan level information, without disclosing particulars of individual borrowers, in manner
specified by stock exchange.

Disclosure of information having bearing on performance/operation of listed entity

and/or price sensitive information.

83. (1) The listed entity shall promptly inform the stock exchange(s) of all information
having bearing on the on performance/operation of the listed entity and price sensitive
information.

388 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w. e. f. 06. 09 . 2 Oskcarities Bnd iIExcltangé Board ¢f indig (Public Offereaadd a s
Listhgof Securitised Debt I nstruments) Regulations, 2008
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(2)Without prejudice to the generality of subgulatior{l), the listed entity shall make the
disclosures specified in Part D of Schedule IlI.

ExplanatonrThe expression o6promptly informd, shal
informed must as soon as practically possible and without any delay and that the information
shall be given first to the stock exchange(s) before providing the same to arpatkyrd

Credit Rating.

84. (1) Every rating obtained by the listed entity with respect to securitised debt
instruments shall be periodically reviewed, preferably once a yearcigda rating
agency registered by the Board.

(2) Any revision in rating(s)ksall be disseminated by the stock exchange(s).

Information to Investors.
85. (1) The listed entity shall provide either by itself or through the servicer, loan level
information without disclosing particulars of individual borrower to its investors.

(2)The lised entity shall provide information regarding revision in rating as a result of credit
rating done periodically in terms of regulation 84 above to its investors.

(3)The information at subegulation (1) and (2) may be setat investors in electronic
form/fax if so consented by the investors.

(4)The listed entity shall display the email address of the grievance redressal division and
other relevant details prominently on its website and in the various materials / pamphlets/
advertisement campaigns initiated by it for creating investor awareness.

Terms of Securitized Debt Instruments.

86. (1) The listed entity shalensure that no material modification shall be made to the
structure of the securitized debt instruments in termscanipon, conversion,
redemption, or otherwise without prior approval of the recognised stock exchange(s)
where the securitized debt instruments are listed and the listed entity shall make an
application to the recognised stock exchange(s) only after tmevahpy Trustees.

(2) The listed entity shaknsure timely interest/ redemption payment.

(3)The listed entity shaknsureghatwhere credit enhancement has been provided for, it shall
make credit enhancement available for listed securitized debt instrumatitimes.

(4)The listed entity shall not forfeit unclaimed interest and principal and such unclaimed
interest and principal shall be, after a period of seven years, transferred to the Investor
Protection and Education Fund established under the Sesuaitd Exchange Board of
India (Investor Protection and Education FuReégulations, 2009.

(5)Unless the terms of issue provide otherwise, the listed entity shall not select any of its listed

securitized debt instruments for redemption otherwise than on pro rata basis or by lot and
shall promptly submit to the recognised stock exchange(s) thésdbtzieof.
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(6)The listed entity shalfemain listed till the maturity or redemption of securitised debt
instruments or till the same are delisted as per the procedure laid down by the Board
Provided that the provisions of this stdgulation shall not s#rict the right of the
recognised stock exchange(s) to delist, suspend or remove the securities at any time and
for any reason which the recognised stock exchange(s) considers proper in accordance
with the applicable legal provisions.

Record Date.

87. (1) The listed entity shall fix a record date foayment of interest and payment of
redemption or repayment amount for such other purposess specified bythe
recognised stock exchangg

(2) The listed entity shall give notice in advance ¢éast seven working days (excluding
the date of intimation and the record date)he recognised stock excharigeof the
record date or of as many days as the Stock Exchaageagree to or requispecifying
the purpose of the record date.

38JCHAPTER VIII A
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS SECURITY
RECEIPTS

Applicability.

87A. (1) Theprovisions of this chapter shall apply to the issuer of security receipts which has
listed its security receipts and the issuer and its sponsor shall ensure compliance with
each of the provisions of these Regulations.

(2) The expr esscitoinosn ficacsnspea n yroe, ¢ 0"nisnfvroedsft eorr " f, o ri
saleo, dAprivate placement offero, Aqualified
and Avaluero shall have the same meaning as
Board of Inda (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments and Security Receipts)
Regulations, 2008.

Intimations and Disclosure of events or information to Stock Exchanges.

87B.(1) The listed entity shall first disclose to stock exchange(s) of all eventf®omnation,
as specified in Part E of Schedule 1ll, as soon as reasonably possible but not later than
twenty four hours from occurrence of the event or information:

Provided that in case the disclosure is made after twenty four hours of occurrencevehthe
or information, the listed entity shall, along with such disclosures provide explanation for the
delay.

(2) The listed entity with respect to disclosures referred to in this regulation, shall provide
updates related to such disclosures on a regodemis, till such time the event is
resolved/closed, with relevant explanations.

389 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w.e.f. 06.09.2018.
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(3) The listed entity shall provide specific and adequate reply to all queries raised by stock
exchange(s) with respect to any events or information.

Provided that the stoakxchange(s) shall disseminate information and clarification as soon as
reasonably practicable.

(4) The listed entity, suo moto, may confirm or deny any reported event or information to
stock exchange(s).

(5) The listed entity shall disclose on wi®bsite or on the website of the sponsor all such
events or information which has been disclosed to stock exchange(s) under this regulation,
and such disclosures shall be hosted on the website of the listed entity for a minimum period
of five years and threafter as per the archival policy of the listed entity, as disclosed on its
website.

Valuation, Rating and NAV disclosure.
87C. (1) An issuer whose security receipts are listed on a stock exchange shall ensure that:
(1) the listed security receipts are vatlat the end of each quarter. as on March
31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of every year;

(i) valuation is conducted by an independent valuer; and

(i)  thenet asset value is calculated on the basis of such independent valuation and the
same is declared by the asset reconstruction company within fifteen days of the
end of the quarter.

(2) The issuer shall also comply with the extant Reserve Bank of Ingiarement of
obtaining credit rating of security receipts at half yearly interval and declaration of the net
asset value thereafter and/or any other requirement as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
from time to time.

Provided that in those two quers in a year, where both external valuation and credit rating
are required, issuer shall disclose lower of the two calculated Net Asset Value.

Terms of Security Receipts.

87D. (1) Any security receipt issued would be transferable only in favour offigdatiuyers
in terms of Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of
Security Interest Act, 2002.

(2) Unless the terms of issue provide otherwise, the listed entity shall not select any of its
listed security receipts for paymts otherwise than on pro rata basis or by lot and shall
promptly submit to the stock exchange(s) the details thereof.

Record Date.
87E.(1) The listed entity shall fix a record date for payment to holders of security receipts or
for such other purposes specified by the stock exchange(s).

(2) The listed entity shall give notice in advance of at least seven working days (excluding the
date of intimation and the record date) to the stock exchange(s) of the record date or of as
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many days as the stocka»ange may agree to or require specifying the purpose of the record
date.]

CHAPTER IX
OBLIGATIONS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS MUTUAL FUND
UNITS

Applicability.

88. (1)The provisions of this chapter shall apply to the asset management company
managing the mutual fund scheme whose units are listed on the recognised stock
exchange(s).

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in this chapter, the provisions of the t&ecarid
Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and directions issued
thereunder shall apply on the listed entity and to the schemes whose units are listed on the
recognised stock exchange(s).

Definitions.

89. The expressionsAsset Management Compahy“Net Asset Value" , "Scheme" ,
"Unit" and "Unit Holder"shall have the same meaning as assigned to them under
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Submission of Documents.

90. (1) Thelisted entityshall intimate to the recognised stock exchange(s) the information
relating to daily Net Asset Value, monthly portfolio, half yearly portfolio of those
schemes whose units are listed on the recognised stock exchange(s) in the format as
specified under Sedties and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations,
1996 and directions issued there under.

(2) The listed entity shall intimate to the recognised stock exchange(s) in the manner
specified by the recognised stock exchange(s) of:

(a)movement in unitapital of those schemes whose units are listed on the recognised
stock exchange(s);

(b)rating of the scheme whose units are listed on the recognised stock exchange(s) and
any changes in the ratinigereof (wherever applicable);

(c)imposition of penalties and nmaial litigations against the listed entity and Mutual
Fund,;

(d)any prohibitory orders restraining the listed entity from transferring units registered
in the name of the unit holders.

Dissemination on the website of stock exchange(s).

91. The listed entity shall submit such information and documents, which are required to
be disseminated on the | isted entityods wt
Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and directions issued there under, to
the recognised stock exchange for dissemination.
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39 CHAPTER IX -A

OBLIGATIONS OF SOCIAL ENTERPRISES

Applicability
91A. The provisions of this Chapter shall apply to:
(a) a For Profit Social Enterprise whose designated securities are listed on the
applicable segment of the Stock Exchange(s);
(b) a Not for Profit Organization that is registe@ithe Social Stock Exchange(s);

Disclosures by a For Profit Social Enterprise.

91B. A For Profit Social Enterprise whose designated securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange(s) shall comply with the disclosure requirements contained in these
regulations with respect to issuers whose specified securities are listed on the Main
Boardor the SME Exchange or thenovators Growth Platfornas the case may be.

Disclosures by a Not for Profit Organization.

91C. (1) A Not for Profit Organization registered on the Social Stock Exchange(s),
including a Not for Profit Organization whoskesignated securities are listed on the
Social Stock Exchange(s), shall be required to make annual disclosures to the Social
Stock Exchange(s) on matters specified by the Board, within 60 days from the end of
the financial year or within such period as nh&yspecified by the Board

(2) In addition to the disclosures referred in sefulation (1), the Social Stock
Exchange(s) may specify matters that shall be disclosed by the Not for Profit
Organization on an annual basis.

Intimations and disclosures by $cial Enterprise of events or information to Social

Stock Exchange(s) or Stock Exchange(s)

91D. (1) A Social Enterprise whose designated securities are listed on the Social

Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s), as the case may be, shall framg a polic
for determination of materiality, duly approved by its board or management, as the case
may be, which shall be disclosed on the Social Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock
Exchange(s).

(2) The board and management of the Social Enterprise shall authoriae rapes of

its Key Managerial Personnel for the purpose of determining materiality of an event or
information and for the purpose of making disclosures to the Social Stock Exchange(s)
or the Stock Exchange(s), as the case may be, under this regulatitime aswhtact

details of such personnel shall also be disclosed to the Social Stock Exchange(s) or the
Stock Exchange(s).

390 Inserted by thé&ecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listigligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2022e.f. 25.7.2022.
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(3) A Social Enterprise whose designated securities are listed on the Social Stock
Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s), as the cagdepahall disclose to the Social
Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s) where it is registered or has listed its
specified securities, as the case may be, any event that may have a material impact on
the planned achievement of outputs or outcomes.

(4) The disclosure referred in subgulation (3) shall be made as soon as reasonably
possible but not later than seven days or within such period as may be specified by the
Board, from the occurrence of the event and shall comprise details of the eltetihon

the potential impact of the event and the steps being taken by the Social Enterprise to
address the same.

(5) The Social Enterprise shall provide updates on a regular basis along with
relevant explanations in respect of the disclosures requibiregulation (3) till the
time the concerned event remains material.

(6) The Social Enterprise shall provide specific and adequate reply to all queries
raised by the Social Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s), as the case may be,
with respect tany events or information:

Provided that the Social Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s), as the case may
be, shall disseminate the information and clarification as soon as reasonably practicable.

(7) The Social Enterprise masuo motoconfirm or deny any reported event or
information to Social Stock Exchange(s) or the Stock Exchange(s), as the case may be.

(8) The Social Enterprise shall disclose on its website all such events or
information which have been disclosed to the SociatiSExchange(s) or the Stock
Exchange(s), as the case may be, under this regulation.

Disclosures by a Social Enterprise in respect of social impact

91E. (1) A Social Enterprise, which is either registered with or has raised funds through

a Social Stock Exchange or a Stock Exchange, as the case may be, shall be required to
submit an annual impact report to the Social Stock Exchange or the Stock Exchange in
theformat specified by the Board from time to time.

(2) The annual impact report shall$¥§assessed by a Social Impact Assessment Firm
employing Social Impact Assessoj(s)

Ml gubstituted o r t h audited by d Socid Audit Firm employing Social Auditor b ySedurities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Misare Requirements) (Seventh Amendment) Regulations,
2023w.e.f. 21.12.2023
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(3) The Social Stock Exchange(s) may specify parameters, in addition to thaBedspec
by the Board, which shall be required to be disclosed by a Social Enterprise on an annual
basis.

Statement of utilisation of funds

91F. (1) A listed Not for Profit Organization shall submit to the Social Stock
Exchange(s) the following statementraspect of utilisation of the funds raised, on a
quarterly basis:

(a) categorywise amount of monies raised;

(b) categorywise amount of monies utilised;

(c) balance amount remaining unutilised.

(2) The unutilised amount shall be kept in a separate dedunt and shall not be-co
mingled with other funds.

(3) The statement required under gabulation (1) shall be given till the time the issue
proceeds have been fully utilised or the purpose for which they were raised, has been
achieved.

CHAPTER X
DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE RECOGNISED STOCK EXCHANGE(S)

Dissemination.

92. (1) Upon receipt of relevant intimations, information, filings, reports, statements,
documents or any other submissions in terms of these regulations, from the listed entity
the reognised stock exchange(s) shall immediately disseminate the @anits
website

(2)The disseminations by the recognised stock exchange(s) as mentioneddggudabon (1)
shall be made in organised, user friendly and easily referable manner including by
providing hyperlinks for easy accessibility.

Transferability.

93. The recognised stock exchange(s) shall coordinate with Depositories to ensure
compliance with the applicable laws or directions of the Board or any competent court
with regard to freezingunfreezing, lockin/ release of lockn with respect to securities
issued or managed by the listed entity.

Draft Scheme of Arrangement & Scheme of Arrangement®Jin case of entities that have

listed their specified securities]

94, (1) The designated stoexchange, upon receipt of draft schemes of arrangement and
the documents prescribed by the Board, as peregudation (1) of regulation 37,
shall forward the same to the Board, in the manner prescribed by the Board.

392 |Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Bodidddia (Listing Obligations ad Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022
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(2) The stock exchange(s) shall submit to the Boaréd®#s*] No-Objection Letter
on the draft scheme of arrangement after iater ascertaining whether the draft
scheme of arrangement is in compliance with securities laws \titinig days of
receipt of daft scheme of arrangement or within seven days of date of receipt of
satisfactory reply on clarifications from the listed entity and/or opinion from
independent chartered accountant, if any, sought by stock exchange(s), as
applicable.

(3)The stock exchangs), shall issué®{***] No -objection letter to the listed entity
within seven days of receipt of comments from the Board, after suitably
incorporating such comments in t#%§***] No -objection letter:

Provided that the validity of th&9***] No-objection léter of stock exchanges
shall be six months from the date of issuance.

(4)The stock exchange(s) shall bring 44***] objections 3°%***] to the notice of
Court or Tribunal at the time of approval of the scheme of arrangement.

(5)Upon sanction of the Scheniyy the Court or Tribunal, the designated stock
exchange shall forward its rebmendations to the Board on the documents
submitted by the listed entity in terms of s@gulation (5) of regulation 37.

399 Draft Scheme of Arrangement & Scheme of Arrangemenin case of entities that have
listed their non-convertible debt securities or norconvertible redeemable preference
shares.

94A. (1) Upon receipt of the draft schemes of arrangement and the documents under sub
regulation (1) of regulation 59A, the desigeistock exchange shall forward the
same to th&oard, in such manner as may be specified by the Board.

(2) Thestock exchange(s) shall submit to the Board itabgection Letter on the draft
scheme of arrangement, after ascertaining whether the chiafhe of arrangement
is in compliance with securities laws, within the timelines as may be specified by
the Board from time to time.

(3) The stock exchange(s), shall issue-dlgpection letter to the listed entity in the
manner andvithin the timelines, & may be specified by the Board from time to
time:

3983 The wordsii Ob gt i on Lnaitted by the SEBIY(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

394 The wordsiObservation Letter ar mitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(SecondAmendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

395 The wordsfiObservation Letter ar mitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

3% The wordsii 6 Obj e ct i o mittdd bythe 8EBD(Listing ®bligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

%7The wordsi o b s e r v anittedhy the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e&5f5.2021.

¥ Thewordsias t he c arstted bynthey SEBI €Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

399 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Bodidddia (Listing Obligations ad Disclosure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022
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Provided that the validity of the Nabjection letter of stock exchanges shall be six
monthsfrom the date of issuance.

(4) The stock exchange(s) shall bring the objections to the notice of Naflomglany
Law Tribunal at the time of approval of the scheme of arrangement by the National
Company LawTribunal.

(5) Upon sanction of the Scheme by the National Company Law Tribunal, the stock
exchangeshall forward its recommendations to the Board on dbeuments
submitted by the listed entity terms of sufregulation (4) of regulation 59A.]

[Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications accompanying Annual Audit Report.

95. The recognised stock exchange(s) shall review the Statement on Impact of Audit
Quialifications and the accompanying annual audit report submitted in terms of clause
(d) of subregulation (3) of regulation 33 and clause (a) of-mgulation (3) of
regulation 524%

Grievance Redressal.
96. The recognised stock exchange(s) shall redeeskiate redressal of complaints of
holders of listed securities from time to time.

Monitoring of Compliance/Non Compliance & Adequacy/ Accuracy of the disclosures
97. (1) The recognised stock exchange(s) shall monitor compliance by the listed entity
with provisions of these regulations.

(2)The recognised stock exchange(s) shall also monitor adequacy/ accuracy of the disclosures
made by listed entity with respect to provisions of these regulations.

(3)The recognised stock exchange(s) shall submit a report to the Board, with respect to the
obligations specified in sukegulations (1) and (2), in the manner specified by the Board.

(4)The recognised stock exchange(s) shall put in place appropriate framienioiding
adequate manpower and such infrastructure as may be required to comply with the
provisions of this regulation

W05 ubst i tFRerm® dccdmpanying Annual Audit Report.

95. The recognised stock exchange(s) shall review the Form B and the accompanying annual audit report,
submittedin terms of clause (d) of setegulation (3) of regulation 33 and clause (a) of-mgulation (3) of
regulation 52, in the manner specified in Schedul e \
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,fw0104-2016
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CHAPTER Xl
PROCEDURE FOR ACTION IN CASE OF DEFAULT

Liability for contravention of the Act, rules or the regulations.

98. (1) The listed entity or any other person thereof who contravenes any of the provisions
of these regulationshall, in addition to liability for action in terms of the securities
laws, be liable for the following actions by the respective stock exchangetbkg i
manner specified in circulars or guidelines issued by the Board:
(a)imposition of fines;
(b)suspension of trading;
(c)freezing of promoter/promoter group holding of designated securities, as may be

applicable, in coordination with depositories.
(d)any other ation as may be specified by the Board from time to time
(2) The manner of revocation of actions specified in clauses (b) and (c)}cfguilation (1), shall
be as specified in circulars or guidelines issued by the Board.

Failure to pay fine.

99. If listed entity fails to pay any fine imposed on it within such period as specified from
time to time, by the recognised stock exchange(s), after a notice in writing has been
served on it, the stock exchange may initiate action.

40ICHAPTER XI -A
POWER TO RELAX STRICT ENFORCEMENT OF THE REGULATIONS
Exemption from enforcement of the regulations in special cases.

99A. (1) The Board may, exempt any person or class of persons from the operation of all or
any of the provisions of these regulations for a pea®dhay be specified but not exceeding
twelve months, for furthering innovatidfq***] relating to testing new products, processes,
services, business models, etc. in live environment of regulatory sandbox in the securities
markets.

(2) Any exemption granteby the Board under suiegulation (1) shall be subject to the
applicant satisfying such conditions as may be specified by the Board including conditions to
be complied with on a continuous basis.

Explanation.d For the purposes of these regulations, Utapry sandbox" means a live
testing environment where new products, processes, services, business models, etc. may be
deployed on a limited set of eligible customers for a specified period of time, for furthering
innovation in the securities market, seddj to such conditions as may be specified by the
Board.]

CHAPTER XII
MISCELLANEOUS

Amendments to other regulations.

401 Inserted by the SEBI (Regulatory Sandbox) (Amendment) Regulation, w.€4#-2G20.
2The words Ain technological aspectsodo omitted by the
2021, w.e.f. 3.8.2021.
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100. The regulations specified in the Schedule IX to these regulations shall be amended in
the manner and to the extent stated therein.

Power to remove difficulties.

101. (1) In order to remove any difficulties in the application or interpretation of these
regulations, the Board may issue clarifications through guidance notes or circulars after
recording reasons in writing.

(2)In particular, ad without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such guidance
notes or circularsmay provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:
(a)procedural aspects including intimation to be given, documents to be submitted;
(b)disclosurerequirements;
(c)listing conditions.

Power to relax strict enforcement of the regulations.
102.[(1)]*°® The Board may in the interest of investors and securities market and for the
development of the securities market, relax the strict enforcement of any requicdme
these regulations, if the Board is satisfied that:
(a) any provision of Act(s), Rule(s), regulation(s) under which the listed entity is
established or is governed by, is required to be given precedence to; or
(b) the requirement may cause undue hardshipuestors; or
(c) the disclosure requirement is not relevant for a particular industry or class of listed
entities; or
(d) the requirement is technical in nature; or
(e) the noncompliance is caused due to factors affecting a class of entities but being
beyond the catrol of the entities.

409(1A) The Board may after due consideration of the interest of the investors and the
securities market and for the development of the securities market, relax the strict
enforcement of any of the requirements of these regulatfarsapplication is made
by the Central Government in relation to its strategicwestment in a listed entity.]

405(2) For seeking relaxation under stdgulation (1), an application, giving details and
the grounds on which such relaxation has been sought, shall be filed with the Board.

409(3)The application referred to under stggulation (2) shall be accompanied byan
refundable fee of rupees one lakh payable by way of direct credit into the bank account

493 Inserted by SEBI (Lishg Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 16.11.2018

404 Inserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure RequiremeBesygnth Amendment) Regulations,
2022 w.e.f.5.12.2022

4% Inserted by SEBI (Listing Olgations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 16.11.2018

406 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Payment of Fees and Mode of Payment)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f 01.04.2023. Prior to itdifutitm, subregulation (3) read as follows:

*[ (3) The application referred to under s@gulation (2) shall be accompanied by a-nefundable fee of rupees

one lakh payable by way of direct credit in the bank account through NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS or emmote

allowed by Reserve Bank of India or by way of a demand draft in favour of the Board payable in Mumbai.]

* Inserted bythe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w.e.f. 16.11.2018
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through NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS or online payment using the SEBI Payment Gateway or any
other mode as may be specifiegithe Board from time to time.]

Repeal and Savings

103. (1) On and from the commencement of these regulations, all circulars stipulating or
modifying the provisions of the listing agreements including those specified in
Schedule X, shall stand rescinded.

(2) Notwithstanding such rescission, anything donanyr action taken or purported to have
been done or taken including any enquiry or investigation commenced or show cause notice
issued in respect of the circulars specified inedulation (1) or the Listing Agreements,
entered into between stock exchefg) and listed entity, in force prior to the
commencement of these regulations, shall be deemed to have been done or taken under the
corresponding provisions of these regulations.

SCHEDULE | i TERMS OF SECURITIES
[SeeRegulation 12]

The listed entityshall use thdacility of electronic clearing services or real time gross
settlement or national electronic funds transfer as follows:

(1) the listed entity either directl8f7or through the depositories] or through their Registrar
to an Issue and/or Share Transfer Agent, shall use electronic clearing services (local,
regional or national), direct credit, real time gross settlement, national electronic funds
transfer etc for mdng payment of dividend/interest on securities issued/redemption or
repayment amount.

(2) the listed entity or Share Transfer Agent shall maintain bank details of their invastors
follows -
(a) for investors holding securities in dematerialized mode, by seeking the same from
the depositories.
(b) for investors holding securities in physical mode, by updating bank details of the
investors at their end.

(3) In cases where either the bank details such asibtegnk Character Recognition, Indian
Financial System Code, etc. that are required for making electronic payment are not
available or the electronic payment instructions have failed or have been rejected by the
bank, listed entity or share transfer agens h a | | i-dpard waryradbhts /
for making payments:

Provided that the listed entity shall mandatorily print the bank account details of the
investors on such payment instruments and in cases where the bank details of investors
are not asilable, the listed entity shall mandatorily print the address of the investor on
such payment instructions.

497 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2018, w.e.f. 30.5.2018.
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SCHEDULE Il: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PART A: MINIMUM INFORMATION TO BE PLACED BEFORE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
[SeeRegulation 17(7)]
Annualoperating plans and budgets and any updates.
Capital budgets and any updates.
Quarterly results for the listed entity and its operating divisions or business segments.
Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board of directors
The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level
of board of directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and

the Company Secretary.

Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and pendltesiowhich are materially
important.

Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution
problems.

Any material default in financial obligations to and by the listed entity, or substantial
nonpayment for goods sold lilge listed entity.

Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial
nature, including any judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the
conduct of the listed entity or taken an adverse view regardingementerprise that

may have negative implications on the listed entity.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or
intellectual property.

Significant labouproblems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development
in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement,
implementation of Voluntary Retirement Scheme etc.

Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are alatenature and not in normal
course of business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to
limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listiregjuirements and shareholders
service such as nggayment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.
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PART B: COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
[SeeRegulation 17(8)]

The following compliance certificate shall be furnished by chief executive officer and chief
financial officer:

A. They have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:
(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain atements that might be misleading;

2t hese statements together present a tru
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

B. There are, to the best of their knowledgel belief, no transactions entered into by
the listed entity during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed
entityés code of conduct.

C. They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
financialreporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed
to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
such inernal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(2) significant changes in internal control over financial reportungnd) the year;

(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the
involvement therein, if @y, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the |listed entity
reporting.

PART C: ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF
INFORMATION BY AUDIT COMMITTEE
[SeeRegulation 18(3)]

A. The role ofthe audit committee shall include the following:

(Q)oversight of the |listed entityds finan:¢
its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

(2) recommendation for aptment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the listed entity;

(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements andrgudit
report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular
reference to:
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@matters required to be included in th
be included in the boar do-sectiong(Pofrt i n
Sedion 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same;

(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

(d) significant adjustments made in the final@tatements arising out of audit
findings;

(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

() disclosure of any related party transactions;

(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) reviewing, with themanagement, the quarterly financial statements before

submission to the board for approval;
(6) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.)ieheestizof

funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus

/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the

utilisation of proceeds of ®9public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or

gualified institutions placemeptand making appropriate recommendations to the

board to take up steps in this matter;

(reviewing and monitoring the auditoros
effectiveness of audit process;

(8) approval or any subsequent miazhition of transactions of the listed entity with
related parties;

(9) scrutiny of intercorporate loans and investments;

(10)valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

(11)evaluation of internal financial controls and riskmagement systems;

(12)reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems;

(13)reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure
of the internal audit departmestaffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(14)discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there
on;

(15)reviewing the findings of any internal intggtions by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

(16)discussion with statutory auditors before the audit comnsemtm®ut the nature
and scope of audit as well as pastit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

(17)to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case ofpayment of declackdividends)
and creditors;

(18)to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism,;

“Suybstituted for the wor decurifiep antEkchangeBoard of Hdig histisgy i s s ue 0
Obligations andisdosure RRquirements) (sixth amendment) regulations, 2022 w.e.f. 14.11.2022
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(19)approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the
gualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

(20)Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the
audit committee.

409(21) reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the

holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% ck#te a

size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances /

investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision.]

410(22) consider and comment on rationale, 4mstefits and impact of schemes

involving merge, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its

shareholders.]

B. The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations;
(2) 411[***]
(3) managementltters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;
(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor
shall be subject teview by the audit committee.
(6) statement of deviations:
(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposteer than those stated in the
offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

PART D: ROLE OF COMMITTEES (OTHER THAN AUDIT COMMITTEE)
417See Regulation 19(4), 20(4) and 21(4)]

A. ROLE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :Role of
committee shall, interalia, include the following:

(1) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating
to, the remuneration of the direcs, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

499 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

410 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and DisclosReguirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

411 Omitted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremeng&xth Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f1.4.2022 Prior to the omission, the provision read as under:

fi ( Btatenent of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management 0

P2Syubstit (SeeReglubat fion 1 9Ky4he SEBh (distirg) Mpligatidns and Disclosure
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulatiafg]l w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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419(1A). For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of suchati@h, prepare a description
of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person
recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have
the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose egftifging
suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required,;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidpates.

(2) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and
the board of directors;

(3) devising a policy omliversity of board of directors;

(4) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in seniomanagement in accordance with the criteria laid down, and
recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

(5) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director,
on the basis of the report of performance eatbn of independent directors.

419(6) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior

management.]

B. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

“9The role of the committee shatiter-alia include the following:

(1) Resolving thegrievances of the security holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of sharesrex®ipt of annual report, nen
receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.
(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders.

3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in
respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
(4) Review ofthe various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.]

419C. Risk ManagementCommittee

413 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,

2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022.

414 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (AmetjdRegulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

415 Substituted by th8EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

w.e.f. 1.4.2019. Prior to the same, the provision read as follows:

iThe Committee s h athdgriavances df ttheesecurdyrhalders @& the listgdeentity including
complaints related to transfer of shares, freceipt of annual reportandnenecei pt of decl ared d
416 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremermsd Amendment) Regulations,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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The role of the committee shalhter alia, include the following:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

(a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically
faced by the listentity, in particular including financial, operational,
sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber
security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systemnd processes for internal
control of identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to
monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy,
including evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years,
including by considering the changing indystdynamics and evolving
complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its
discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer
(if any) shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other
committees, in instances where there is any overlap with activities of such
committees, as per the framework laid doby the board of directors.]

PART E: DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS
[SeeRegulation 27(1)]
A. The Board
A nonexecutive chairperson may be entitled to maintain a chairperson's office at the
listed entity's expense and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred in
performance of hi&![/her]duties.

B. Shareholder Rights
A half-yearly declaration of finamal performance including summary of the
significant events in last simonths, may be sent to each household of shareholders.

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report
The listed entity may move towards a regime of financial statements with unmodified
audit goinion.

419D. Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief

417 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

418 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirementg)r{@#amendment) Regulations,

2022 w.e.f. 22.3.2022 [Clause Dwas earlieromitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
RequirementsjAmendment) Regulations, 20¥8e.f. 1.4.2020. Prior to the omission, clause D read as follows:

S e p & ofehaipergopw and chief executive officer

The listed entity may appoint separate persons to the post of chairperson and managing director or chief
executive officer. o
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Executive Officer
The listed entity may appoint separate persons to the post of the Chairperson and the

Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer, such thahairperson shalil

(a) be a norexecutive director; and
(b) not be related to the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer as per the
definition of the term Arel atijveo define

E. Reporting of internal auditor
Theinternal auditor may report directly to the audit committee.
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SCHEDULE I

PART A: DISCLOSURES OF EVENTS OR INFORMATION: SPECIFIED
SECURITIES
[SeeRegulation 30]

The following shall be events/information, upon occurrence of which listed entity shall
make disclosure to stock exchange(s):

A. Events which shall be disclosewvithout any application of the guidelines for
materiality as specified in subregulation (4) of regulation (30):

1. “Acquisition(s) (including agreement to acquire), Scheme of Arrangemen
(amalgamation, merger, demerger or restructuring), sale or disposal of any unit(s),
division(s), whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking(s) or subsidiary of
the listed entity, sale of stake in associate company of the listed entity or any oth
restructuring.

Explanation (1) For the purpose of this sygaragraph, the word 'acquisition’
shall mean
(i) acquiring control, whether directly or indirectly; or
(i) acquiring or agreement to acquire shares or voting rights in a company,
whether existing or to be incorporated, whether directly or indirectly,
such that
(a)the listed entity holds shares or voting rights aggregating to five per
cent or more of the shareswmting rights in the said company; or
(b)there has been a change in holding from the last disclosure made under
subclause (a) of clause (ii) of the Explanation to this-patagraph
and such change exceeds two per cent of the total shareholding or
voting rights in the said company; or
(c)the cost of acquisition or the price at which the shares are acquired
exceeds the threshold specified in-slduse (c) of clause (i) of sub
regulation (4) of regulation 30.
Explanation (2)- For the purpose of this syjaraga p h ,

Afsal e or di
subsidiaryo and fAisale of st-ake

i n assoc

418 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing ObligatioBssmukure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. ¥52023. Prioito the substitution, the styfmragrapiread as
follows:
fil. Acquisition(s) (including agreement to acquire), Scheme of Arrangement (amalgamation/ merger/
demerger/restroturing), or sale or disposal of any unit(s), division(s) or subsidiary of the listed entity or
any other restructuring.
Explanation- For the purpose of this sytara, the word 'acquisition' shall mean,
(i) acquiring control, whether directly or indirectly; or,
(i) acquiring or agreeing to acquire shares or voting rights in, a company, whether directly or
indirectly, such that
(a) the listed entity holds shares or voting rights aggregating to five per cent erahtre shares or
voting rights in the said company, or;
(b) there has been a change in holding from the last disclosure made uneelasab (a) of clause
(i) of the Explanation to this supara and such change exceeds two per cent of the total
shareholding or votng rights in the said company.
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(i) an agreement to sell or sale of shares or voting rights in a company such
that the company ceases to be a wholly owned subsidiary, a subsidiary
or an associate agpany of the listed entity; or

(i) an agreement to sell or sale of shares or voting rights in a subsidiary or
associate company such that the amount of the sale exceeds the
threshold specified in sutdause (c) of clause (i) of stregulation (4)
of regulation30.

Explanation (3) For the purpose of this sypar agr ap h, Aundert a

Asubstantially the whole of the undert al

under section 180 of the Companies Act, 2p13

2. Issuance or forfeiture of securities, split @nsolidation of shares, buyback of
securities, any restriction on transferability of securitiealteration interms or
structure of existing securities including forfeitureissue of forfeited securities,
alteration of calls, redemption of securities etc.

3. “INew Rating(s) drRevision in Rating(s).

4. Outcome of Meetings of the board of directors: The listed entity shall disclose to
the Exchange(s), within 30 minutes of thescie of the meeting, held to consider
the following:

a) dividends and/or cash bonuses recommended or declared or the decision to
pass any dividend and the date on which dividend shall be paid/dispatched;

b) any cancellation of dividend with reasons thereof

c) the decision on buyback of securities;

d) the decision with respect to fund raising proposed to be undertaken

e) increase in capital by isseébonus shares through capitalization including the
date on which such bonus shares shall be credited/dispatched;

f) reissue of forfeited share® securities, or the issue of shares or securities held
in reserve for future issue or the creation in any form or manner of new shares
or securities or any other rights, privileges or benefits to subscribe to;

g) short particulars afiny other alterations of capital, including calls;

h) financial results;

i) decision on voluntary delisting by the listed entity from stock exchange(s):
42YProvided that in case of board meetings being held for more than one day,
the financial results shall beasdlosed within thirty minutes of end of the
meeting for the day on which it has been considered.]

5. Agreements (viz. shareholder agreement(s), joint venture agreement(s), family
settlement agreement(s) (to the extent that it impacts management and dontrol o
the listed entity), agreement(s)/treaty(ies)/contract(s) with media companies)
which are binding and not in normal course of businessjsion(s) or
amendment(s) and termination(s) thereof.

427(5A) Agreements entered into by the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities,
related parties, directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the listed entity
or of its holding, subsidiary or associate company, among themselves or with the
listed entity or with a third party, solely or jointly, which, either directly or
indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management

420 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Relgtions, 2023 w.e.f. 13.2023.

421|nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

422 Inserted by the&Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Relgtions, 2023v.e.f. 15.7.2023.
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or control of the listed entity or impose any restriction or create any liability upon
the lised entity, shall be disclosed to the Stock Exchanges, including disclosure of
any rescission, amendment or alteration of such agreements thereto, whether or not
the listed entity is a party to such agreements:

Provided that such agreements entered inta ligted entity in the normal course

of business shall not be required to be disclosed unless they, either directly or
indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management
or control of the listed entity or they are requiredbe disclosed in terms of any

other provisions of these regulations.

Expl anati on: For the purpose of this ¢
includes agreements creating obligation on the parties to such agreements to ensure
that listed entity sHbor shallnot act in a particular manner.]

6. “JFraud or defaults by a listed entity, its promoter, director, key managerial
personnel, senior management or subsidiary or arrest of key managerial personnel,
senior management, promoter or director of teeedl entity, whether occurred
within India or abroad:

For the purpose of this sygaragraph:

) 6Fraudé shall include fraud as defi ne
and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practicegelating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003.

(i) 6Def aul t 6 spaymént of theanderest or primcipal amount in full
on the date when the debt has become due and payable.

Explanation 1In case of revolving facilities like cash credit, an entityuld be

considered to be in oO0defaultd i f the ou

excess of the sanctioned limit or drawing power, whichever is lower, for more

than thirty days.
Explanation 2 Default by a promoter, director, key managerial pershreenior
management, subsidiary shall mean default which has or may have an impact on

the listed entity
7. Change in directors, key managerial personnel (Managing Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer , Company Secretary e®[senior
managementAuditor and Compliance Officer.
429(7A) In case of resignation of the auditor of the listed entity, detailed reasons for
resignation of auditor, as given by the said auditor, shall be disclosed by the listed
entities to the stock exchangessmon as possible but not later than twenty four hours
of receipt of such reasons from the auditor.
(7B) Resignation of?9independent directoiicluding reasons for resignation: In case
of resignation of an independent director of the listed entity, within seven days from

423 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. ¥52023. Priotto the substitution, the stfmragraplread as

follows:
fi 6. Fraud/ defaults by promoter or key manageri al

manageri al personnel or promoter. o
424 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
425 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
26 Substit wtuedd bybtlmedSEBR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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the date of resignation, the following disclosures shall be made to the stock exchanges
by the listed entities:

I 42 The letter 6 resignation along withdetailed reasons for the resignation
42§+ | as given by the said direct&i*** ].

430 (ia). Names of listed entitie which the resigning director holds directorships,

indicating the category of directorship and membership of board committees] if any

il. The independent director shall, along with the detailed reasons, also provide a
confirmation that there is nather mateal reasons other than those provided.

iii. The confirmation as provided by the independent director above shall also be
disclosed by the listed entities to the stock exchanges along withttisclosurep

as specified in sublause (iY*Jand (i) above]

433 (7C)In case of resignation of key managerial personnel, senior management, Compliance
Officer or director other than an independent director; the letter of resignation along
with detailed reasons for the resignation as given by the key mangggsahnel,
senior management, Compliance Officer or director shall be disclosed to the stock
exchanges by the listed entities within seven days from the date that such
resignation comes into effect.

(7D) In case the Managing Director or Chief Executiveiif of the listed entity was
indisposed or unavailable to fulfil the requirements of the role in a regular manner
for more than forty five days in any rolling period of ninety days, the same along
with the reasons for such indisposition or unavailabishall be disclosed to the
stock exchange(3g).

8. Appointment or discontinuation of share transfer agent.
9. ®{Resolution plan/ Restructuring in relation to loans/borrowings from
banks/financial institutions including the following details:
(i) Decision to initate resolution of loans/borrowings;
(ii) Signing of InterCreditors Agreement (ICA) by lenders;
(iii) Finalization of Resolution Plan;
(iv) Implementation of Resolution Plan;
(v) Salient features, not involving commercial secrets, of the resolution/
restricturing plan as decided by lendérs.
10.One time settlement with a bank.
11.439*+] winding-up petition filed by any party / creditors.

427 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumv,ef. 1.1.2022

48T h e waof mdegend@nt directods o mbyttheSERI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendumf. 1.1.2022

42T h e wehalldbse distlosed by the listed entittesthe stock exchange®mitted by theSEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendum,
w.e.f. 1.1.2022.

430 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (ThindeAdment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendummw,e.f. 1.1.2022.

431 Substitutedor the wordsid e t a i | e doy theSEB$ (bistirgy Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Third Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with the corrigendumf. 1.1.222

432 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations,
2021 read with the corrigendumw,e.f. 1.1.2022.

433 nserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dis®esuiieements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.

¥Substituted for i CobythesSERI (ListingdObliydtions asd Disclasurd Requirements)
(Second Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.

4 The woefekrcetofiBIFR and o miby thee Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second AmengnRegulations, 2023 w.e.f. 72023.
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12.I1ssuance of Notices, call letters, resolutions and circulars sent to shareholders,
debenture holders or creditays any class of them or advertised in the media by
the listed entity.
13.Proceedings of Annual and extraordinary general meetings of the listed entity.
14. Amendments to memorandum and articles of association of listed entity, in brief.
43915 (a) Schedule of angdts or institutional investors me€t[at least two working
days in advance (excluding the date of the intimation and the date of th¢ meet)
and presentations made by the listed entity to analysts or institutional investors.
Expl anati on: For the purpose of this
group conference calls conducted physically or through digital means.
(b) Audio or video recordings and transcriptgokt earnings/quarterly calls, by
whatever name calledconducted physically or through digital means,
simultaneously with submission to the recognized stock exchange(she
following manner:

(i) the presentation and the audio/video recordings shall be promptly made
available on the website and in any caseoigethe next trading day or
within twenty-four hours from the conclusion sfichcalls, whichever is
earlier;

(ii) the transcripts of such calls shall be made available on the website within
five working days of the conclusion stichcalls:

The requirement fadisclosure(s) of audio/video recordings and transshptl
be voluntary with effect from April 01, 2021 and mandatory with effect from
April 01, 2022;]
438 116. The following events in relation to the corporate insolvency resolution process
(CIRP) of alisted corporate debtor under the Insolvency Code:
a) Filing of application by the corporate applicant for initiation of CIRP,
also specifying the amount of default;
b) Filing of application by financial creditors for initiation of CIRP
against the corporate lok®r, also specifying the amount of default;
c) Admission of application by the Tribunal, along with amount of
default or rejection or withdrawal, as applicable ;
d) Public announcement made pursuant to order passed by the Tribunal
under section 13 of Insolven€ode;
e) List of creditors as required to be displayed by the corporate debtor
under regulation 13(2)(c) of the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process
for Corporate Persons) Regulations, 2016;
f) Appointment/ Replacement of the Resolution Professional,
g) Prior or petfacto intimation of the meetings of Committee of
Creditors;
h) Brief particulars of invitation of resolution plans under section
25(2)(h) of Insolvency Codm the Form specified under regulation

4% Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Seéaorddment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, clause 15 read as follows:
iSchedule of Analyst or institutional investor
listed entity to analysts or institutional investors
437 nserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
4% |nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendmenthfitety 2018,
w.e.f. 31.05.2018.
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36A(5) of the IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process €orporate
Persons) Regulations, 2016;
i) Number of resolution plans received by Resolution Professional,
J) Filing of resolution plan with the Tribunal;
k) Approval of resolution plan by the Triburalrejection, if applicable;
) “9Specificfeatures andetails of he resolution plaasapproved by
the Adjudicating Authority under tHasolvency Codenot involving
commercial secret&cluding details such as:
) Pre and Post natorth of the company
(i) Details of assets of the company post CIRP;
(i)  Details of securitiescontinuing to be imposed on the
compani esd0 assets;
(iv)  Other material liabilities imposed on the company;
(V) Detailed pre and post shareholding pattern assuming 100%
conversiorof convertible securities;
(vi)  Details of funds infusenh the companycreditors paiebff;
(vii)  Additional liability on the incoming investors due to the
transactionsource osuchfunding etc.
(viii)  Impact on the investarrevised P/E, RONW ratios efc.
(ix) Names of the new promoters*qkey managerial
personnel]if any and their pst experience in thaibiness
or employment. In case where prometare companies,
history of such company and names of natural persons in
controt
x) Brief description of business strategy.]

m) Any other material information not involving commercial secrets.}

n) “YProposed steps tme taken by the incoming investor/acquirer for
achieving the MPS

0) Quarterly disclosure of the status of achieving the MPS

p) The details as to the delisting plans, if any approved in the resolution
plan.]

44717. Initiation of Forensic audit: In case of initiation of forensic audit, (by whatever
name called), the following disclosures shall be made to the stock exchanges by
listed entities:

a) The fact of initiation of forensic audit alomgth name of entity
initiating the audit and reasons for the same, if available;

b) Final forensic audit report (other than for forensic audit initiated by
regulatory / enforcement agencies) on receipt by the listed entity along
with comments of the management, if any.]

439 Substituted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2021
w.e.f. 08.01.2021Prior to the substitution, the satause read as under:
fiSalient features, not involving commaeicsecrets, of the resolution plan approved by the Tribunal,
in such form as may be specified;o
“Wsyuybstituted for the worhyshe SEBIe(listingy®bligatipesrandalisclogueer s o n's ( ¢
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations220w.e.f. 17.12023.
41nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f.
08.01.2021.
442|nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2020,
w.e.f. 08.10.2020
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44318. Announcement or communication through social media intermediaries or
mainstream media by directors, promoters, key managerial personnel or senior
management of a listed entity, in relation to any event or information which is
material for the listed entitin terms of regulation 30 of these regulations and is not
already made available in the public domain by the listed entity.

Explanationi isoci al media intermediarieso she
defined under the Information Technology (Intermedi@uidelines and Digital
Media Ethics Code) Rules, 2021.

19. Action(s) initiated or orders passed by any regulatory, statutory, enforcement
authority or judicial body against the listed entity or its directors, key managerial
personnel, senior managementorpoter or subsidiary, in relation to the listed
entity, in respect of the following:
(a) search or seizure; or
(b) reopening of accounts under section 130 of the Companies Act, 2013; or
(c) investigatiorunder the provisions of Chapter XIV of the Companies Act, 2013;
along with the following details pertaining to the actions(s) initiated, taken or
orders passed:
i. name of the authority;

ii. nature and details of the action(s) taken, initiated or ordeatsed;

iii. date of receipt of direction or order, including anyirserim or
interim orders, or any other communication from the authority;

iv. details of the violation(s)/contravention(s) committed or alleged to
be committed,;

v. impact on financial, operation other activities of the listed entity,
guantifiable in monetary terms to the extent possible.

20. Action(s) taken or orders passed by any regulatory, statutory, enforcement
authority or judicial body against the listed entity or its directors, key mamahgeri
personnel, senior management, promoter or subsidiary, in relation to the listed
entity, in respect of the following:
(a) suspension;
(b) imposition of fine or penalty;
(c) settlement of proceedings;
(d) debarment;
(e) disqualification;
(f) closureof operations;
(g) sanctions imposed;
(h) warning or caution; or
(i) any other similar action(s) by whatever name called;
along with the following details pertaining to the actions(s) initiated, taken or
orders passed:
i. name of the authority;
ii. nature andletails of the action(s) taken, initiated or order(s) passed;
iii. date of receipt of direction or order, including anyiatérim or interim
orders, or any other communication from the authority;

443 Inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
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iv. details of the violation(s)/contravention(s) committeclteged to be
committed;

v. impact on financial, operation or other activities of the listed entity,
guantifiable in monetary terms to the extent possible.

21.Voluntary revision of financial statements or the report of the board of directors
of the listed atity under section 131 of the Companies Act, 2D13

B. Events which shall be disclosed upon application of the guidelines for
materiality referred sub-regulation (4) of regulation (30):

1. Commencement or any postponement in the date of commenceroentroércial
production or commercial operations of any unit/division.
2. “4 Any of the following events pertaining to the listed entity:
(a) arrangements for strategic, technical, manufacturing, or marketing tie

up; or
(b) adoptionof new line(s) of business; or
(c) closureof operation of any unit, division @ubsidiary i entirety orin
piecemeal]

Capacity addition or product launch.

Awarding, bagging/ receiving, amendment or termination of awarded/bagged

orders/contracts nan the normal course of business.

5. Agreements (viz. loan agreement{$]***] or any other agreement(s) which are
binding and not in normal course of business) and revision(s) or amendment(s) or
termination(s) thereof.

6. Disruption of operations of any one miore units or division of the listed entity
due to natural calamity (earthquake, flood, fire etc.), force majeure or events such
as strikes, lockouts etc.

7. Effect(s) arising out of change in the regulatory framework applicable to the listed
entity.

8. 9 Penancy of anylitigation(s) or dispute(s) or the outcome thereof which may
have an impact on the listed enfjty

9. “1 Frauds or defaults by employees of the listed entity which has or may have an

impact on the listed entity.]

B w

444 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and DisRleguirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. ¥52023. Prior to the substitution, teebparagrapiread as
follows:
fi2. Change in the general character or nature of business brought about by arrangements for strategic,
technical, manufactung, or marketing tieup, adoption of new lines of business closure of
operations of any wunit/division (entirety or piec
“5The words and sy mbowlns tit@edwitiesand ErcbangeBeard) of India (Listing
Obligations and Didosure Requirements) (Second Amerat) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
446 Sybstituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 52023. Prior to the $stitution, the sulparagraph read as
follows:
8. Litigation(s) / dispute(s) /regulatory action(s) with impact
447 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. ¥52023. Prior to the substitution, the spdragraph read as
follows:
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10. Options to purchase securitiesluding any ESOP/ESPS Scheme

11.Giving of guarantees or indemnity or becoming a sutéfy by whatever named
called] for any third party.

12.Granting, withdrawal , surrender , cancellation or suspension of key licenses or
regulatoryapprovals.

13.4YDelay ordefault in the payment of fines, penalties, dues, etc. to any regulatory,
statutory, enforcement or judicial authorjty

C. Any other information/event viz. major development that is likely to affect
business, e.g. emergence of new technologies, expiryteftgaany change of
accounting policy that may have a significant impact on the accounts, etc. and brief
details thereof and any other information which is exclusively known to the listed
entity which may be necessary to enable the holders of secufiteslisted entity
to appraise its position and to avoid the establishment of a false market in such
securities.

D. Without prejudice to the generality of para (A), (B) and (C) above, the listed entity
may make disclosures of event/information as specified by the Board from time to
time.

PART B: DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION HAVING BEARING ON

PERFORMANCE/OPERATION OF LI STED ENTITY AND/OR PRICE SENSITIVE

INFORMATION: NON -CONVERTIBLE 49***] SECURITIES 4> ***]
[SeeRegulation 51(2)]

A. The listed entity shall promptly inform3***] the stock exchange(s) of all
information which shall have bearing on performance/operation of the listed entity or
is price sensitive or shall affect payment of interest or dividéfidr redemption
paymentjof non-convertible®™4*** | securities®{*** ] including :

f9. Fraud/defaults etc. by directors (other than key managerial personnel) or employees of listed
entity.0
448 nserted by the Securities and Exchange Badiindia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
449 |nserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations,@®23 w.e.f. 157.2023.
%0 The wbDEBTO fio miby the B8EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
“1The symbol &MONdCOWMERTIRBLE REDEEMABLE PREF&REINCE SHAR
by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f.
7.9.2021
2T h e wo omittedby thedSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021
453 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
% The wapnefdrence ishares or redemptionrofo n ¢ o n v e romittelol byethe BSERI {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Regeiments) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
“The wordgedeemabl e opmitedby the SEBle(Lissnh @bligatods and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.

132



(1) “Yexpected default in the timely payment of interest, dividend or redemption
payment or both in respect of the roonvertible securities and also default in
the creation of security for nesonvertible debt securities as soon as the same
becomespparent;

(2) any attachment or prohibitory orders restraining the listed entity from transferring
non-convertible*®* ***] securities*®*3**] from the account of the registered
holders alongvith the particulars of the numbers of securities so affected , the
names of the registered holders and their demat account details;

(3) ®Jany action which shall result in the redemption, reduction, cancellation,
retirement in whole or in part of any nagonvertible securitiek;

(4) any action that shall affect adversely payment of interest orcovertible debt
securitiesor payment of dividend on nesonvertible redeemable preference
sharesincluding default by issuer to pay interest on rmnvertible debt
securities or redemptioamount and failure to create a charge on the assets;

(5) any change in the form or nature of any of its-nonvertible*®J***] securities
46eex] - thatare listed on the stock exchange(s) or in the rights or privileges of
the holders thereof and make an aggilon for listing of the securities as
changed, if the stock exchange(s) so require;

(6) any changes in the general character or nature of business / activities, disruption
of operation due to natural calamity, and commencement of commercial
production / commercial operations;

(7) any events such as strikes and lock outs. which have a bearing on the interest
paymentdividend payment principal repayment capacity;

(8) details of any letter or comments made by debenture trustees regarding
payment/norpayment of interest on due dates, paymentApayment of
principal on the due dates or any other matter concerning the security, listed entity
and /or the assets along with its comments thereon, if any;

456 Substituted by the SEBListing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitution, clause (1) read as follows:
ffexpected defaul t i rpreferenceedivigendpradgempdom br repaymentiarhoent e st s/
or both in respect of the naronvertible debt securities andmconvertible redeemable preference shares
and also default in creation of security for debentaes s oon as the same becomes
7T h e wdoer boimiti@dby the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
8T he wormiksomvertible r edee mnmiletbythe SEBIf(Listing @bligatiorssaralr e s o
Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Aandment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
49 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f7.9.2021. Before substitution, clause (8ad as follows:
fi(3) any action which shallesut in the redemption, conversion, cancellation, retirement in whole or in
part of any norconvertible debt securities oeduction, redemption, cancellation, retirement in whole or
in part of any norconvertible redeemable preference sharés
40T h e  w obrtdmittédbyethe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
“¥'The wornahsomvertibl e r ede e mnmaitetbythe SEBIf(Listing @bligatiorssaralr e s o
Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
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(9) delay/ default in payment of interest or dividend / princgrabunt /redemption
for a period of more than three months from the due date;

(10)failure to create charge on the assets within the stipulated time period,;

(11)any instance(s) of default/delay in timely repayment of interests or principal
obligations or both imespect of the debt securities including, any proposal for re
scheduling or postponement of the repayment programmes of the dues/debts of
the listed entity with any investor(s)/lender(s).

462[***]

(12)anymajor change in composition of its board of directors, which may amount to
change in control as defined in Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(13)any revision in the rating;
(14)the following approvals by board of directors in their meeting:

(a) the decision to pass any interest payment;

(b) short particulars of any increase of capital whether by issue of bonus
securities through capitalization, or Wy of right securities to be offered
to the*®Jdebt security] holders, or in any other way;

(15)all 484*+ ] information, report, notices, call letters, circulars, proceedings, etc
concerning norconvertible®®*** | debt securities;

(16)%%9The listed entity shall disclose tlmitcome of meetings of the board of
directors to the Exchange(s), within thirty minutes of the closure of the meeting,
held to consider the following:

462 Omitted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before omissithe Explanatiomead as follows:

i Ex p| a-rFerthe porpose ofthissybar a, o6 d e f a u l-payinensdiiatérdst ompenaipal No n
amount in full on the pragreed date and shall be recognized at the first instance of delay in servicing of
anyi nt erest or principal on debt. o

@ Substituted f othe SEBI €Listingn Ohligatiods amdyDisclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
%The wor d Tfilyhthe SEBIolisting Oldightions and Disclosure Reguients) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
45T h e wmedednsabldipreference sharesanc o n v e r t i bbly taedSEBI ifListing @btigations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
466 Substituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021. Before substitutiafguse (16yead as follows:
fi(16) any other change that shall affect the rights and obligations of thdetebf norconvertible debt
securities horntrconvertible redeemable preference shaaey, other information not in the public domain
necessary to enable the holders of the listed securities to clarify its position and to avoid the creation of a
false maket in such listed securitieor any other information having bearing on the
operation/ performance of the |isted entity as well
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(a) the decision with respect to fund raising proposed to be undertaken by way
of non-convertible securities
(b) financial results:

Provided that in case of board meetings being held for more than one day, the
financial results shall be disclosed within thirty minutes of end of the meeting for
the day on which it has been considered.]

467(17) fraud/defaults by promoter or key managerial personnel or director or
employees of listed entity or by listed entity or arrest of key managerial personnel or
promoter;
(18) change in directors, key managerial personnel (Managing Director, Chief
Execuive Officer, Chief Financial Officer , Company Secretary etc.), Auditor and
Compliance Officer;
(19) in case of resignation of the auditor of the listed entity, detailed reasons for
resignation of auditor, as given by the said auditor, shall be dischyséde listed
entities to the stock exchanges as soon as possible but not later tharfdwehtyurs
of receipt of such reasons from the auditor;
(20) resolution plan/ restructuring in relation to loans/borrowings from banks/financial
institutions incuding the following details:
(i) Decision to initiate resolution of loans/borrowings;
(if) Signing of InterCreditors Agreement (ICA) by lenders;
(i) Finalization of Resolution Plan;
(iv) Implementation of Resolution Plan;
(v) Salient features, natvolving commercial secrets, of the resolution/
restructuring plan as decided by lenders.
(21) Onetime settlement with a bank;
(22) Windingup petition filed by any party / creditors;
(23) Proceedings of Annual and extraordinary general meetinge t$ted entity;
(24) the following events in relation to the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP) of a listed corporate debtor under the Insolvency Code:
a) Filing of application by the corporate applicant for initiation of CIRP, also
specifying the amount of default;
b) Filing of application by the financial creditors for initiation of CIRP
against the corporate debtor, also specifying the amount of default;
c) Admission of application by the Tribunal, along with the amount of default or
rejection or withdrawal, as applicable;
d) Public announcement made pursuant to the order passed by the Tribunal under
section 13 of Insolvency Code;
e) List of creditors as required to be displayed by the corporate debtor under
regulation 13(2)(c) of thinsolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Insolvency
Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations, 2016;
f) Appointment/ Replacement of the Resolution Professional,
g) Prior or posfacto intimation of the meetings of Committee of Creditors;
h) Brief particulars of invitation of resolution plans under section 25(2)(h) of
Insolvency Code in the Form specified under regulation 36A (5) of the Insolvency

467 Inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth AmendmentitRegy
2021 w.e.f. 7.9.2021.
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and Bankruptcy Board of India (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate
Persons) Regulatien2016;
i) Number of resolution plans received by Resolution Professional;
J) Filing of resolution plan with the Tribunal;
k) Approval of resolution plan by the Tribunal or rejection, if applicable;
[) Specific features and details of the resolutidanpas approved by the
Adjudicating Authority under the Insolvency Code, not involving commercial
secrets, including details such as:
(i) Pre and Post natorth of the company;
(ii) Details of assets of the company post CIRP;
(i) Details of securiiesc ont i nuing to be I mposed
assets;
(iv) Other material liabilities imposed on the company;
(v) Detailed pre and post shareholding pattern assuming 100% conversion
of convertible securities;
(vi) Details of funds infused in the compamyeditors paiebff;
(vii) Additional liability on the incoming investors due to the transaction,
source of such funding etc.;
(viii) Impact on the investoir revised P/E, RONW ratios etc.;
(ix) Names of the new promoters, key managerial persons(s)y iard
their past experience in the business or employment. In case where
promoters are companies, history of such company and names of natural
persons in control;
(x) Brief description of business strategy.
(25) intimation related to any change in ternfisssue or redemption or exercising of
call/ put options;
(26) intimation related to any change in covenants or breach of covenants under the
terms of norconvertible debentures and/or roonvertible redeemable preference
shares;
(27) intimation relaad to forfeiture of unclaimed interest or dividend or principal
amount;
(28) intimation related to any change in the debenture trustee or Credit Rating Agency
or Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;
(29) intimationof comfort/guarantee or any credit enhancement provided by the listed
entity to a third party;
(30) any other information/change that:
(a) shall affect the rights and obligations of the holders of thecoowertible
securities; and
(b) is not in the public domain but necessary to enable the holders of the non
convertible securities to comprehend the true position and to avoid the creation of
a false market in such listed securities.]

PART C: DISCLOSURES OF MATERIAL EVENTS OR INFORMATIO N: INDIAN
DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
[SeeRegulation 68(2)]

A. Thelisted entity shall promptly inform to the stock exchange(s) of all events which are
material and/or all information which are price sensitive hawve bearing on
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performance/operation of the listedtity at the same time and to the extent it intimates

to the listing authority or any other authority in its home country or other jurisdictions
where its securities may be listed or other stock exchange(s) in its home country or
other jurisdictions wher#s securities may be listed including:

(1) any action or investigations initiated by any regulatory or statutory authority and
the purpose for which it was initiated.

(2) any attachment or prohibitorgrders restraining the listed entity from transferring
securities out of the names of the registered holders and particulars of the registered
holders thereof.

(3) the meeting othe boardof directors which has been held to consider or decide on
the following :

(a) all dividends and/or cash bonuses recommended or declared or the decision
to pass any dividend or cash bonus;

(b) the total turnover, gross profit/loss, provision for depreciation, tax
provisions and net profits for the year (with comparison with theiqus
year) and the amounts appropriated from reserves, capital profits,
accumulated profits of past years or other special source to provide wholly
or partly for any dividend, even if this calls for qualification that such
information is provisional or $ject to audit;

(c) the recommendation or declaration of dividend or rights issue or issue of
convertible debentures or of debentures carrying a right to subscribe to
equity shares or the passing over of the dividend

(d) any decision on buy back of equity shavéghe listed entity,;

(4) Change in

(a) board of directors of listed entity by death, resignation, removal or
otherwise;

(b) managing director;

(c) auditors appointed to audit the books and accounts;

(d) the compliance officer;

(e) the registrar to an issue and/or share tearegent, domestic depository or
the overseas custodian bank;

(5) any change in the rights attaching to any class of equity shares into which the Indian
Depository Receiptare exchangeable;

(6) short particulars of any increase of capital whether by issiemfs shares through
capitalization, or by rights issue of equity shares, or in any other manner;

(7) short particulars of the reissues of forfeited shares or securities, or the issue of
shares or securities held in reserve for future issue or the creatoy fiorm or
manner of new shares or securities or any other rights, privileges or benefits to
subscribe thereto;

(8) short particulars of any other alterations of capital, including calls;

(9) in the event of the listed entitgranting any options to purchase almglian
Depository Receipts the following particulars::

(a) the number of Indian Depository Receipts covered by such optenss
thereof and the time within which they may be exercised,;
(b) any subsequent changes or cancellation or exercise of such options;
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(10) Notices, resolutions, circulars, call lettersany other circulars etc. issued or

advertised anywhere with respect to:

(a) proceedings at all annual and extraordinary general meetings of the listed
entity, including notices of meetings and proceedingaexting;

(b) amendments to its constitutional documents as soon as they have been
approved by the listed entity in general meeting

(c) compliance with requirements in home country or in other jurisdictions
where such securities are listed;

(d) any merger, amalgamatipreconstruction, reduction of capital, scheme
or arrangement involving the listed entity including meetings of equity
shareholders, IDR Holders or any class of them and proceedings at all such
meetings;

(11) any otherinformation necessary to enable the IBRIders to appraise the
l i sted entityds position and to avoid
IDRs;

B. The listed entity shall, apart from complying with all specific requirements as above,
intimate the stock exchange(s) immediately of events susthikess, lock outs, closure
on account of power cuts, etc. and other material events or price sensitive information
or events which shall have a material bearing on the performance / operations of the
listed entity both at the time of occurrence of therdvand subsequently after the
cessation of the event at the same time and as to the extent that it discloses to holders
of securities in its home country or in other jurisdictions where such securities are listed;

C.In addition to above, the listeghtity shall disclose to the stock exchange(s), any
information which is disclosed to any other overseas stock exchange(s) or made public
in any other overseas securities market, on which its securities may be listed or quoted,
simultaneously with such disclosuoe publication, or as soon thereafter as may be
reasonably practicable;

D. The listed entity shall submit to the stock exchange(s) on request any other information
concerning the listed entity as the stock exchange(s) may reasonably require;

PART D: DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION HAVING BEARING ON
PERFORMANCE/ OPERATION OF LISTED ENTITY AND/OR PRICE SENSITIVE
INFORMATION: SECURITISED DEBT INSTRUMENT

[SeeRegulation 83(2)]

A. The listed entity shall promptly inform the stock exchange(s) of all informatiandnav
bearing on the performance/operation of the listed entity @amce sensitive
informationincluding:

(1) any attachment or prohibitooyders restraining the listed entity from transferring
securitized debt instruments from the account of the registered holders and
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particulars of the numbers of securitized debt instruments so affected and the
names of the registered holders and theirateancount details;

(2) any action that shall result in the redemption, conversion, cancellation, retirement
in whole or in part of any securitized debt instruments;

(3) any action that shall affect adversely payment of interest on securitized debt
instruments

(4) any change in the form or nature of any of its securitized debt instruments that are
listed on the stock exchange(s) or in the rights or privileges of the holders thereof
and to make an application for listing of the said securities as changed, if the stoc
exchange(s) so requires;

(5) expected default in timely payment of interest or redemption or repayment
amount or both in respect of the securitized debt instruments listed on the
recognised stock exchange(s) as soon as the same becomes apparent;

(6) changesn the General Character or nature of business / activities, disruption of
operation due to natural calamity etc;

(7) revision in rating as a result of credit rating done periodically;

(8) delay/ default in payment of interest/principal amount to the invesioesgeriod
of more than three months from the due date; and

(9) any other change that shall affect the rights and obligations of the holders of
securitized debt instrumentsny other information not in the public domain
necessary to enable the holders @& listed securitized debt instruments to
clarify its position and to avoid the creation of a false market in such listed
securities or any other information having bearing on the
operation/performance of the listed entity as well as price sensitive
informdion.

46JPART E: DISCLOSURE OF EVENTS OR INFORMATION TO STOCK
EXCHANGES: SECURITY RECEIPTS
[SeeRegulation 87B (1)]

A. The following events/information shall be disclosed by the listed entity without any
application of guidelines of materiality as soon as reasonably possible but not later than
twenty four hours from occurrence of event or information:

(1) any delay or expeatedelay in cash flows from the due date or-greed date
if any;

(2) any change in value of caflows as disclosed if any;

468 nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 06.09.2018.
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(3) any receipt of cash flow or expected cash flow along with quantum so received,
(4) any change in credit enhancement measures;

(5) periodr rating obtained from credit rating agency or any revision in the rating
or any expected revision in rating;

(6) periodic Net Asset Value;
(7) any proposal to change or change of credit rating agency or Valuer;

(8) any change in profile of the assets by wagadretion to or realisation of assets
from the existing pool,

(9) any proposal for acquisition of assets including terms of acquisition;

(10)any expected nerealisation or noealisation of the financial assets and
remedial measures proposed to be undertaken;

(11) any change in nature of charge on the underlying assets.

(12) any proposal to change or any change in terms of security receipts including
rights or privileges or nature or form etc.;

(13) any proposal or action with respect to exercising call/put option (ogetieem)
or any similar option by the listed entity;

(14) any breach of covenant(s) under the termsegatirity receipts

(15) any proposal or action for forfeiture of unclaimed cash flow or forfeiture of any
security receipts

(16) any change in resolution plan;
(17)any change in percentage holding of sp@mforming loans across other banks;

(18) any change in the general character or nature of business / activities, disruption
of operation due to natural calamity etc. of the listed entity;

(19)any attachment or prohibitp orders restraining the listed entity from
transferringsecurity receipts

(20)initiation or status update with respect to reference to National Company Law
Tribunal under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 of any underlying
assets;

(21) intimation in advace of the meeting of its board of directors, at which the
recommendation or declaration of issue of security receipts or any other matter
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affecting the rights or interests of holders of security receipts is proposed to be

considered and also outcome oflsuneetings;

(22)fraud or defaults by sponsor or key managerial personnel or arrest of key
managerial personnel or sponsor;

(23)change in directors, key managerial personnel (Managing Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer , Compa8gcretary etc.), Auditor
and Compliance Officer of the Sponsor;

(24) in addition to the above, the listed entity shall provide all such disclosures to the

Stock Exchange(s) as it is required to make before the Reserve Bank of India as

per the extant requirememnd/or any other disclosure(s) as prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time;

(25) in case where an event occurs or an information is available with the listed entity,

which has not been indicated in these regulations, but which may be material,
thelisted entity is required to make adequate disclosures in this regard.]

SCHEDULE IV

PART A: DISCLOSURES IN FINANCIAL RESULTS
[SeeRegulation 33(1)(e)]

The listed entity shall disclose the following while preparing the financial results:

A. Changes in accounting policies, if any, shall be disclosed in accordance with
Accounting Standard 5 or Indian Accounting Standard 8, as applicable, specified in

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed thereunder or

by the Insitute of Chartered Accountants of India, whichever is applicable.

B. If the auditor has expressed any modified opinion(s) f#%h respect of audited financial
results submitted or published under this para,ligted entity shall disclose such
modified opinion(s) [****’° and cumulative impact of the same on profit or loss, net

worth, total assets, turnover/total income, earning per share [, total expenditure, total

liabilities]*’* or any other financial item(s) which may be #oped due to modified
opinion(s) [***]#2 while publishing or submitting such results.

“The words o6or other reservation(s)o6 omittetd by
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

““The words o6or ot her SEH {isting/@bligations arsl Didclosune iRequirendentd) y
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016

4 Inserted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016

“2The words oO6o0or ot her SER fisting/Gbligations arsl Disclosumnm iReqtirendentd) y
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f. 01.04.2016
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[BA. If the auditor has expressed any modified opinion(s), the management of the listed
entity has the option to explain its views on the audit qualifications asatie shall be
included in the Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with
modified opinion).

BB. With respect to audit qualifications where the impact of the qualification is not
quantifiable:

4. The management shall mandatorilpke an estimate which the auditor shall
review and report accordingly.

ii. Notwithstanding the above, the management may be permitted to not provide
estimate on matters like going concerns orjadize matters; in which case, the
management shall providiee reasons and the auditor shall review the same and
report accordingly.f{’*

C. If the auditor has expressed ampdified opinion(s)or other reservation(s) in his
479 /her] audit report or limited review report in respect of the financial results of any
prevous financial year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the
reportable period, thiessted entityshall include as a note to the financial results
(i) how themodified opinion(spr other reservation(s) has been resolved; or
(i) if the same hs not been resolved, the reason thereof and the steps which
thelisted entityintends to take in the matter.

D. If the listed entityhas changed its name suggesting any new line of business, it shall
disclose the net sales or income, expenditure and nft @radoss after tax figures
pertaining to the said new line of business separately in the financial results and shall
continue to make such disclosures for the three years succeeding the date of change in
name:

Provided that the tax expense shall becalted between the said new line of business
and other business of thsted entityin the ratio of the respective figures of net profit
before tax, subject to any exemption, deduction or concession available under the tax
laws.

E. If the listed entity had ot commenced commercial production or commercial
operations during the reportable period, listed entityshall, instead of submitting
financial results, disclose the following details:

(i) details of amount raised i.e. proceeds of any issue of shares or debentures made
by thelisted entity

(i) the portions thereof which is utilized and that remaining unutilized;

(i) the details of investment made pending utilisation ;

4713 Substituted by th8EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019. Prior to the substitution, the-slduses read as follows:

ii. The management shall ma k e tha samesand réparzatcerdingly;dr t he aud
ii. If the management is unable to make an estimate, it shall provide the reasons and the auditor shall review the
same and report accordingly.

The above shall be included in the statement on impact of audit quadifisgfor audit report with modified
opinion). o

474 Inserted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016

475 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amen@egrigtions,

2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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(iv) brief description of the pregt which is pending completion;

(v) status of the project and

(vi)expected date of commencement of commercial production or commercial
operations:

Provided thathe details mentioned above shall be approved by the board of directors
based on certification by trehief executive officer and chief financial officer.

. All items of income and expenditure arising out of transactions of exceptional nature
shall be disclosed.

. Extraordinary items, if applicable, shall be disclosed in accordance with Accounting
Standadl 5 (AS 5i Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes
in Accounting Policies) or Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, whichever
is applicable.

. The listed entity, whose revenues are subject to material seasonal variations, shall
disclose the seasonal nature of their activities and the listed entity may supplement
their financial results with information for the twelve month period ending on she la
day of the quarter for the current and preceding years on a rolling basis.

The listed entityshall disclose any event or transaction which occurred during or
before the quarter that is material to an understanding of the results for the quarter
including but not limited to completion of expansion and diversification programmes,
strikes and loclouts, change in management, change in capital structure drsietie

entity shall also disclose similar material events or transactions that take place
subsegent to the end of the quarter.

. The listed entity shall disclose the following in respect of dividends paid or
recommended for the year, including interim dividends :

(i) amount of dividend distributed or proposed for distribution per share; the
amounts inespect of different classes of shares shall be distinguished and the
nominal values of shares shall also be indicated;

(i) where dividend is paid or proposed to be paidrata for shares allotted during
the year, the date of allotment and number of shalat$eal, prerata amount
of dividend per share and the aggregate amount of dividend paid or proposed
to be paid on proata basis.

. Thelisted entityshall disclose the effect on the financial results of material changes in
the composition of thdisted entity, if any, including but not limited to business
combinations, acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and long term investments, any
other form of restructuring and discontinuance of operations.

. The listed entity shall ensure that segment repoisidgne in accordance with A

or Indian Accounting Standard 108 as applicable, specified in Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules framed thereunder or by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, whichever is applicable
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SCHEDULE IV: PART B: PREPARTION AND DISCLSOURES IN FINANCIAL
RESULTS OF LISTED ENTITY WHICH HAS LISTED ITS INDIAN DEPOSITORY
RECEIPTS
[SeeRegulation 70(2) and 71(3)]

The listed entity shall comply with the following requirements while preparing the
financial results:

A. Periodicity of Disclosure of Financial Results
(1) Financial results may be given on annual, half yearly and/or quarterly basis, as
required under the requirements of the home country.

B. Accounting Principle to be used in preparation anddisclosure of financial
Results
(1) The listed entity may prepare and disclose its financial results in accordance with
Indian GAAP orinternational Financial Reporting Standards IFRS or US GAAP

(2) In case the listed entity prepares and discloses the financial results as per US
GAAP, a reconciliation statement sasvis Indian GAAP and summary of
significant differences between the Indian GAAP and US GAAP has to be
annexed.

(3) If financial results ar@repared in accordance with IFRS, then listed entity shall
annex only the summary of significant differences between the Indian GAAP and
IFRS.

(4) If the listed entity is shifting from IFRS to US GAAP or vicerse then the
accounts relating to the previoperiod shall be properly restated for comparison;

(5) The Accounting / Reporting Standard followed for any interim results shall be
consistent with that of the Annual results.

(6) The financial results so submitted shall be based on the same set of accounting
pdicies as those followed in the previous year provided that in case, there are
changes in the accounting policies, the results of previous year shall be restated as
per the present accounting policies, to make it comparable with current year
results;

C. Auditing/Limited Review
(1) In case the listed entity prepares and discloses the financial results as per Indian
GAAP, the listed entity shall ensure that the annual, half yearly and/or quarterly
results, as required under the laws , rules or regulations of bmumméry, shall be
audited or subject to limited review by a Chartered Accountant in accordance with
Auditing ad Assurance Standards.

(2) In case the listed entity prepares and discloses the financial results as per US
GAAP or IFRS, the listed entity shall sure that the annual, half yearly and/or
quarterly results, as required under the laws, rules or regulations of home country
shall be audited or subject to limited review by professional accountant or certified
public accountant in accordance with the in&tional Standards on Auditing. The
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audi tor 6s report shall al so be prepare
Standards on Auditing.

D. Disclosures
(1) The listed entity shall disclose the audit qualification(s) or any other audit
reservation(s) along withhé financial results in addition to the explanatory
statement as to how audit qualification(s) or any other audit reservation(s) in
respect of the audited accounts of the previous accounting year have been
addressed in the financial results;

(2) Format
(&) The listed entity shall ensure that, if Indian GAAP is followed in preparation
of the financial results the format of the disclosure of financial results shall
be as prescribed by the Board.

(b) In case if Indian GAAP is not followed, the format of such disclosure shall
be as per the disclosure requirements of the listed entity in the home country
where the listed entity is listed.

(3) The listed entity shall make disclosures of its financial in&dram in its functional
currency/reporting currency/national currency and the reporting currency shall be
restricted to Sterling Pound/Euro/Yen/US Dollar.

(4) The listed entity shall provide convenient translation into Indian Rupees of the
| at est odestaterdents (aethel case may be) of consolidated profit and
losses, assets and liabilities and cash flows, at the closing rate of exchange, as at
the date on which the financial information is presented.

(5) The listed entity shall provide convenient tiatisns in English and other notes
such that the IDR Holders are able to understand such financial statements.
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SCHEDULE V: ANNUAL REPORT
[SeeRegulation 34(3) and 53(f)]

The annual report shall contain the following additional disclosures:
A. Related Party Disclosure:
1. The listed entity*’qwhich has listed its nenonvertible securities] shathake
di scl osures i n compliance with the Acc
Di scl osureso.

2. The disclosure requirements shall be as follows:

Sr. | In the | Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the maximum amo|
no. | accounts of | loans/ advances/ Investments outstanding during the year.
1 | Holding 1 Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by
Company and amount.
1 Loans andadvances in the nature of loans to associates by
and amount.

1 Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/compan
which directors are interested by name and amount.

2 | Subsidiary | Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company iocierds

of subsidiary company.

3 | Holding Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent compan

Company | subsidiary company, when the company has made a loan or ag

in the nature of loan.

For the purpose of above disclosures d
meaning as given in Section184 of Companies Act, 2013.

477(2A) Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity
belonging to the promoter/promoter growphich hold(s) 10% or more
shareholding in the listed entity, in the format prescribed in the relevant accounting
standards for annual results.]

3. 4§ The above disclosures shall et applicable to listed banks
B. Management Discussion and\nalysis:

1. This section shall include discussion on the following matters within the limits set
by the |listed entityds competitive posit
(a) Industry structure and developments.
(b) Opportunities and Threats.
(c) Segmeritwise or producivise performance.

478 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen8ixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f1.4.2022.
47 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Remda018,
w.e.f. 1.4.20109.
478 Substitutedy theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremerith Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f1.4.2022. Prior tchie substitution, clause (3) read under:
fi3. The above disclosures shall be applicgb t o al | |l isted entities except f
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(d) Outlook

(e) Risks and conces.

(H Internal control systems and their adequacy.

(g) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

(h) Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front,
including number of people employed.

419(i) details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to

the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed

explanations therefor, including:

(i) Debtors Turnover

(ii) Inventory Turnover

(i) Interes Coverage Ratio

(iv) Current Ratio

(v) Debt Equity Ratio

(vi) Operating Profit Margin (%)

(vii) Net Profit Margin (%)

or sectorspecific equivalent ratios, as applicable.

(j) details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately

previous financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof.]

2. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
Where in the preparation of financial statements, a treatment different from that
prescribed in an Accounting Standard has been followed, the fadbshidclosed
in the financial statements, together
it believes such alternative treatment is more representative of the true and fair view
of the underlying business transaction.

C. Corporate Governance Report:The following disclosures shall be made in the
section on the corporate governance of the annual report.

MDA brief statement on |isted entityods

(2) Board of directors:

(a) composition and category of directors (e.g. promotegcetve, non
executive, independent naxecutive, nominee directof institution
represented and whether as lender or as equity investor);

(b) attendance of each director at the meeting of the board of directors and the
last annual general meeting;

(c) number ofother board of directors or committees in which a directors is a
member or chairpers®f], and with effect from the Annual Report for the
year ended 31st March 2019, including separately the names of the listed
entities where the person is a director areddftegory of directorship];

(d) number of meetings of the board of directors held and dates on which held;

(e) disclosure of relationships between directors #stsr

() number of shares and convertible instruments held by egacutive
directors;

(g) web link where dtails of familiarisation programmes imparted to

479 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
480 |nserted ibid., w.e.f from the date specified in the provision.
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independent directors is disclosed.
48Y(h) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the
board of directors specifying the following:
(1) With effect from the financial year endimgarch 31, 2019, the
list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the board of
directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for
it to function effectively and those actually available with the board;
and
(i) With effect from the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the
names of directors who have such skills / expertise / competence
(i) confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill
the conditions specified in these regulations anel iadependent of the
management.
() detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns
before the expiry of hi§®3J/her] tenure along with a confirmation by such
director that there are no other material reasons other than tloeggepr]

(3) Audit committee:
(a) brief description of terms of reference;
(b) composition, name of members and chairperson;
(c) meetings and attendance during the year.

(4) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
(a) brief description of terms of reference;
(b) composition, name ahembers and chairperson;
(c) meeting and attendance during the year;
(d) performance evaluation criteria for independent directors.

5)JSt akehol dersodé relationship committee
(a) name of the neaxecutive director heading the committee;
(b) name and designation thie compliance officer;
(c) number of shareholdersdé compl aints

481 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.
482 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
483 Substtuted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, clause (5) read as follows:
ARemuneration of Directors:
(a) all pecuniary relationship or transactionsthie nonexecutive directors \ia-vis the listed entity
shall be disclosed in the annual report;
(b) criteria of making payments to naxecutive directors. alternatively, this may be disseminated
on the |Iisted entityos vindheanndaleepatnd ref erence dr
(c) disclosures with respect to remuneration: in addition to disclosures required under the
Companies Act, 2013, the following disclosures shall be made:
(i) all elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarized umajer
groups, such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc;
(i) details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance
criteria;
(iii) service contracts, notice period, severance fees;
(iv) stock optiordetails, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which
accrued and over which exercisable. o
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(d) number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders;
(e) number of pending complaints.]

484(5A) Risk management committee:
(a) briefdescription of terms of reference;
(b) composition, name of members and chairperson;
(c)meetings and attendance during the year;]

48Y(5B) Senior management:
Particulars of senior managementluding thechanges therein since the close

of the previouginancial yeat].

(6) **{Remuneration of directors:
(a) all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the-eoecutive
directors visa-vis the listed entity;
(b) criteria of making payments to nemecutive directors.
Alternatively, this may be disseminatedh t he | i sted ent.
and reference drawn thereto in the annual report;
(c) disclosures with respect to remuneration: in addition to disclosures
required under the Companies Act, 2013, the following disclosures
shall be made:
(i) all elements of remuneration package of individual directors
summarized under major groups, such as salary, benefits,
bonuses, stock options, pension etc;
(i) details of fixed component and performance linked
incentives, along with the performance eri;
(iiif) service contracts, notice period, severance fees;
(iv) stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount
as well as the period over which accrued and over which
exercisablg

(7) General body meetings:

(a) location and time, where lastree annual general meetings held;

(b) whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three annual general
meetings;

(c) whether any special resolution passed last year through postal iballot
details of voting pattern;

(d) person who conducted the postallda¢xercise;

(e) whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal

48 |nserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
485 Insertal by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
486 gSubstituted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulatons, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021. Prior to the substitution, clause (6) read as follows:
i St akehol deemnsittee:gr i evance

(&) name of norexecutive director heading the committee;

(b) name and designation of compliance officer;

(c) number of s hplaint lteceivatlsarfas;d6 c¢c om

(d) number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders;

(€ number of pending complaints. o
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ballot;
() procedure for postal ballot.

(8) Means of communication:
(a) quarterly results;
(b) newspapers wherein results normally published;
(c) any website, where displayed;
(d) whether italso displays official news releases; and
(e) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

(9) General shareholder information:

(a) annual general meetinglate, time and venue;

(b) financial year;

(c) dividend payment date;

(d) the name and addressof each stock exchange(st which thelisted entitys
securities arelisted and a confirmation about payment ofiraud listingfee
to each of such stock exchange(s);

(e) stock code;

(f) market price datahigh, low during each month in last financial year;

(9) performance in comparison to brehdsed indices such as BSE sensex,
CRISIL Index etc;

(h) in casethe wecurities are uspended from trading, the drecbrs repat shall
explain the reason thereof;

(i) registrar to an issue and share transfer agents;

() share transfesystem:;

(k) distribution of shareholding;

(H dematerialization of shares and liquidity;

(m)outstanding global depository receipts or american depository receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity;

(n) commodityprice risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities;

(o) plant locations;

(p) address for correspondence.

487(q) list of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions

thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt instrumdrsigain entity

or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity

involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abrdad.

(10)Other Disclosures:

(a) disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may
have poéntial conflict with the interests of listed entity at large;

(b) details of norcompliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any
statutory authority, on any matter related to capitakkets, during the
last three years;

(c) details of establishment of vigil mechani&tfj/] whistle blower policy, and

487 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 1.4.2019.

¥ Subst it ubyete SEBHLIstingl Obligations and Disclosure Requiremer{&gcond Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 w.e.f. 5.5.2021.
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affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee;
(d) details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoptibe abnr
mandatory requirements;
(e)web | ink where policy for determining
(H) web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions;
(g9) disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.
489(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or
qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).
(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors
on the board of the cgmany have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
()) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of
theboard which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same
to be disclosed along with reasons thereof:
Provided that the clause shall only apply where recommendation of / submission
by the committee is required for thpproval of the Bard of Directors and shall
not apply where priomapproval of the relevant committee is required for
undertaking any transaction under these Regulations.
(k) total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basj to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network
firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.]
499(1) disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
a. numbe of complaints filed during the financial year
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year.]
®Y (m) disclosure by |listed entity and
in thenature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by
name and amount 6:
Provided that this requirement shall be applicable to all listed entities except
for listed banks.]
492 (n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entitgjuding the date
and place of incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the
statutory auditorsf such subsidiariels.

(11)Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub
paras (2) to (10) above, with reasons thesbail be disclosed.

(12) The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the
discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il have been
adopted.

489 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f 1.4.2019.

490 nserted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2018,
w.e.f. 16.11.2018.

491 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremen8ixth Amendment) Regulations,
2021, w.e.f1.4.2022.

492 Inserted by theSEBI (Listing Obligatios and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023,
w.e.f.17.1.2023, to bapplicable for Annual Reports filed for the financial year 28223 and thereafter
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(13)The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements
specified in regulation 17 t87 andclauses (b) to (i) of sukegulation (2) of
regulation46shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the annual
report.

D. Declaration signed by the chief executive officer stating that the members of
board of directors and senior management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior
management.

E. Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company
secretaries regarding compliance of conditionsf corporate governance shall
be annexed with the directorsoé report.

F. Disclosures with respect to daat suspense account/ unclaimeslispense account
(1) Thelisted entityshdl disdose thefollowing details in its annual reportasliong as
there are sharesin thedemat suspense account or unclainsasperse account, as
applicable:
(a) aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the
suspense accountlying atthe beginning of theyear;
(b) number of shareholders who approached listed entitiydosfer of shares
from suspense account during the year,
(c) number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense
account during the year,
(d) aggregatenumber of shaeholders and the outstanding shaes in the
suspense accountlying attheendof theyea;
(e) that the voting rightson these shaesshdl remain frozentill the rightful
owner of such sharesclaims theshares.

G. “*IDisclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities
(1) Information disclosed under clause 5A of paragraph Rast A of Schedule Il of
these regulationp

SCHEDULE VI: MANNER OF DEALING WITH UNCLAIMED SHARES
[SeeRegulation 39(4)]

A.The listed entity may delegate the following procedural requirements to a share
transfer agent.

B. Reminders to be sent
(1) Thelisted entity sdl send at least threeremindea's at the addess as mentioned
below:

(a) For shares in physical form, reminders shall be sent tedtiess given in
the application form aswell aslast avail able address as per listed entitys
record.

(b) For shares in demat formeminders shall be sent to thgdress captuedin

4% nserted by the Securities afokchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Second Amendent) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f. 752023.
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depasitoryGs database or address given in the application form, in case of
application made in physical form.

C.Procedure in case of non receipt of response to reminders

(1) For shares in demat fornthe unclaimed shares shdl be credited to a demat
susperse account with one of the Depasitory Participants, opered by the listed
entity for this purpose.

(2) For shares in physical form, theted entityshall transfer all the sharesinto one
folio in the name of Unclaimed Susperse Accountd  a n ddensaterialilsel the
shaes héd in the Unclamed Susperse Account with one of the Depasitory
Participants.

(3) Thelisted entityshdl maintan detil s of sharehdding of each individual all ottee
whose sharesare credted to such demat suspense account or unclairmeperse
acoount, as applicable.

(4) The demat suspense account or unclainsagperse account, as applicablehdl
beheld by thelisted entitypurely on behalf of theal otteeswho are enttled to the
sharesand thesharesheld in such susperse acocount shall not be transferredn any
mannerwhaisoever exceptfor the pupose of all otting the sharesto theallotteeas
andwhen heshe appgroachesthelisted entity

Provided that all such shares, in respect of which unpaid or unclaimed dividend has
been transferred under Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, shall also be
transferred by the listed entity in accordance with Section 124 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013and rules made thereunder

D.Procedure in case of claim by allottee
(1) As and when the allottee approachesthe listed entity the listed entityshdl, after
proper verification of theidentity of the all ottee either credt the shareslying in
the Unclaimed Susperse Account or demat suspense account, as applicabtbeto
demat acoountof the allotteeto the extent of the allottees ertitlement*%4***]

495[***]

E. Dealing with Corporate Benefits (in terms of securities accruing) and Voting
Rights on suchUnclaimed Shares
(1) Any corporatebenefits in terms of securitiesaccruing on such sharesviz. bonus

shares, split etc., shall also be credited to such demat suspense account or
unclaimedsusperse account, as applicable for a period of seven years and
thereafter shall be transferred by the listed entity in accordance with provisions
of Section 124(5) read with Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

4T he wopor dblivertiie physicatertificates after rénaterialising the same, depending on whatkdesen
optedforbyte al | ot t e e :Sk&BI{Listing Gblegations and Didtlesure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 292, w.e.f.24.1.2022.
4% Omitted by theSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulatidt®, 20
w.e.f.24.1.2022Prior to the omission, the proviso read as under,

fiProvided that the rematerialising of the physical certificates shall be done only in case where the shares

were originally issued in physical forén.
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(2) Thevoting rightson such unclaimedsharesshall remain frozen till the rightful
ownerclaims theshares.
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SCHEDULE VII: TRANSFER “°*JAND TRANSMISSION] OF SECURITIES
[SeeRegulation 40(7) and 61(4)]

A. REQUIREMENT OF PAN

(1) For registration of transfer of securities, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s)
shall furnish a copy of their PAN card to the listed entity for registration of transfer
of securities.

(2) [***] 497

(3) In cases where PAN card is not available i.e. in case of residents of Sikkim, the
requirement of PAN Card may be substituted with Identity proof.

(4) In case of mismatch in PAN card details as well as difference in maiden name and
current name, in case of mad women, of the holder(s) of securities, the listed
entity may collect the PAN card as submitted by the transferee(s) or transferor(s)
as the case maybe:

Provided that this shall be subject to the listed entity verifying the veracity of the
claim of sich transferee(s) or transferor(s) by collecting sufficient documentary
evidence in support of the identity of the transferee(s) or transferor(s).

B. DIFFERENCES IN SIGNATURE

(1) In case of minor differences in the signature of the transferor(s), thedistieg
shall follow the following procedure for registering transfer of securities

(a) thelisted entity shalbromptly send to the first trarsferor(s), via speed post
an intimation of the aforesaid ddect in the documents and inform the
trarsferor(s) that djection, suppated by valid proof, is not lodged by the
transferor(s)with thelisted entitywithin fifteen days of receipt of thelisted
entityGs letter, thenthe securitiesshallbetransferred;

(b) if the intimation to the transferor(s) is delivered a&hnel objection from the
transferor(s) with supporting documents is not received within fifteen days,
thelisted entityshall transfer thesecuritiesprovided the listed entitydoes not
suspect fraudor forgeryin the matte:

Provided that the listed entity shall maintain proof of delivery for in their record(s).
(2) In case of major differences in, or rawmailability of, the signature of the
transferor(s), the listed entity shall follow the following procedure for registering

transfer of securities

(a) The listed entity shall promptly send to the transferee(s), via Speed Post, an

4% Inserted by thé&ecurities and Exchange Board ofindListing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 20@2.f. 25.4.2022.

497 Omitted by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,

2018, w.e.f. 08.06.2018. Prior to omission, -slduse (2) read as follows
iFor securities mar k-edrkettorpavatstemsactionsinsolviagtrdrisferof sfaes o f f
in physical form, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish copy of PAN card to the listed entity
forregi stration of such transfer of securities. o
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Objection Memo along with the documents in original marking the reason as
Amateri al si gnaatvuarid adoiiflfietrye nocfe /s inonmat u |
ensure submission of requested documents of the transferor(s);

(b) The listed entity shall also send a copy of the Objection memo as per clause
(a) of subpara (2) to the transferor(s), via Speed Post, simultaneously;

(c) The above Objection Memo in clausedayp (b) of sukpara (2) shall also state
the requirement of additional documents of transferor(s) as follows for
effecting the transfer:
(i) an Affidavit to update transferor(s) signature in its records;
an original unsi gned c anstatoh bfedhe c he gl
transferor(s) signature and address);
(iif) contact details of theansferor(s) and ;

(d) If the intimation to both the transferor(s) and the transferee(s) are delivered,
requested documents of the transferor(s) are submitted tistidu éntityand
the address attested by the bank tallies with the address available in the
database dfsted entity the listed entity, shall transfer the securities provided
the listed entity does not suspect fraud or forgery in the matter:

Provided that listed engitshall maintain proof of delivery in their record(s).

4% C. Documentation requirements in case of transmission of securities

498 Sybstituted by thEecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 20&2.f. 25.4.2022. Prior to the substitution, clause C readllasvk:
fiC. ADITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS IN CASE OF TRANSMISSION
OF SECURITIES
(1) Incase of transmission of securities held in dematerialized mode, where the securities are held
in a single name without a nominee, for the purpose of followimgplified documentation,
as prescribed by the depositories vide-lawgs oroperating instructions, as applicable, the
threshold limit is rupees five lakhs only per beneficiary owner account.
(2) In case of transmission of securities held in physical mode:
(a) where the securities are held in single name with a nominee:
(i) duly signed transmission request form by the nominee;
(i) original or copy of death certificate duly attested by a notary public or by a gazetted
officer;
(iii) self attested copy of PAN card of the nos®.
(b) wherethesecuritiesareheldin singlenamewithoutanominee, an affidavit from all legal
heir(s) madeon appropriatenonjudicial stamppaper,to the effect of identification and
claim of legalownershipto the securitiesshallberequired;
Provided that in case the legal heir(s)/claimant(s) is named in the succession certificate
or probate of will or will or letter of administration, an affidavit from such legal heir(s)
/ claimant(s) alone would be sufficient.
Provided further that:
(i) for valueof securitiesthresholdimit of up torupeegwo lakh only, per listed
entity, ason dateof application,a succession certificate or probate of will or
will or letter of administration or court decree, as may be applicable in terms
of Indian Succession Act, 1925 may be submitted :
Provided that in the absence of such documents, the following documents may
be submitted:
1. no objection certificatéom all legal heir(s) who do not object to such
transmission or copy of family settlement deed duly notarized and
executed bwll the legal heirs of the deceased holder;
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() In case of transmission of securities, where the securities are held in single name
with nomination the following documents shall be submitted:

(@)
(b)

(©)

duly signed transmission request form by the nominee;

original death certificater copy ofdeath certificatattested by th@eominee
subject to verification with the original or copy of death certificaty dttested
by a notarypublic or by a Gazetted Officer

selfattestedcopy of the Permanent Account INnber card of the nominee,
issued by théncome TaxDepartment

(2) In case of transmission of securities, where the securities are held in single name
without nomination the following documents shall be submitted:

(@)

(b)
(©)

(d)

(e)

a notarized affidavit from all legal heir(s) maolenonjudicial stamp paper of
appropriatevalue, to the effect aflentification and claim of legal ownership
to thesecurities

Provided that in case the legal heir(s)/claimargfepamed in the Succession
Certificate or Probate of Will or Will or Letter gfdministrationas may be
applicable in terms of Indian Succession Act, 1929 of 192%5) or Legal
Heirship Certificate or & equivalent certificate issued by a catgnt
Government Authority, aaffidavit from such legal heir(€jaimant(s) alone
shallbe sufficient

duly signed transmission request form by the legal heir(s)/claimant(s);

original death certificateor copy of death certificateattested by thdegal
heir(s)/claimant(spubject to verification with the original or copy of death
certificate duly attested by a notgoyblic or by a Gazetted Officer

seltattested copy ofthe Permanent Account Wnber card of thelegal
heir(s)/claimant(s)issued by théncome TaxDepartment

a copy of Succession Certificate or Probate of Will or Will or Letter of
Administration or Court Decree as may be applicable in terms of Indian
Succession Act, 192%39 of 195) or Legal Heirship Certificate or its

2. an indemnity bond made on appropriate non jatlistamp paper,
indemnifying the Share Transfer Agent / listed entity;

(i) for valueof securitiesmorethanrupeegwo lakh, per listed entity, as on date
of application, a succession certificate or probate of will or will or letter of
administration or cat decree, as may be applicable in terms of Indian
Succession Act, 1925 shall be submitted;

(iii) the listed entity however, at its discretion, may enhance value of securities,
threshold limit, of rupees two lakd.
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equivalent cdificate issued by a competdgabvernment Authorityattested by
the legal heir(s)/claimant(s3ubject to verification with the originar duly
attested by a notary public by a Gazetted Officer

Provided that in a case where a copy of Will or a Legal Heirship Certificate or
its equivalent certificate issued by a competent Government Authority is
submitted, the samghall be accompanied with a notarizedemnity bond
from the legal heir(s) /clainma(s) to whom the securities dransmittedin the
formatspecifiedby the Board:

Providedfurtherthatin a case whera copy of Legal Heirship €rtificate or
its equivalent ceificate issued by a compete@overnment Athority is
submitted the sameshall alsobe accompaniedith a No Objection fronall
non-claimants stating that theyave relinquished their rights to the cldion
transmission of securities

() for cases where value sécuritiedgs up to rupeefve lakhsper listed entityn
case ofsecurities held in physical modand upto rupees fifteen lakhper
beneficial ownein case of securities held in dematerialinedde,as on date
of application,and where the documents mentioned in para (e) are not
available, thdegal heir(s)yclaimari(s) may submit the following documents:

(i) no objection certificatédrom all legal heir(s)stating that they do not
object to such transmission or copy of family settlement e@eeduted
by all the legal heirgluly attested by a notary public by aGazetted
Officer; and

(i) a notarized indemnity bond made on #Hodicial stamp paperof
appropriate valuendemnifyirg the Share Transfer Agéristed entity,
in the formatspecifiedby the Board

Provided that the listed entity may, at its discretiamhamce the value of
securities from the threshold limit of rupees five lakhs, in case of securities held
in physical modg.
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SCHEDULE VIII [***] 499

49 Omitted bySEBI (Listing Obligations and Diszsure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016, w.e.f.
01.04.2016Prior to omission, Schedule VIl read as follows:

GMANNER OF REVIEWING FORM B ACCOMPANYING ANNUAL AUDITED RESULTS

[SeeRegulations 33(6) and 33(7) , 52(3)(b) araR(3)(c) and 95]

A. REVIEW BY STOCK EXCHANGE(S)

The stock exchange(s) shall adopt the following procedure for reviewing the Form B and accompanying
annual audit reports submitted in terms of clause (d) efsgblation (3) of regulation 33 and clause (a) of
subregulation 8) of 52:

(1) Stock exchange(s) shall carry out preliminary scrutiny of reports accompanied by Form B including
seeking necessary explanation from the listed entity concerned and consider the same based on
materiality of the modified opinion(s).

(2) The parametrs for ascertaining the materiality of modified opinion(s) shall be the impact of these
modified opinions on the profit and loss and financial position of the listed entity.

(3) For the purpose of uniformity, stock exchange(s) shall consult one anotdeciding the criteria
for preliminary scrutiny.

(4) Further, stock exchange(s) shall also consult one another for distributing the work in case shares of
the listed entity concerned are listed on more than one stock exchange(s).

(5) Upon examining the audit reports based on the above parameters, stock exchange(s) shall refer
those cases, which, in their opinion, need further examination, to the Board.

(6) Stock exchange(s) shall display the list of listed entities which have filethtidit reports along
with Form B.

B. REVIEW BY THE QUALIFIED AUDIT REPORT REVIEW COMMITTEE

(1) The qualified audit report review committee shall be constituted by the board comprising of
representatives from Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, statiange(s), Ministry of
Corporate Affairs etc.

(2) The qualified audit report review committee shall review the cases received from the stock
exchange(s) and guide the Board in processing the annual audit reports with modified opinion(s).

(3) After analyzingthe modified opinion(s) in audit reports, qualified audit report review committee
may make the following recommendations:

(a) If qualified audit report review committég of the view thathe impact of modified opinion
is not significant, it may recommend rectification of such modified opinion in the subsequent
financial year,;

(b) If qualified audit report review committég of the view that the impact of modified opinion
is significant and the explanation given by the listed entity concerned in Form B is
unsatisfactory, the case may be referred to the Financial Reporting Review Board of Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, for their opinion on whether the modiipécion is
justified.

(c) Based on the opinion of the financial reporting review board, qualified audit report review
committee may recommend the following:

(i) If Financial Reporting Review Boardpines that modified opinion is justified,
qualified audit repd review committee may recommend submission of revised pro
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forma financial results, incorporating the effect of the modified opinion, to the stock
exchange(s) in the manner as specified in para (E) below.

(i) Iffinancial reporting review board is of theewir that modified opinion is not justified,
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India may take up the matter appropriately with
the statutory auditor of the listed entity.

(d) If a modified opinion is not quantifiable, qualified audit report review committes/
recommend rectification of such modified opinion in the subsequent financial year

C.Based on the recommendations of qualified audit report review committee and/or the opinion of
Financial Reporting Review Board, the Board may direct the listed esditgerned to rectify its
modified opinion and/or submit the revised {iooma financial results in the manner specified in-sub

para (3) of paréB).
D. The Board may, at any stage, in the interest of investors, take any other necessary action as it deems fit.

E. SUBMISSION OF REVISED PRO-FORMA FINANCIAL RESULTS
(1) The listed entity shall undertake tfalowing steps for submission of revised goyma finarcial
results:

(@) The listed entity shall submit revised gayma financial results, incorporating the effect of
the modified opinion, to the stock exchange(s) within two months from the date of receipt of
such direction from Board.

(b) The accounting impact ofish modified opinion shall be carried out as a prior period item in
the financial statements of the subsequent financial year.

F.The review of all Form Bs and the accompanying annual audit reports shall be carried out twice a year
based on the reports reeedl up to half year ending on June and December of every year and for this
purpose, the following timelines are prescribed:

Activity To be completed by
Filing of annual audit reports and Form A/Form B by | As per theregulations
listed entity

Preliminary scrutiny of the reports received during the | One month from the end of half year ending
year (JanuaryJune and JulyDecember each year) by sto| June and December each year.
exchange(s) and referring cases to the Board

Review of the cases by qualified audit report revi One month from the date of receipt of rep

committee from the stock exchange(s).
Referring cases to Financial Reporting Review Boarg Fifteen days fronthe date of decision of th
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India qualified audit report review committee

Receipt of reply from Financial Reporting Review Board| One month from the date of referral
qualified audit report review committee
Communication of decision on the case to the listed e| Fifteen days from the date of decision
concerned and the stock exchange(s). qualified audit report review committee
Financial Reporting Review Board

Submission of revised ptfimrma financial results by th| Within two months from the date of letter
listed entity concerned. communication to the concerned entity.

160



SCHEDULE IX - AMENDMENTS TO OTHER REGULATIONS
[Seeregulation 10Q

1. Amendment to Securities andxchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009.

(i) For regulation 7 the following shall be substituted, namely:

"Security Deposit.
7. (1) The issuer shall deposit, before the opening of subscription list, and keep
deposited with the stock exchange(s), an amount calculated at the rate of one per cent.
of the amount of securities offered for subscription to the public.
(2)The amount specified isubregulation (1) shall be deposited in the manner
specified by Board and/or stock exchange(s).
(3)The amount specified in subgulation (1) shall be refundable or forfeitable in the
manner specified by the Board."

(i) In regulation 98, after claes(f), the following clauses shall be inserted, namely,
"(g) theissuing company shall ensure that the underlying equity shares against
which IDRs are issued have been or will be listed in its home country before
listing of IDRs in stock exchange(s).

(h) the issuing company shall ensure that the underlying shares of IDRs shall
rank pari-passwwith the existing shares of the same class."

(iii) In regulation 101, for subegulation (1) the following shall be substituted, namely:
"(1) The issuing comgny shall appoint one or more merchant bankers, at least one of
whom shall be a lead merchant banker and shall also appoint other intermediaries, in
consultation with the lead merchant banker and shall enter into an agreement with the
merchant banker onéHines of format of agreement as specifie@amedule II'

(iv) After regulation 101 and before regulation 102, the following regulation shall be inserted,
namely:
"Agreements with other intermediaries and others.
101A. (1) The issuing company shalppoint a registrar and transfer agent which has
connectivity with all the depositories.

(2)The issuing company shall enter into an agreement with overseas custodian bank and
domestiadepository.

(3) The lead merchant banker, after independesdbessing the capability of other

intermediaries and others to carry out their obligations, shall advise the issuing company
on their appointment.”

161



(v) For regulation 102 the following shall be substituted, namely:
ADi splay of bi dllotohentlesterand i ssue of
102.(1) The stock exchange(s) offering online bidding system for the book building
process shall display on their website, the data pertaining to book built IDR issue, in
the format specified in Part B(2) of Schedule XI, from the dagpening of the bids
till at least three days after closure of bids.
(2) The issuing company shall ensure that letter of allotment for the IDRs are issued
simultaneously to all allottees and that in the event of it being impossible to issue
letters ofregret at the same time, a notice to that effect be issued in the media so that
it appears on the morning after the | ett.

(vi) for regulation 106J the following shall be substituted, namely,

Period of subscription and issue of allotment letter.

106J.(1) A rights issue shall be open for subscription in India for a period as applicable
under the laws of its home country but in no case lesstémadays.

(2) The issuing company shall ensuratth sends the allotment letter of rights to IDR
Holders at the time they are sent to shareholders of the issuing company as per the
requirement of its home country or other jurisdictions where its securities are listed.

(vii) in regulation 106M, the wals, number and symbol "regulation 7," shall be omitted.
(viii) Chapter XI shall be renumbered as Chapter XII.

(iX) Regulations 107, 108, 109, 110 and 111 shall be renumbered as 111, 112, 113, 114 and
115 respectively and any reference thereto in angylaégn framed or any circular or
guideline issued by the Board shall be read accordingly.

(x) After Chapter X and before Chapter XlI, the following Chapter shall be inserted, namely:

"CHAPTER XI
LISTING OF SECURITIES ON STOCK EXCHANGES

In-principle approval of recognized stock exchange(s).
107. (1) The issuer or the issuing company, as the case may be, shall obtain in
principleapproval from recognised stock exchange as follows:

(a) in case of an initial public offer or an issue of Indian Depository Receipts
(hereinafter referred to as o601 DRsd6) ,
on which the issueor the issuing companyroposes to get its specified
securities or IDRs, as the case may be, listed; and

(b) in case of other issues, before issuandertiier securities, as follows:

(i) where the securities are listed only on recognised stock exchange(s)
having nationwide trading terminals, from all such stock exchange(s);

(i) where the securities are not listed on any recognised stock exchange
having nationwide trading terminals, from all the stock exchange(s) on
which the securities of the issuer are proposed to be listed;

(iif) where the specifiedre listed on recognised stock exchange(s) having
nationwide trading terminals as well as on the resmgh stock
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exchange(s) not having nationwide trading terminals, from all recognised
stock exchange(s) having nationwide trading terminals.

Application for Listing.
108. (1) The issuer or the issuing company, as the case may be, shall cahwlete
prelisting formalities within the time lines specified by the Board from time to time.

(2) The issuer or the issuing company, as the case may be, shall, make an application
for listing, within twenty days from the date of allotment, to one or more recognized
stockexchange(s) along with the documents specified by stock exchange(s) from time
to time.

(3) In case of delay in making application for listing beyond twenty days from the date
of allotment, the issuer or the issuing company, as the case may be, shahahy p
interest to allottees for each day of delay at the rate of atleast ten per cent. per annum
from the expiry of thirty days from date of allotment till the listing of such securities

to the allottees.

(4) In the event of noneceipt of listing permissn from the stock exchange(s) by the
issuer or the issuing company, as the case may be, or withdrawal of Observation Letter
issued by the Board, wherever applicable, the securities shall not be eligible for listing
and the issuer or the issuing comparsythee case may be, shall be liable to refund the
subscription monies, if any, to the respective allottees immediately alongwith interest
at the rate of ten per cent. per annum from the date of allotment.

Listing Agreement.
109. (1) Everyissuer or the issuing compangsirous of listing its securitiemn a
recognised stock exchange shall execute a listing agreement with such stock exchange.

(2) Every issuer or the issuing companyhich has previously entered into
agreement(s) with a recoiged stock exchange to list #scuritieshall execute a fresh
listing agreement with such stock exchange within six months of the date of
notification of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulatsy 2015.

Obligation of stock exchange(s).
110.The stock exchange(s) shall granpiinciple approval/list the securities or reject
the application for irprinciple approval /listing by the issuer or issuing company, as
the case maybe, within thirty dajrom the later of the following dates:
(a) the date of receipt of application forprinciple approval/listing fronlssuer
or the issuing company, as the case may be,
(b) the date of receipt of satisfactory reply from iksuer or the issuing
company, as the case may lecases where the stock exchange(s) has sought
any clarification from them."
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(xi) In Schedule VIII, in part E in clause 5, in item XVI, after stédmn B and before suibem

C, the following subtem dhall be inserted, namely:
"(BA) Dealing with Fractional Entitlementanner of dealing with fractional
entitlement viz. payment of the equivalent of the value, if any, of the fractional
rights in cash etc.”

(xii) In Schedule XIX, in part A, in item 1&fter subitem(e), the following sulitem shall be
inserted, namely:
"(f) Different classes of shares based on different criteria, if any."

(xiii) In Schedule XIX, in part A, in item 14, before sitbm (a), the following general
instructions shall banserted, namely:

General Instructions:
(1) The format of disclosure of financial results may be as per the disclosure
requirements of the issuing company in the home country where the Issuing
Company is listed.

(2) The issuing company shall intimate to the investors in the offer document the
type of disclosures that it will follow i.e. whether as per Indian GAAP, IFRS or
US GAAP and any change in such format shall be informed to the IDR Holders
by way of noticeso the stock exchange.

(xiv) In Schedule XIX, in Part B, in item 2, after sitbm (d), the following suitem shall
be inserted, namely:
"(e) Different classes of shares based on different criteria, if any."

(xv) In Schedule XX in the reference tifteh e number @A1100 shall be
number A1140.

2. Amendment to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008.

() After regulation 12 and before regulation 13, the following regulation bkeainserted,
namely:

"Allotment of securities and payment of interest.

12A. (1) The Issuer shall ensure that that in case of listing of debt securities issued to
public, allotment of securities offered to public shall be made within thirty days of the
closure of the public issue.

(2) Where the debt securities are not allottedf@mapplication moneys are not refunded
within the stipulated period in striegulation (1), the issuer shall undertake to pay interest
at the rate of fifteen per cent. per annum.

(3) Credit to demat accounts of the allottees shall be made within twongat&ys from

the date of allotment. o
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(ii) After regulation 19 and before regulation 20, the following regulations shall be inserted,
namely:

" Listing Agreement.
19A. (1) Every issuer desirous of listing its debt securities on a recognised stock
exchange shall execute an agreement with such stock exchange.

(2) Every issuer which has previously entered into agreements with a recognised stock
exchange to list its debésurities shall execute a fresh listing agreement with such stock
exchange within six months of the date of notification of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Security Deposit.

19B. (1) The issuer shall deposit, before the opening of subscription list, and keep
deposited with the stock exchange(s) an amount calculated at the rate of one per cent.
of the amount of securities offered for subscription to the public.

(2)The amount stipulated in swbgulation (1) shall be deposited in the manner
specified by Board and/or stock exchange(s).

(3)The amount stipulated in subgulation (1) shall be refundable or forfeitable in the
manner specified by the Board."

(i) For regulation 23, the following shall be substituted, namely:

fiContinuous Listing Conditions.
23. All the issuers making public issues of debt securities or seeking listing of debt
securities issued on private placement basis shall comply with theiooadif listing
specified in the respective |listing agree

3. Amendment to Securities and Exchange Board of India(Issue and Listing of Nen
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013.

() After regulation 16 andbefore regulation 17, the following regulations shall be inserted,
namely:

" Listing Agreement.

16A. (1) Every issuer desirous of listing its noonvertible redeemable preference shares,

or perpetual nortumulative preference shares or innovative pegbatabt instruments

on a recognised stock exchange, shall execute an agreement with such stock exchange.

(2) Every issuer which has previously entered into agreements with a recognised stock
exchange to list nenonvertible redeemable preference shamms,perpetual non
cumulative preference shares or innovative perpetual debt instruments shall execute a
fresh listing agreement with such stock exchange within six months of the date of
notification of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Ohtigat and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Security Deposit.

16B.(1) The issuer shall deposit, before the opening of subscription list, and keep deposited
with the stock exchange(s) an amount calculated at the rate of one per cent. of the amount
of securities offered for subscription to the public.
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(2)The amount stigated in sukregulation (1) shall be deposited in the manner specified
by Board and/or stock exchange(s).

(3)The amount stipulated in suegulation (1) shall be refundable or forfeitable in the
manner specified by the Board. o

(i) In regulation 20, sulvegulations (2) and (3) shall be omitted.

(i) In Schedule I, in para. lll, insupar a (i1 ), under the headin
Al'l ot ment Letters or Refund Orderso after th
"The issuer further agreg the following shall be inserted, namely:
"Issuer agrees that credit to demat accounts of the allottees shall be made within two
working days from the date of allotment."

4. Amendment to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Public Offer and kting of
Securitised Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2008.
() In regulation 31, after sutegulation (8), the following subkegulation shall be inserted,
namely:
"(9) Credit to demat accounts of the allottees shall be made by the issuer within two
workingdays from the date of allotment. o

(if) After regulation 35 and before regulation 36, the following regulation shall be inserted,
namely:
"Listing Agreement.
35A. (1) Every special purpose distinct entity desirous of listing securitised debt
instruments on a recognised stock exchange, shall execute an agreement with such stock
exchange.

(2) Every special purpose distinct entity which has previously entered gnteraents

with a recognised stock exchange to list securitised debt instruments shall execute a fresh
listing agreement with such stock exchange within six months of the date of notification
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligationd &nsclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Security Deposit.

35B. (1) The issuer shall deposit, before the opening of subscription list, and keep
deposited with the stock exchange(s) an amount calculated at the rate of one per cent. of
the amount bsecurities offered for subscription to the public.

(2)The amount stipulated in suegulation (1) shall be deposited in the manner specified

by Board and/or stock exchange(s)(s).

(3)The amount stipulated in swbgulation (1) shall be refundable or fmtable in the
manner specified by the Board."

(iii) In regulation 36, suiyegulation (3) shall be substituted with the following, namely:
"(3) In case of a private placement of securitised debt instruments, the special purpose
distinct entity shall file listing particulars with the recognised stock exchange, along with
the application made under stdgulation (1) of regulation 35, containing such
information as may be necessary for any investor in the secondary market to make an
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informed investment decision in respect of its securitised debt instruarehthe special
purpose distinct entity shall promptly disseminate such information, as presanisach
manner as the recognised stock exchange(s) may determine from time'to time

(iv) For regulation 37, the following shall be substituted, namely:
fiContinuous listing conditions.
37. The special purpose distinct entity or trustee thereof shhatnit such information,
including financial information relating to the schemes, to the stock exchanges and
investors and comply with such other continuing obligations as may be stipulated in the
l i sting agreement. 0

5. Amendment to Securities and Exchnge Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations,

1996.

After regulation 31, the following regulation shall be inserted, namely:

Aln-principle approval from recognised stock exchange(s).
31A. The listed entity, which intends to list units of #sheme orhe recognised stock
exchange(s) prsihmdilp loeb& aappréawmal from recogn
manner as specified by the recognised stock exchange(s) from time to time.

Listing Agreement.
31B. (1) Every mutual fund desirous of listing units of its schemes on a recognised stock
exchange shall execute an agreement with such stock exchange.

(2) Every mutual fund which has previously entered into agreements with a recognised
stock exchange to lisinits of its schemes shall execute a fresh listing agreement with such
stock exchange within six months of the date of notification of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015."

167



SCHEDULE X- LIST OF SEBI CIRCULARS WHICH STAND RESCINDED
[SeeRegulation 103]

S.No | Number Dated Subject
1. SE/2376 April 3, Amendment to Clause 41 of Listir
1992 Agreement
2. SE/2936 April 6, 1% Listing Deposit
1992
3. SMD/SED/N/JJ/4984/94 September | Submission of B/S & details ¢
23,1994 utilisation of funds, ete.CI32 and 43
of LA
4. SMD/SED/CIR/94/6669 October 31, | Forfeiture of 1% Listing Deposit
1994
5. SMD-I(N)/JJ/2331/95 June 26, Submission of Cash Flow Stateme
1995
6. SMD-I(N)/JJ/2621/95 July 11, Effective Year of Submission ¢
1995 Cash Flow Statement
7. SMD/RCG/JJ/1819/96 May 15, Allotment  within 30 days
1996 amendment to LA
8. 03/SMD/96 May 17, Amendment to Clause 32 of ti
1996 Listing Agreement.
9. RRTI CIRCULAR NO.2 (9798) | June 4, Payment of dividend/Interes
1997 rounded off to the nearest rupee
10. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-22/97 September | Amendment to the  Listin
22,1997 Agreement Clause 40A and 4(
amendment
11. | SMD/POLICY/CIR- 06/98 February Amendment in  the  Listing
12,1998 Agreement Transfer of sharesR
Chandrasekaran committee
12. | SMD/Policy/CIR12/98 April 07, Amendment to Listing Agreemel
1998 Clause 36 and 41Bhave Committee
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13. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-13/98 April 16, Amendment to Listing Agreemel
1998 price sensitive information
14. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-26/97 September | Quarterly results- Mutual Fund
17,1998 providing quarterly results will not b
applicable to a Mutual Fund
15. | SMD/POLICY CIR-04/99 March 8, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 Clause 32 an€lause 41- status on
the Y2K preparedness level
16. | SMDRP/CIR07/99 April 9, Trading and settlement of trades
1999 dematerialised securities  noti
period about booklosure / recorc
date- 42 to 30 days
17. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR 8 /99 April 26, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 Clause 32 and Clause 41 related
disclosure of turnover and incon
from new business subsequent
change in name -
software/information technolog
business.
18. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-12/99 May 18, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 Compliance Officer shall be th
Company Secretary- Malegam
Commitee
19. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR14/98 May 19, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 Submission of complete Balan
Sheet Clause 32
20. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-18/99 July 01, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 company shall publish/submit th
audited results within two month
from the end of the last quarter of t
financial year
21. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-24/99 July 14, Listing Agreementi Amendment
1999 provide correct and adequs
information to Credit Rating
Agencies
22. | SMD-II/POLICY/CIR - 08 /2000 | February Amendments to the  Listin
04, 2000 Agreement
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23. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR10/2000 | February
21, 2000

24. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR13/2000 March 09,
2000

25. | SMD-II/Policy/Cir- 14/2000 April 06, Amendments to the  Listin
2000 Agreement

26. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR15/2000 | April 10, Reduction in the no delivery period
2000 exchanges

27. | SMDRP/POLICY/Ci¥21/2000 May 10, Clause 43 of the Listing Agreemen
2000 Statement on utilisation of funds

28. | PMIMD/8755/2000 May 31, Reference of cases for relaxation
2000 Rule 19(2)(b) of Securities Contra

(Regulation) Act, 1957

29. | SMD/POLICY/CIR-26/2000 July 04, Amendment to the  Listin
2000 Agreement

30. | SMDRP/Policy/Ci¥r30 /00 July 25, Amendment to the  Listin
2000 Agreement

31. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR 35/2000 | August 04,
2000

32. | SMDRP/POLICY/ CIR42/2000 | September | Listing Agreement Amendments tg
12, 2000 Clause 49

33. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR55/00 December
06, 2000

34. | SMDRP/POLICY/ CIR 03/01 January?22, | Enforcement of Corporat
2001 Governance

35. | SMDRP/POLICY/ CIR7/01 February Distribution of Share Holding
01, 2001

36. | SMDRP/Policy/Cirl5 /2001 March 08, | Listing of further issue of capital
2001

37. | SMDRP/POLICY/ CIR 28/01 May 02, Nonpromoter holding on &
2001 continuous basis and minimu

number of shareholders
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38. | SMDRP/Policy/Cir 29 /01 May 22, Practice of granting condition;
2001 listing permission

39. | SMDRP/Policy/Cir44 /01 August 31, | Amendment to the  Listin
2001 Agreement

40. | SMDRP/POLICY/CIR46/2001 | September | Delay in transfer of shares |
27,2001 companies

41. | SMDRP/Policy/Cir 47 /01 October 04, | Amendment the Listing Agreement
2001

42. | DCC/FITTCIR-3//2001 October 15, | facility of ECS for distributing
2001 dividends or other cadtenefits

43. | SMDRP/Policy/Cir 48 /2001 October 19, | Segment Reporting in  Quarter
2001 Financial Results under Clause 41

the Listing Agreement

44. | SMDRP/POLICY/ CIR 53 /01 Dec 31, Amendments to Clause 49 of t
2001 Listing Agreement

45. | SMD/POLICY/ CIR- 1 /02 January 02, | Sub: Amendments to the Listin
2002 Agreement

46. | SMD/Policy/Cir10/2002 May 07, Amendment to the  Listin
2002 Agreement

47. | SMD/Policy/Cir11 /02 May 10, Amendment to the  Listin
2002 Agreement

48. | SMD/POLICY/Cir-13/02 June 20, Electronic Data Information Filing
2002 And Retrieval (EDIFAR)

49. | SMD/Policy/Cir16 /2002 June 26,
2002

50. | SMD/POLICY/Cir-17/02 July 3, 2002| Electronic Data Information Filin

and Retrieval system (EDIFAR).

51. | SMD/Policy/Cir23 /02 September | Electronic Data Information Filing
17, 2002 And Retrieval (EDIFAR)

52. | SMD/Policy/Cir 27 /02 December | Electronic Data Information Filin
20, 2002 And Retrieval (EDIFAR)
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53. | SMD/Policy/Cir2 /2003 January 10, | Amendment to Listing Agreemeit
2003 Clause 32 and Clause 41.
54. | SMD/Policy/Listing/Cir5/2003 February Non-compliance of provisions ¢
12, 2003 listing agreement.
55. | SEBI/SMD/Policy/List/Cir- May 08, Amendment to the listing agreeme
17/2003 2003 regarding disclosure pertaining
schemes o]
arrangement/merger/amailgation
/reconstruction filed before the Col
56. | SEBI/SMD/SE/Ci¥23/2003/18/06| June 02, Electronic Data Information Filin
2003 And Retrieval (EDIFAR)
57. | SEBI/SMD/SE/25/2003/ 19 /06 | June 19, Listing Fees
2003
58. | SEBI/MRD/SE/31/2003/26/08 | August 26, | Corporate Governance in listg
2003 Companie$ Clause 49 of the Listin
Agreement
59. | MRD/Policy/Ciri 35 /2003/29/09| September | Listing of further issue of capital
29, 2003
60. | SEBI/MRD/SE/AT/36/2003/30/0¢ September | Secondary Market for Corpora
30, 2003 DebtSecurities.
61. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/SE/43/2003 November | Reduction in Notice Period for fixin
20, 2003 the Book closure/Record date
62. | SEBI/MRD/SE/AT/46/2003 December | Secondary Market for Corpora
22,2003 Debt Securities Clarifications
63. | SEBI/MRD/Policy/AT/Cir April 30, Frequent change of names by list
20/2004 2004 companies
64. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CG/1/2004/12/10| October 29, | Corporate Governance in list¢
2004 Companie$ Clause 49 of the Listin
Agreement
65. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CIR- 39 November | Model Listing Agreement for listing
/2004/11/01 01, 2004 of Debt Securities
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66. | SEBI/DNPD/CIR28/2004/12/07 | December | Amendments to Clause 16 of t
08, 2004 Equity Listing Agreement i
Requirement of Notice Period
67. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CG/1/2005/29/3 | March 29, | Corporate GovernanégeClause 49 ot
2005 the Listing Agreement
68. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CG/1/2006/13/1 | January 13, | Corporate Governance in listé
2006 Companie$ Clause 49 of the Listin
Agreement
69. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/IDR/1/2006/3/4 | April 03, Listing Agreement for Indian
2006 Depository Receipts (IDRs)
70. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2006/13/4 April 13, Amendments to Clause 40A a
2006 Clause 35 of Equity Listing
Agreement
71. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/1/2007/20/03 | March 20, | Amendments to the  Listin
2007 Agreement for Debentures
72. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2/2007/ 26/4 | April 26, Amendments to Clause 32 of Equ
2007 Listing Agreement
73. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/3/2007/10/07 | July 10, Amendments to Clause 41 of Equ
2007 Listing Agreement
74. | MIRSD/DPS Ill//Cir- 11/07 August 06, | Dissemination of Information on
2007 Debentures
75. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/4/2007/27/12 | December | Amendments to Equity Listin
27, 2007 Agreement
76. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CG/1/2008/08/04| April 08, Corporate Governance in listé
2008 Companie$ Clause 49 of the Listin

Agreement
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77. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/ 5/2008/4/09 | September | Amendment in Equity Listing
04, 2008 Agreement
78. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/CG/2/2008/23/10| October 23, | Corporate Governance in listg
2008 Companie$ Clause 49 of the Listin
Agreement
79. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2009/3/2 February Amendments to Equity Listin
03,2009 Agreement
80. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/1/2009/24/04 | April 24, Amendments to the Equity Listin
2009 Agreement
81. | SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 | May 11, Simplified Listing Agreement fo
2009 Debt Securities
82. | MRD/DoP/ Cir05/2009 May 20, PAN requirement for transfer ¢
2009 shares in physical form
83. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/IDR/1/2009/16/0¢ June 16, Model Listing Agreement for listing
2009 of Indian Depository Receipts (IDR
84. | MRD/DoP/SE/CirQ07/2009 July 21, Abolition of no-delivery periodfor
2009 all types of corporate actions.
85. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/2/2009/21/7 | July 21, Amendments to the Equity Listin
2009 Agreement Clause 28A
86. | SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/3/2009/03/09 | September | Amendments to Equity Listin
03, 2009 Agreement
87. | SEBI/IMD/DOF1/BOND/Cir- November | Simplified Debt Listing Agreemern
5/2009 26, 2009 for Debt Securities Amendments
88. | SEBI/IMD/DOF1/BOND/Cir- January 07, | Simplified Debt Listing Agreemen
1/2010 2010 for Debt Securities Amendments
89. | SEBI/MRD/DoRSE/RTAI/Cir January 07, | PAN requirement for transmission
03/2010 2010 shares in physical form
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90. | CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2010 April 05, Listing ConditionsAmendments tc
2010 the Equity Listing Agreement
91. | CIR/CFD/DCR/3/2010 April 16, Discontinuation oElectronic Data
2010 . . ,
Information Filing and Retrievg
(EDIFAR) System.
92. | Cir/ CFD /DCR/5 /2010 May 07, Making Annual Reports of Liste
2010 Companies easily accessible Maki
Annual Reports of Listed Compani
easily accessible
93. CIR/CFD/DIL/6/2010 May 17, Conditions of listing for issuer
2010 seeking listing on SME Exchange
Model SME  Equity  Listing
Agreement
94. | SEBI/Cir/ISD/ 2 /2010 October 26, | Clarification on Trading Rules an
2010 shareholding in dematerialized mo
95. | CIR/CFD/DIL/10/2010 December | Amendment to Equity Listing
16,2010 Agreement
96. | Cir. /IMD/DF/5/2011 March 16, | Listing Agreement for Securitize
2011 Debt Instruments
97. | CIR/CFD/DIL/3/2011 June 03, Redemption of Indian Depositol
2011 Receipts (IDRs) into Underlyin
Equity Shares
98. | CIR/MRD/DP/ 07 /2011 June 16, Change of Name by Liste
2011 Companies
99. | Cir/ISD/ 3/2011 June 17, Shareholding of promoter / promot
2011 group to be in dematerialized mody¢
100. | SEBI/Cir/ISD/ 05 /2011 September | Clarification on 100% promote
30, 2011 holding in demat form
101. | CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2011 October 05, | Amendments to the Equity, IDR ar
2011 SME Equity Listing Agreements
102. | CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2012 February Amendment to Clause 40A and 43
08, 2012 Equity ListingAgreement
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103. | SEBI/Cir/ISD/ 1 /2012 March 30, | Exemptions from 100% promoter(|
2012 holding in demat form
104. | CIR/CFD/DIL/4/2012 April 16, Amendments to the Equity Listin
2012 Agreement Formats for Disclosurg
of Financial
Results
105. | CIR/MIRSD/8 /2012 July 05, Reduction of Timdine for Transfer
2012 of Equity Shares and Prescription
Time-line for Transfer of Deb
Securities
106. | CIR/CFD/DIL/6/2012 July 13, Amendments to the Equity Listin
2012 Agreement- Platform for EVoting
by Shareholders dfisted Entities
107. | CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2012 August 13, | Manner of Dealing with Audi
2012 Reports filed by Listed Companies
108. | CIR/OIAE/1/2012 August 13, | Redressal of investor grievanc
2012 against listed companies in SE
Complaints Redress Syste
(SCORES).
109. | CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2012 August 13, | Business Responsibility Reports
2012
110. | CIR/CFD/DIL/10/2012 August 28, | Redemption of Indian Depositol
2012 Receipts (IDRs) into Underlyin
Equity Shares
111. | CIR/CFD/DIL/11/2012 August 29, | Manner of achieving minimun
2012 public shareholding requirements
terms of SCRR, 1957
112. | CIR/CFD/DIL/2/2013 January 03, | Clarification on Clause 36 of th
2013 Equity Listing Agreement
113. | CIR/CFD/DIL/3/2013 January 17, | Amendment to ESOP
2013
114. | CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 February Scheme of Arrangement under t
04, 2013 Companies Act, 1956/ Revised

requirements  for the  Stoc
Exchanges and Listed Companies
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115. | CIR/CFD/DIL/6/2013 March 01, | Guidelines for Enabling Partial Tw
2013 Way  Fungibility of Indian
Depository Receipts (IDRs)
116. | CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 March 21, Sub: Usage of electronic payme
2013 modes for making cash payments
the investors
117. | CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2013 May 13, ESOP- Clarification
2013
118. | CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 May 21, Scheme of Arrangement under t
2013 Companies Act,1956 i Revised
requirements for the  Stoc
Exchanges and Listed Companie
Clarification
119. | CIR/CFD/DIL/9/2013 June 05, Manner of Dealing with Audi
2013 Reports filed by Listed Companies
Clarification
120. | CIR/MRD/ DSA / 31 /2013 September | Standard Operating Procedure
30, 2013
121. | CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/13/2013] November | Compliance with the provisions (
18, 2013 Equity Listing Agreement by liste
companiesi Monitoring by Stock
Exchanges
122. | CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/14/2013 November | ESOPT Clarification Extension of
29, 2013 time line for alignment
123. | CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2014 March25, |[For mat for Aud
2014 required under Clause 24(i) of tl
Equity Listing Agreement
124. | CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2014 | April 17, Corporate Governance in listg
2014 entities - Amendments to Clause
35B and 49 of the Equity Listin
Agreement
125. | CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/3/2014 | June 27, ESOP1 Clarification Extension of
2014 time line for alignment
126. | CIR/CFDI/DIL/4/2014 August 01, | Monitoring of Compliance by Stoc
2014 Exchanges
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127. | CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/7/2014 | September | Corporate Governance in listg
15, 2014 entities- Amendments to Clause 4

of the Equity Listing Agreement
128. | CIR/CFD/CMD/1/2015 April 08, Fine structure fornon-compliance
2015 with the requirement of Claus

49(11)(A)(1) of Listing Agreement
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%09Schedule XIi Fee in respect of draft scheme of arrangement
[see regulations 37, 59A, 94 and 94A]

1. An entity with listed specified securities, or listed specifsedurities and
listed nonconvertible debt securities or neconvertible redeemable
preference shares, shall, along wtie draft scheme of arrangement, remit a
fee at the rate of 0.1% of the paid share capital ahe listed/ transferee/
resulting compny, whichever is higher, post the sanction of the scli®me
the National Company Law Tribunal:

Provided that the total amount of fees payable shall not exceed five lakh rupees.

2. An entity with only listed noftonvertible debt securities or n@onvertible
redeemablepreference shares, shall, along with the draft scheme of
arrangement, remit a fee at the rat@.4P6 of the amount of outstanding debt
of the listed/ transferee/ resulting company, whichasenigher, post the
sanction of the scheme by the iatl Company Law Tribunal:

Provided that the total amount of fees payable shall not exceed five lakh
rupees.

013, The fees shall be paid by way of direct credit into the bank account of the
Board through NEFT/ RTGS/ IMPS or online payment using the ISEB
Payment Gateway or any other mode as may be specified by the Board from
time to time.]

U.K. SINHA

500 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing ObligatioBssatasure Requirements)
(Sixth Amendment) (Regulations), 2022. Prior to substitution, it read as:
fi[Schedule XIT Fee in respect of draft scheme of arrangement
[see regulations 37 and 94]

1. The listed entity shall, along with the draft schemarohngement, remit fee at the rate of 0.1% of the-paid
up share capital of the listed/transferee/resulting company, whichever is higher, post sanction of the scheme,
subject to a cap of [five lakh rupees].

2. The fee specified in clause 1 shall be paid by wfdirect credit to the bank account of the Board through
NEFT/RTGS/IMPS or any other mode allowed by RBI or by means of a demand draft in favour of
fiSecurities and Exchange Board of Indiad payable at

501 Substituted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Payment of Fees and Mode of Payment)

(Amendment) Regulations, 2023 w.e.f 01.04.2023. Prior to its substitution, clause (3) read as follows:

*IA(3) The fees shall b ehe pamk agcoumtyof thve Bgard ahfougd NEF&/ KTGSlc r e d i t
|l MPS or any other mode all owed by RBI or by means of
Board of I ndiao payable at Mumbai . 0]

179



CHAIRMAN
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

180



